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December 17, 2020

Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education

Hackensack School District

Hackensack, New Jersey 07601

Dear Board Members:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the Hackensack School District for the Fiscal Year ended

June 30, 2020, is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and. completeness

and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the management of the Board of

Education (Board). To the best of our knowledge and belief, the data presented in this report is accurate

in all material respects and is reported in a manner designed to present fairly the Basic Financial

Statements and results of Operations ofthe District. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to

gain an understanding of the District's financial activities have been included.

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is presentedin four (4) Sections as follows:

@ The Introductory Section includes this transmittal letter, the District's Organizational Chart, list of

professional advisors and a list of principal officials.

e The Financial Section includes the basic Financial Statements and Schedules, required

supplementary information, Management's Discussion and Analysis, as well as the Auditor's

Report thereon.

e The Statistical Section includes selected financial and demographic information, generally

presented ona multi-year basis.

e The Single Audit Section includes the Auditor's report on the internal control structure and

compliance with applicable laws and regulations and finding(s) and recommendations. The

District is required to undergo an Annual Single Audit in conformity with the provisions of the

Title 2 U.S. Code of Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principals,

and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and New Jersey States Office of

Management and Budget Circular 15-08, “Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal! Grants,

State Grants and State Aid." Information related to this Single Audit, including the auditor's

report on the internal control structure and compliance with applicable laws and regulations and

findings and recommendationsare included in the Single Audit section of this report.



1. REPORTING ENTITY and ITS SERVICES:

The Hackensack School District is an independent reporting entity within the criteria adopted by the

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) as established by the National Council on

Governmental Accounting (NCGA) Statement No, 14. All funds and account groups of the District are

included in this Report. The Hackensack Board of Education and allits schools constitute the District's

reporting entity.

The District provides a full range of educational services appropriate to grade levels Pre-K through 12.

These include regular academic, technological, vocational, as well as special education for handicapped

students, This District is also a receiving school District from Maywood, Rochelle Park and South

Hackensack.

The District completed the 2019-2020 fiscal year with an Average Daily Enrollment of 5,711 students,

which is 59 students above the previous year's enrollment. The following details the changes in the

student enrollment of the District over the last ten years:

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Fiscal Number Percent

Year ADE Change Change

2019/20 5,711 59 1.03%

2018/19 5,770 97 1.98%

2017/18 5,673 (6) -0.10%

2016/17 5,679 (11) -0,20%

2015/16 5,690 78 1.39%

2014/15 5,612 149 2.73%

2013/14 5,463 57 1.05%

2012/13 5,406 182 3.48%

2011/12 5,224 92 1.79%

2010/11 5,132 99 1.97%

2009/10 5,033 131 2,67%

2003/09 4,902 (20) -0.41%          
For the 2019/20 schoolyear, the District was configuredas follows:

o Early Childhood Developmental Center Grades Pre-K through K

e Fairmount Elementary School Grades Pre-Kthrough 4

e Fanny M. Hillers Elementary School Grades K through 4

o Jackson Avenue Elementary School Grades Pre-Kthrough 4

. Nellie K. Parker Elementary School Grades Pre-K through 4

o Hackensack Middle School Grades 5 through 8

e Hackensack High School Grades 9 through 12

Based on Demographic Projections prepared in February 2015 by Whitehall Associates, the Hackensack

Board of Education determined that the District is facing the need to expand in order to meet the

projected growth in enrollment. In 2013, the Hackensack Board of Education approved

a

five (5) year

lease for a school located in Hackensack from the Archdiocese of Newark to help alleviate the

immediate need for space. This facility is referred ta as the Hackensack Early Childhood Development

ii



Center and houses Pre-K general education and students with disabilities.

During the 2019-2020 schoolyear, this lease was renewed for an additional four (4) years. The lease is

scheduled to expire on June 30, 2023. By the time the currentlease expires,the district hopes to have a

district owned replacementfacility.

Zi MAJOR INI IVES 2019/20

Educational Programs, Grades Pre-K-12

Our District serves students in PreK - 12, with a Preschool Program, four (4) elementary schools, a middle school

and onehigh school, with a total student population of over 5,700 students. Our program ofinstruction follows

the NewJersey Students Learning Standards (NJSLS} and aims to provide for personalized learning, supporting the

needs of individual students to address the achievement gaps. Teachers provide for engaging and rigorous

learning in classroom environments that privilege problem-solving, digital learning, career-readiness skills, to

prepareall students to be Future Ready.

The 2019/20 school year saw our Prek full-day program expand enrollment with 163 full day general education

preschool students. The district was able to provide additional inclusion opportunities for students with special

needs, and expand classes to Jackson Avenue school. Preschool teachers received training in the Creative

Curriculum and implemented the GOLDand ESI-R assessments, which assisted with aligning instruction to student

needs, Prior to school closures in March, we held several family nights to support family engagement,including a

Family Block Night, The district also worked to secure contracts with two private preschool providers to be able to

expand classes for the 2020-2021 school year.

In the area of Mathematics, during the 2019/20 school year, a major focus was on professional development

activities that supported the revision of NISLS aligned Benchmark Assessments to better correlate with the New

Jersey Student Learning Standards for Math. These benchmarks were then aligned with the resources for each

grade level that included HMH GoMath Algebra preparation materials along with McGraw Hill Geometry products.

Alignment was also addressed so that HMH materials would support standards-based instruction which was to be

extended to prade 9 Algebra students in 2020-21 SY. The focus was to develop a deeper understanding of

mathematical practices as per the New Jersey Student Learning Standards. This vertical alignment of resources

addresses the needs of students as per Algebra readiness and within Algebra itself, The ultimate goal is to

increase the number of students on the college preparatory pathway which would include a 4” year of

mathematics such as Precalculus by graduation. Additional Professional Development was infused into the school

year via Building and Department PD sessions in which the teachers shared data and created intervention

programs for students who were meeting with challenges. Differentiated instruction was the focus of much ofthe

professional developmentinitiatives as the specific gaps in content knowledge and skills were discovered.

Revising benchmark assessments and providing professional development for using data to inform instruction

was also the focus of English Language Arts during the 2019 / 2020 school year. The district staff continued their

focus on the fifth-grade transition by increasing independent reading and adding novel-based instruction aligned

to standards. In addition, grade 5 teachers began professional development on the components of Balanced

Literacy in preparation for the new Reader's Workshop curriculum work to take place in 2020-2021. Prior to

virtual instruction, teachers continued to develop strategies for reading intervention using the System 44 and the

Read 180 system focusing on howto effectively respond to student performance data. Coaching sessions by

outside consultants were provided for staff in grades 5 through 12. Teachers in grades 6-12 continued their

novel-based approach to the teaching of reading and standards-based writing at their grade levels, while

incorporating more non-fiction texts, podcasts, and Ted Talks to support students in making the connection to

content to improve writing and discussion skills. All English teachers of grades 5 -12 participated In professional
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development designed to help them understand the NJ LGBTO+ / Inclusive Curriculum mandate and to begin

review of their curricula as a means of identifying areas and units that might need revision to create a more

culturally relevant focus for students. The Bilingual Department and the English Department staff worked together

to focus on the language acquisition skills of English Language Learners who transitioned to the general education

classroom.

In the area of Science in SY 2019-2020 the major focus of work was to create assessments that align more closely

to the three dimensions of the NISLS-S. This was in response to the release of performance data on the first ever

administration of the NISLA-S in May of 2019, Our results were below, but approaching the state averagein the 11th

grade and below to far below the state averages in 5th and 8th grade. Science the NJSLA-S primarily assesses the

students’ ability to apply the eight Science and Engineering practices to explain phenomena. The science department

focused on using available resources, such as the "STEM Teaching Tools 430, Integrating Science Practices Into

Assessment Tasks” and previously released NJSLA-S sampleitemsto redesign our assessments and focus our instructional

practices around making student thinking visible and argumentativ discussion and talk.. Throughout the year,

assessments were created, coded to standards, and administered to students via Edulastic. Although there are elght

Science and Engineering Practices, we focused on Asking Questions and Defining Problems, Analyzing and Interpreting

Data, and Engaging in Argument through Evidence asa part of our Claim, Evidence, Reasoning instructional framework

and Argument Driven Inquiry initiative, Analysis of the data in PLC's revealed that we need additional assessments to

create actionable interventions which are specific to the Science and Engineering Practices., our science assessments ta

In orderto support the alignment of our science curriculum to New Jersey Student Learning Standards for Science,

emphasis was placed on evidence based instructional practices through consistent implementation of the Claim

Evidence Reasoning framework in grades 5-12 and a 9-12 implementation of the Argument Driven Inquiry

instructional model. High School Teachers received Argument Driven Inquiry training in June of 2018 and again in

October of 2018. The CER and ADI frameworks both support our underlying purpose of developing scientific

literacy by engaging our students In grade 8 with Science and Engineering practices in addition to the Cross

Cutting Concepts and Disciplinary Core ideas as outlined in the NJSLS. Instructionally, a focus was placed on

strategies that reinforced the Science and Engineering Practices specifically.

In addition to our rigorous academic programs, we offer students manyactivities during and after school that

support their growth. Our competitive and recreational sports programs, clubs andactivities, such as our HS and

MS Robotics Clubs, engage students in hands-on,inquiry-based learning and provide students with opportunities

to learn life skills in various settings. In addition, a grade 9 engineering course entitled Intraduction to STEM

Principles was introduced at Hackensack High School for up to 100 students. On March 14, 2018, HMS held its

first ever STEAM night.

Last year, we continued to support our Chromebook 1:1 in grades K through 12,rolling out a new cloud-based

filter and classroom management tool; leveraging E-Rate funding to upgrade network equipment throughout the

District; and doubling our District internet bandwidth to 2Gbps while simultaneously lowering costs using the

ESCMJ/DRLAP Broadband Initiative, To enhance communication and security, we migrated from a hosted VoIP

telephony system to an on-premises Mitel/Shoretel system allowing us to integrate our phones with our

forthcoming Lockdown and Emergency Notification System and our public announcement systems in each

building. We also replaced/upgraded obsolete security cameras and added over 140 cameras at our Middle

School and High School,significantly improving coverage, In addition, we performed routine refreshes of servers,

desktops, projectors, Smartboards and other classroom technology.

Facility/District Upgrades included:

« Asbestos Abatement Hillers Crawl Space

Middle School Partial Roof Replacement

Middle School Turf Field Replacement Preparation/Engineering

Parker School Retaining Wall
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Fairmount Masonry Wall

High School Soccer Field House Improvements

District Drainage Repairs

Hillers School Electronic Exterior Sign

3. INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONTROLS

Management ofthe District is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure

designed to ensure that the assets of the District are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure

the adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in

conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). The internal control structure is

designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept

of reasonable assurance recognizesthat:

(1) The cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and

(2) The valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.

As a recipient of Federal and State financial assistance, the District also is responsible for ensuring that

an adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws and

regulations related to those Programs. This internal control structure is also subject to periodic

evaluation by the District management.

As part of the District's Single Audit described earlier, tests are made to determine the adequacy of the

internal control structure, including that portion related to Federal and State financial assistance

programs, as well as to determine that the District has complied with applicable laws and regulations,

4. BUDGETARY CONTROLS:

In addition to internal accounting controls which now includes the prerequisite that all requisitions

confirm the use of Ed Data, NJESC, State Contracts etc., the District maintains budgetary controls, The

objective of these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodiedin the

annual appropriated budget approved by the vaters of the municipality. Annual appropriated Budgets

are adopted for the General Fund, Special Revenue Fund, and Debt Service Fund. Project-length budgets

are approved for the capital Improvements accountedfor in the Capital Projects Fund. Thefinal Budget

amount as amendedforthefiscal year is reflected in the financial section.

An encumbrance accounting system is used to record outstanding purchase commitmentsona line item

basis. Open encumbrancesatyear-end are either canceled orare included as re-appropriationsof fund

balance in the subsequent year. Those amounts to be re-appropriated are reported as Reservations of

Fund Balance at June 30, 2020.

. AC ING SYSTEM Al PORTS:

The District's accounting records reflect Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP), as

promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The accounting system of the

District is organized on the basis of funds and account groups. These funds and account groups are

explained in "Notes to the Financial Statements", Note 1.



6, DEBT ADMI TION

At June 30, 2020, the District had no outstanding bonds, $941,814 in capital leases payable and

§338,487in lease-purchase agreements payable. Additional information regarding the District’s debtis

contained in the "Notes to the Financial Statements", Note 7.

7. FINANCIAL INFOR N AT FISCAL YEAR-END

The Board developed its 2019/20 budget under the State's funding formula. An analysis of the

expenditures in the financial section of this report will show that the Board was prudentin presenting

the community with an accurate picture of educational needs.

8. CAS] ANAGEMENT

The investment policy of the Districtis guided in large part by State statute as detailed in "Notes to the

Financial Statements", Note 2. The District has adopted a Cash ManagementPlan, which requiresit to

deposit public funds in public depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the

Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act ("GUDPA"). GUDPA was enacted in 1970 to protect

Governmental Units from a loss of funds on deposit with a failed banking institution in New Jersey. The

law requires governmental units to deposit public funds only in public depositories located in New

Jersey, where the funds are secured in accordance with the Act.

3, RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board completed its second year as a member of the New Jersey School Boards Association

Insurance Group, North Jersey Educational Insurance Fund whichself-insures Workers’ Compensation

and purchases general liability, auto and property insurance on a volume basis (Joint Insurance Fund).

10. OTHER INFORMATION

e Independent Audit - State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public

accountants (CPA) or registered municipal accountants. The accounting firm of Lerch Vinci &

Higgins, LLC was selected by the Board. In addition to meeting the requirements set forth in

State statutes, the audit also was designed to meet the requirements of Title 2 U.S, Code of

Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit

Requirements for Federal Award (Uniform Guidance) and State Treasury Circular Letter 15-08

OMB. The Auditor's Report on the basic financial statements and specific required supplemental

information is included in the financial section of this report. The auditor's reports related

specifically to the Single Audit are included in the Single Audit section of this report,

e NJQSAC

The district underwent a New Jersey Quality Single Accountability Continuum review which was

conducted in late February by the Department of Education. The district passed all sections.

They included Instruction & Program, Fiscal, Governance, Operations and Personnel. A letter

from the Department of Education’s Office of Field Services Coordination states “I am pleased to

vi



11.

five areas of the NJOSACreview process and has been designated as “high performing.”

COVID-19

The district's response to COVID-19 has been multifaceted. Our work began with ensuring that

all students had access to a device and reliable Internet. Hackensack Public Schools has been a

ohe-to-one district for several years, and therefore we were able to provide each student with a

Chromebook to use for remote learning. Wedistributed approximately 450 hotspots to students

to support virtual learning and assisted with Internet access In orderto receive live instruction.

Virtual instruction is aligned to the scope and sequenceofthe in-person instruction and there Is

consistent interaction between students and teachers. This includes both synchronous

(scheduled class meetings) and asynchronous (student self-paced) learning. Teachers met with

students in both whole and small groups within the virtual or classroom setting. Teachers

delivered high-quality, standards-based instruction, including assessing and monitoring student

progress in the virtual environment. Social/emotional supports are a focus of our program

through providing SEL resources and mindfulness activities to staff. Additionally, students receive

social emotional lessons and activitiesIn class, and counseling support is available. Family contact

is an integral part of our program and timeis designated to allow teachers and families to build

relationships and ensure students are learning. Parent feedback is obtained through the use of

various surveys. Additionally, parent meetings occur regularly, with sessions offered in English

and Spanish to allow parents to ask questions and gain information to support their children. We

have learned that parent attendanceincreases significantly when parent programs are offered

virtually.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR?S REPORT CHRIS SOHN, CFA

Honorable President and Members

of the Board ofEducation

Hackensack Board ofEducation

Hackensack, NewJersey

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each

major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information ofthe Hackensack Board of Education, as of and for the fiscal

year ended June 30. 2020 and the related notes lo the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Board of

Edueation’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents,

Management’s Responsibilityfor the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America;this includes the design, implementation, and

maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

Auditor's Responsibility

Ourresponsibility is lo express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit, We conducted our audit in

accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, the standards applicable to

financial audits contained in the Government Auditing Standards,issued by the Comptroller General of the United States

and audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Educalion, State of NewJersey.

‘Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance abo it whether the financial

statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures (o obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial

statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessmentofthe risks of material

misstatement of the Gnancial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor

considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to

design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the

effectiveness of the entity's internal control, Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating

the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by

management, as well as evaluating the overall presentationof the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtainedis sufficient and appropriate to providea basis for our audit opinions.

27-17 ROUTE 208 @ PAIR LAWN, NJ 07410 @'TRLEPH! 102013 791-7100 » FACSIMILE (201) 791-3035
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Opinions

Tn our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial

position of the governmentalactivities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund

information of the Hackensack Board of Education as of June 30, 2020, and the respective changes in financial position

and, where applicable, cash flows thereoffor the fiscal year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States ofAmerica.

OtherMatters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and

analysis, budgetary comparison information, pension information and other postemployment benefits information be

presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial

statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it lo be an essential part of

financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.

We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing

standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the

methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our

inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial

statements. We do not express an opinion or provide anyassurance on theinformation because the limited procedures do

not provideus with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the

Hackensack Board of Education’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining fund financial

statements, financial schedules,statistical section, schedule of expenditures of federal awards as required by Title 2 U.S.

Code ofFederal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Andit Requirements

for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and schedule of expenditures of stale financial assistance as required by New

Jersey OMB Circular 15-08, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid, are

presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements of the

Hackensack Board ofEducation.

   

The combining fund financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal awards and schedule of expenditures ofstate

financial assistance are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying

accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the

auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including

comparing and reconciling such informationdirectly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the

basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance

with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, In our opinion, the combining fund financial

statements, schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance are fairly stated in all material

respects in relation to the basic financialstatements as a whole.

The introductory section, financial schedules and statistical section have not been subjected to the auditing procedures

applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any

assurance on them.

t
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Other Reporting Required by GovernmentAuditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 17, 2020 on our

consideration of the Hackensack Board of Education's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests ofits

compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of

that report is solely to describe the scope of ourtesting of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the

results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Hackensack Board ofEducation’s internal

control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part ofan audit performed in accordance with

Government Auditing Standards in considering the Hackensack Board of Education’s internal control over financial

reporting and compliance.

Leach, Vises Ÿ Higgins, LLP

LERCH, VINCI & HIGGINS, LLP

Certified Public Accountants

Public School Accountants

 

‚Jeffrey C. Bliss
Public School Accountant
PSA Number CS00932

Fair Lawn, NewJersey

December 17, 2020
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HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended Inne 30, 2020

As managementof the Hackensack Board of Education (the Board or District), we offer readers of the

District's financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the

Hackensack Board of Education for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. We encourage readers to

consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional information that we haye furnished

in our letter of transmittal, which can be found in the introductory section of this report, as well as, the

District’s financial statements and notes to the financial statements which immediately follows this

discussion and analysis.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Key financial highlights for the 2019-2020 fiseal year include the following:

The assets and deferred outflows of resourees of the Hackensack Board ofEducation exceeded its

liabilities and deferred inflows of resources at the close of the fiscal year by $6,273,331 (Net

Position)

The District's total net posilion increased by $6,269,922.

Overall District revenues were $147.712,745. General revenmes accounted for $99,939,467 or

68% of all revenues. Program specific revenues in the form of charges for services and grants

and contributions accounted for $47,773,278 or 32% oftotal revenues.

The school district had $138,958,271 in expenses for governmental activities; only $45,573,651

of these expenses were offset by program specific charges, grants or contributions. General

revenues (predominantly property taxes) of $99,939,467 were adequate to provide for these

programs.

As of the close of the current fiscal year, the District's governmental funds reported a combined

ending fund balance of $18,696,199. Of this amount, $15,881,687 is fund balance restricted for

specific purposes, $3.323,113 has been assigned to year end expenditures and the remaining

amount is the unassigned fund deficit of $508,601.

The General Fund fund balance at June 30, 2020 was $18,696,198, an increase of $4,602,922

compared to the ending fund balance at June 30, 2019 of $14,093,276.

The General Fund unassigned budgctary fund balance at June 30, 2020 was $22,201,263, which

represents an increase of $5,058,317 when compared lo the ending unassigned budgetary fund

balance at June 30, 2019 of $17,142,946,

The District's total outstanding long-term Habilitics decreased by $4,207,318 during the current

fiscal year.



HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial section of the annual report consists of four parts — Independent Auditor"s Report, required

supplementary information which includes the management’s discussion and analysis (this section), the

basic financial statements, and supplemental information. The basic financial statements include two

kinds of statements that present different viewsofthe District:

o The first two statements are district widefinancial statements (hat provide both short-term

and long-term information about the District's overall financial status.

® ‘The remaining statements arefundfinancial statements that focus on individual parts ofthe

District, reporting the District’s operations in more detail than the district-wide statements.

© ‘The governmentalfunds statements tell howbasic services were financed in the short term as

well-as what remains for future spending.

« Proprietaryfinds statements offer short-termand long-term financial information about

the activitics the district operated like businesses.

® Fiduciaryfunds statements provide information aboutthe financial relationships in which the

District acts solely as a Irustee or agent for the benefit of others to whom the resources belong.

The basic financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the statements

and provide more detailed data. The following shows howthe various parts of this Annual Report are

arranged and related to one another.

 

Management Basic
Discussion Financial

And Statements

Analysis   
 

 

 

| |District-wide Fund Notes |

Financial Financial To the |

$lalsrnents Statements Financial
Statements

 

 

    



HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION

Management's Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

The table below summarizes the major features of the Distriel’s financial statements, including the

portion of the District’s activities they cover and the types ofinformation they contain. The remainder of

this overview section of management’sdiscussion and analysis highlights the structure and contents of

each ofthe statements.

Major Features of the District-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

 

 

 

 

District-Wide Fund Financial Statements

1 Statements Governmental Funds Proprietary Funds Fiduciary Funds

Scope ‘Entire distrietiexcept The activities of the district that ctivities the district Tnstanees m whichthe

fiduciary funds) ¢ not proprietary orfiduciary, operates similar to district administers

such us instruction, building privale businesses: resources an behalf of

maintenance, transportation, and Enterpriso Funds komcone else, such as

fadministration. student activities

and payroll activities

Required financial statement of Not Position Balance Sheet Statement ofNet Position Biutement of

Statements Statement of Activities Statement ofRevenue, Statement of Revenue, Fiduciary Net Position,

Expenditures and Changes it Expenses. and Changes in Statement ofChange

 

Fund Balances Fund Met Position, in Fiduciary Met

Stuiement of Cash Flows [Position

Accounting Basis and Accrual accounting and Moditiod accrual accounting Accrual accounting and ¡Accrual accounting

‘Measurement focus Economic resources focus land current financial focus ' economic resources focus. pmeconomic resources

Pocus
 

Type of asset, liuhility and

deferred inflows/outflows

Ad] assets, deferred outflows,

linhilities, and deferred.

Gencrally assets expected to be

hised up andliabilities that come

ALL assets, deferted out-

flows, liuhilities and

All assets and liabilities,

Thoth short-term and. king,

  hen cashis received or

pui  Wear, expenditures when ponds or

services have beon received and the

elated liabilityis. due and payable,

information inflows, both financial kiue during the vear or snon there deferred inflows, both ery funds do nat cur

bind capital, shorl-term and after; no capital assels or long-term financial and capital, and

—

penthy contain capital

Long-term iabilities included khort-term and long-term _fassets, althoughthey can!

Type of inflow/outtiow |All tevenues and expenses

=

Revenues for which cash is received All revenues and expenses lan additions and

information during year, regardicss of Murine or soon aller the end of the ‘during the year, regardless Hedications during the

bf when cash is received

tr paid. ar, regardless of when ashis received or paid, 
 

District-Wide Statements

The district-wide statements report information aboutthe District as a whole using accounting methods

similar to those used byprivate-sector companies, The statement of net position includes alí of the

District's assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. All ofthe

current year’s revenues and expenses are accounted for in the statement ofactivities regardless of when

caslı is received or paid.

The two distriet-wide statemenis report the Distriet’s net position and howit has changed. Netposition —

the difference between the District’s assets/deferred outflows and liabilities/deferred inflows — is one way

to measure the District’s financial health or position.

= Over time, increases or decreasesin the District’s net positionis an indicator of whetherits

financial condition is improving or deteriorating, respectively.

+ To assess the overall health of the District you needto consider additional non-financial

factors such ag changesin the District's property tax base and the condition of school

buildings and otherfacilities.



HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

In the district-wide financial statements the District’s activitics are shown in two categories:

* Governmental activities — Most ofthe District's basic services are included here, such

as regular and special education, transportation, administration, and plant operation and

maintenance. Property taxes and Federal and State aid finance mostofthese activities.

» Business type activities — These are activities for operations that are financed and operated

in a mannersimilar to private business enterprises. The District’s food services (cafeteria)

programis included underthis category.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financialstatements provide more detailed information about the District’s funds - focusing on

its most significant or “major” funds — not the District as a whole. Funds are accounting devices the

District uses to keep track of specific sources of funding and spending on particular programs:

e Some funds are required by State law and bond covenants,

« ‘The District establishes other funds to control and manage money forparticular purposes

or to showthat it is properly using certain revenues(federal andstate grants).

The District has three kinds of funds:

» Governmentalfunds — Mostofthe District's basic services are includedin governmental funds, which

generally focus on (1) how cash and otherfinancial resourcesthat can readily be converted to cash low

in and out and (2) the balances left at year-end that are available for spending, Consequently, the

governmental funds statements provide a detailed short-term view that helps to determine whether there

are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the District’s

programs. Because this information does not encompass the additional long-term focus of the district-

wide statements, we provide additional information at the bottom ofthe governmental funds statements

that explains the relationship (ordifferences) between them.

« Proprietaryfunds — Services [or which the District charges a fee are generally reported in proprictary

funds. Proprietaryfunds are reported in the same wayas the district-wide statements,

e Enterprise Funds — This fund is established to account for operations that are financed and

operated in a manner similar to privato business enterprises. The stated intent is that costs of

providing goods or services to the students on a continuing basis are financed or recovered

primarily through user charges. The District currently has one enterprise fund, for its food

service (cafeteria) program.

« Fiduciaryfunds — The Districtis the trustee, orfiduciary, for assets and other resources that belong to

others. The District is responsible for ensuring that the assets and other resources reported in these funds

are used only for their intended purposes and by those to whom they belong, All of the District's

fiduciary activities are reported in a separate statement of fiduciary net position and a statement of

changesin fiduciarynet position. We exclude these activities from the district-wide financial statements

because the District cannot use these resourcesto financeits operations.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional informationthat is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in

the district-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found

following the financial statements.



HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE

Net Position. The District’s combined net position was $6,273,331 on fune 30, 2020 and $3,409

on June 30, 2019 as follows:

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total

2020 019 2020 019 2020 2019

Assets
Current Assets $ 22,261,908 5 16,923,064 $ 713,035 $1,480,674 $ 22,974,943 $ 18,403,738

Capital Asscts, net of accumulated depreciation 24,136,804 23,631,273 571,561 _ 382,705 24,708,365 24,013,978

 

  

 

 

 

Total Assets 46,398,712 40,554,337 1,284,596 L863,379 47,683,308 _42417,716

Deferred Outflows of Resources 3,372,910 6,160,799 - - __ 372510 6,160,799

Liabilities

Long-Term liabilities 30,507,368 34,514,686 - - 30,307,368 34,514,686

Other Liabilities 3,584,582 2,695,114 99,842 391,937 3684424 3,087,051

Total Liabilities 33,891,950 _ 37,209,800 99.842 391,957 33,991,792 37,601,737

Deferred Inflows of Resources 10,791,095 10,97 1,606 -_ 1,764 10,791,095 10,973,369

Net Position

Net Investmenlin Capital Assets 23,194,990 23,002,316 571,561 382,705 23,766,551 23,385,021

Restricted 10,147,692 8,518,737 10,147,692 8,518,737

Unrestricted _ (28,254,105) (92,987,323) 613,193 _1,086,974 (27,640,912) —(31,900,349)

Total Net Position 5 5,088,577 $ (1,466,270) $ 1,184,754 51,469,679 $ 6273/3591 $ 3,409
  

Byfar the largest portion of the District’s net position reflects its investment in capital assets

(e.g., land and improvements, buildings and improvements, vehicles, furniture and equipment);

less anyrelated debt used to acquire those assets thal are still outstanding. The District uses

these capilal assets to provide servicestoits students; consequently, these assets are not available

for future spending, Although the District’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of

related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided

from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these

liabilities, Restricted net position represents amounts reserved for specific purposes by outside

parties or state laws and regulations. Unrestricted net position represents amounts available to

ihe governmentthat are neither restricted nor invested in capital assets.



HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

The District's total net position of $6,273,331 at June 30, 2020 represents a $6,269,922 increase from the prior year.

The following presents the changesin net position for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019,

Change in Net Position

For The Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

 

 

 

 

 

Business-

Governmental Type

Activities Activities Total

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

Revenues

Program Revenue

Charges for Services # 7,183,378 § 7,089,863 $ 303407 $ 471,145 5 7/486,875 $ 7,561,008

Operating Grants and Contributions 38,377,215 40,793,399 1,896,130 2,429,239 40,273,345 43,222,638

Capital Grants and Contributions 13,058,' 27,500 13,058 27,500

General Revenues = -

Property Taxes 85,146,015 83,501,257 85,146,015 83,501,257

Unrestricted State Aid 14,254,090 11,552,967 14,254,090 11,532,967

Other 539,362 648,838 - - 339,362 648,838

Total Revenues 145,513,118 143,613,824 2,199,627 2,900,384 147,712,745 146,514,208

Expenses

Instruction

Regular 38,774,895 61,400,161 , 58,774,895 61,409,161

Special Education 27,125,449 27,386,726 27,125,449 27,386,726

Other Instruction 3,589,001 3,738,828 3,589,091 3,738,828

School Sponsored Activities and Athletics 1,768,004 2,267,830 1,768,094 2,267,830

Support Services

Student and Instruction Related Services 20,689,562 21,465,340 20,689,562 21,465,340

General Administrative Services 1,123,138 1,774,589 1,123,138 1,774,589

Schoo) Administrative Services 7,524,005 7,351,630 7,524,095 71,551,630

Central Services und Info. Technology 3,190,206 2,563,278 3,190,296 2,563,278

Plant Operations and Maintenance 12,201,920 11,594,792 12,201,920 11,504,792

Pupil Transportation 2,943,653 3,023,372 2,943,653 3,023,372

Interest on Long-Term Debt 28,078 57,839 28,078 57,830

Food Services Sa rs - 2,484,532. 2,737,472 2,484,352 2,737,472

Total Expenses 138,958,271 142,833,385 2.484.552 2,737,472 141,442,523 _145,570,837

Change in Net Position 6,554,847 780,439 (284,925) 162,912 6,269,922 943,351

Net Position, Beginniny ol Year (1,466,270) (2,246,709) 1,469,679 1,306,767 3,409 (939,942)

Net Position, End of Year $5,088,577 $ (1,466,270) $1,184,754 $ 1.469.679 5 6,273,331 $ 3,409
 



HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION

Management's Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

Governmental Activities. ‘The District’s total governmental activities’ revenues, which includes State and

Federal grants, were $145,513,118 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, properly taxes of $85.146,015

represented 59% of revenues. Another significant portion of revenues came from grants and contributions

and unrestricted state aid which totaled $52,644,363 and represented 36% ofrevenues. In addition, charges

for services from tuition and facility rental represented 5% of revenues. Miscellaneous income such as

interest, prior year refunds and other miscellancousitems represented less than 1% ofrevenues.

The total cost ofall governmental activities programsand services was $138,958,271 for the fiscal year ended

June 30, 2020. The District’s expenses are predominantly related to educating and caring for students.

Instruction cosis were $91,257,529 (66%) of total expenses. Support services costs were $47,672,664 (34%)

of total expenses andinterest on debt totaled $28,078 less than 1% of total expenses,

For fiscal year 2020, total governmental activities revenues exceeded expenses increasing net position for

governmental activities by $6,554,847 trom the previous year.

Revenues by Sources — Governmental Activities
ForFiscal Year 2020

Grants, School Proper
Contributions | ne

and Aid wa59%  
  

  

36%

Tuition

5%

 

Expenses by Use — Governmental Activities

For Fiscal Year 2020

 

Student and

PlantOperations Instructional

and Maintenance Services
5% 15

Transportation
2%

General, School

& Central Instruction

Administration 66%

5%
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HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

Total and Net Cost of Governmental Activities. The Distriet’s total cost of services was $138,958,271.

After applying program revenues, derived from operating and capital grants and contributions of

$38,390,273 and charges for services of $7,183,378, the net cost of services of the District is $93,384,620

for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020.

Total and Net Cost of Governmental Activities

Forthe Fiseal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

 

Total Cost Net Cost

of Services of Services

2020 2019 2020 2019

Instruction

Regular $ 58,774,895 $ 61,409,161 § 36,792,323 $5 36,063,595

Special Education 27,125,449 27,386,726 15,056,088 16,450,825

Other Instruction 3,529,091 5,738,828 2,628,790 2,614,025

School Sponsored Activities and Athletics 1,768,094 2,267,830 1,763,971 2,174,417

Support Services

Student and Instruction Related Services 20,689,562 21,465,340 14,981,231 15,157,415

General Administrative Services 1,123,138 1,774,589 1,042,309 1,665,226

School Administrative Services 7,524,095 7,551,630 5,941,802 5,725,392

Central Services and Info. Technology 3,190,296 * 2,563,278 3,129,321 2,422,179

Plant Operations and Maintenance 12,201,920 11,594,792 9,760,194 9,298,586

Pupil ‘Transportation 2,943,653 3,023,372 2,260,513 2,390,124 °

Interest on Long-Term Debt 28,078 57,839 28,078 57,839

Total S  138/958,271 §_ 142,833,385

S

93,384,620 $ 94,922,623
   

Business-Type Activities — The District's total business-typeactivities revenues were $2,199,627 for the

fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 and relate entirely to the District’s food service (cafeteria) program

operations, Charges for services of $303,497 accounted for 14% of total revenues and operating grants

and contributions of $1,896,130 accounted for 86% oftotal revenues.

Total cost of all business-type activities programs and services was $2,484,552 for the fiscal year ended

Juno 30, 2020 and pertained entirely to food service (cafeteria) operating expenses.

Forfiscal year 2020,total business-type activities expenses exceeded revenues, decreasing net position by

$284,925 or 19% over the previous year.
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HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT'S FUNDS

The financial performanceof the District as a whole is reflected in its governmental funds as well. As the
District completed the year, its governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of $18,696,199 at
June 30, 2020, an increase of $4,444,883 from last year’s fund balance of $14,251,316. The District’s
restricted fund balances increased $2,839,378, the assigned fund balances increased $2,152,946 while the

unassigned fund deficit of the governmental fundsincreased $247,481 at June 30, 2020.

Revenues for the District’s governmental funds were $139,203,507, while total expenditures were

$135,374,740 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. The District also had other financing sources of

$616,116 from capital lease proceeds.

GENERAL FUND

The General Fund includes the primary operations of the District in providing educational services to
students from grades Pre-K through 12 including pupil transportation, extra-curricular activities, plant
operation and maintenance costs and capital cutlay activities.

The following schedule presents a summary ofGeneral Fund Revenues.

 

 

Fiscal Fiscal Amount of Percent

Year Ended Year Ended Increase Increase

Tune 30.2020 June 30, 2019 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Local Sources

Property Tax Levy $ 84,522,752 $ 82,865,444 $ 1,657,308 2%
Tuition 7,083,222 6,989,382 93,340 1%

Other 637,455 748,589 (111,134) 13%

State Sources 40,627,832 35,250,279 5,377,553 15%

Federal Sources 216,779 222,763 (5,984) 30%

Total General Fund Revenues $ 133,088,040 $5 126,076,457 $ 7,011,583 6%
 

For fiscal year 2020, total General Fund revermes increased 57,011,583 or 6% from the previous year.

Property taxes increased $1,657.308 or 2% to support increases in operating costs. “Tuition revenues

increased $93,840 or 1% due to anincrease in enrollment fromother schooldistricts. As indicated, State

aid increased $5,377,553 or 15% mainly dueto the increase in equalization aid as well as on-behalf TPAF

pension contributions made bythe State for the District’s teaching professionals.

The following schedule presents a summary of General Fund expenditures.

 

 

Fiscal Fiscal Amount of Percent

Year Ended Year Ended Increase Increase
June 30. 2020 June 30, 2015 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Instruction $ 82294678 $ 81,036,042 $ 1,257,736 a

Support Services 43,278,561 41,340,511 1,938,050 5%

Capital Outlay 2,175,150 4,809,219 (2,534,069) 53%

Debt Service $43,223 __ 795,338 47,885 100%

Total Expenditures 5 128,691,512 5 127,982,010 5 709.602 1%

12



HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION

Management's Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

GENERAL FUND (Continued)

Forfiscal year 2020, total General Fund expenditures increased $709,602 or 1%from the previous year. Increases

in regular education and special education instruction costs, info technology support and plant operation and

maintenance support costs were the major factors for the increase in the current fiscal year. Notable decreases were

capital outlay expenditures which decreased 53% from the previous year,

In fiscal year 2020 General Fund revenues and otherfinancing sources exceeded expenditures and other financing

uses by $4,602,922. Therefore, the total find balance of $14,093,276 at June 30, 2019 increased to a fund balance

of $18,696,199 at June 30, 2020, After deducting restricted and assigned fund balances, the unassigned find deficit

increased from $261,120 at June 30, 2019 to a funddeficit of $508,601 at June 30, 2020. The District's restricted

fund balances (capital reserve, maintenance reserve, emergency reserve and excess surplus) increased from a

collective total fund balance of $13,184,269 at Jime 30, 2019 to $15,881,686 at June 30, 2020. The District's

assigned fand balances (year end encumbrances and designated for subsequent expenditures) increased from a

collective total fund balance of $1,170,127 at June 30, 2019 to $3,323,113 at June 30, 2020.

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

At the end offiscal year 2020, the District had $24,136,804 invested in land, buildings, fürniture, equipment and

vehicles for governmental activities and $571,561 for business type activities, For fiscal year 2020 depreciation

expense was $1,782,677 for governmental activities and $42,761 for business-type activities. The following is a

comparison of the June 30, 2020 and 2019 balances:

Capital Assets as ofJune 30, 2020 and 2019

(Net of Accumulated Depreciation)

 

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities

2020 019 020 2019

Land $ 68,800 $ 68,800

Building and Building Improvements 21,933,722 21,901,404 $ 319,778 $ 127,754

Machinery and Equipment 2,134,282 1,661,069 ___ 251,783 254,951

Total Capital Assets, Net $ 24,136,804 $23,631273 3 57 ‚61 $ 382,705
  

Additional information on the District's capital assets is presented in Note 3 of this report
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HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION

Management's Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

LONG TERM LIABILITIES

At June 30, 2020 the District had $30,307,368 of total outstanding longterm liabilities, Ofthis amount, $941,814is

for capital leases, $338,487 is for lease purchase agreements, 42,898,412 is for compensated absences, and

$26,128,655 is for net pensionliability, For fiscal year 2020 total outstanding long-termliabilities decreased by

$4,207,317. The following is a comparison ofthe June 30, 2020 and 2019 balances:

Outstanding Long-TermLiabilities

as ofJune 30, 2020 and 2019

Governmental Activities

2020 2019

Serial Bonds (including unamortized premium) $ - $ 637,154

Capital Leases 941,814 635,343

Lease Purchase Agreements 338,487 992,025

Compensated Absences 2,898,412 3,402,465

Net Pension Liability 26,128,655 28,847,699

Total Long-Term Liabilities $30,307,368 $34,514,686

Additional information of the District's long-termliabilities is presented in Note 3 of this report.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARYHIGHLIGHTS

The District’s budget is prepared according ta New Jersey Department of Education guidelines, and is

based on accounting for certain transactions on the budgetary basis of accounting for revenues,

expenditures and encumbrances. The most significant difference between the budgetary basis of

accounting and generally accepted accounting principles is the legally mandated revenue recognition of

certain delayed or deferred state aid payments. ‘The most significant budgetary fundis the General Fund.

Overthe courseof the year, the District revised the annual operating budget several times, Revisions in

the budget were made through the reappropriation of prior year encumbrances and budget transfers to

prevent overexpenditures in specific line item accounts.

For fiscal year 2020 General Fund budgetaryrevenues and other financing sources exceeded budgetary

expenditures and other financing uses inertases budgetary fund balance $5,058,317. However, after

deducting fund balances restricted and assigned, the unassigned budgetary fund balance increased

$207,914 from an unassigned fund balance of $2,788,530 at June 30, 2019 to $2,996,464 at June 30,

2020. In addition, the District increased its capital reserve $1,383,652 [rom $7,753,406 at Tune 30, 2019

to $9,137,058 at June 30, 2020, increased its maintenance reserve $245,302 from $765,331 at June 30,

2019 to $1,010,633 at June 30, 2020 and increased its emergency reserve $297,665 from $2,335 at June

30, 2019 ta $300,000 at June 30, 2020. The District’s total restricted excess surplus balance also

increased $770,798 from $4,663,197 at June 30, 2019 to $5,433,995 at June 30, 2020. Overall assigned

fund balances increased $2,152,986, from $1,170,127 at June 30, 2019to $3,323,113 at June 30, 2020,

14



HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Fiscal Year Ended Tune 30, 2020

FACTORS BEARING ON THE DISTRICT’S FUTURE

While many factors influence the district's future, the availability of funding for increased enrallment,

staffing needs special education costs and the economy will have the most impact on educational and

fiscal decisions in the future,

Manyfactors were considered by the District’s administration during the process of developing the fiscal

year 2020-2021 budget. The primary factors were the District's projected student population, anticipated

state and federal aid as well as increasing salary and related employee benefit costs.

These indicators were considered when adopting the budget for fiscal year 2020-2021, Budgeted

expenditures in the General Fund increased approximately 4.4% to $125,800,344 for fiscal year 2020-

2021. A significant portion of this budget increase was funded from additional state aid granted to the

District.

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and creditors

with a general overview of the District’s finances and to demonstrate the District's accountability for the

money it receives, If you have questions about this report or need additional information contact the

Business Office, Hackensack Board of Education, 191 Second Sirect, Hackensack, NJ 07601.
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HACKENSACK BOARDOF EDUCATION

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

AS OF JUNE 30, 2020

EXHIBIT A-1

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 20,225,122 $ 520,771 $ 20,745,893

Receivables, net 1,990,119 174,305 2,164,424

Other Assets 46,667 - 46,667

Inventory 17,959 17,959

Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated 68,800 68,800

Capital Assets, Being Depreciated, Net 24,068,004 571,561 24,639,565,

Total Assets 46,398,712 1,284,596 47,683,308

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred Amounts on Net Pension Liability 2,372,910 - 3.372.910

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 3,372,910 = 3,372,910

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable and Other Current Liabilities 3,062,616 76,323 3,138,939

Accrued Interest Payable 18,873 18.873

Uncurnéd Revenue 503,093 23,519 526,612

Noneurrent Liabilities

Due Within One Year 934,037 934,037

Due Beyond One Year 29.373,331 - 29,373,331

Total Liabilities 33,891,950 99,842 33,991,792

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Delerred Amounts on Net Pension Liability 10,791,095 = 10,791,095

Total Delerred Inflows olResources 10,791,095 - 10,791,095

NET POSITION

Net Investment in Capital Assets 23,194,990 371,561 23,766,551

Restricted for

Capital Projects 9,157,038 9,137,058

Plant Maintenance 1,010,635 1,010,633

Debt Service 1 I

Unresiricted (28,254,105) 613.193 (27,640,912)

Total Net Position S

0

S088577 SUITE 86273531
  

‘The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT B-1

HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION

 

  

 

 

 

 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

BALANCE SHEET
AS OF JUNE 30, 2020

Special Capital Debt Total

General Revenue Projects Service Governmental

Tund Fund Eund Fund Funds

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 19,820,894 $ 404,237 F 1 $ 20,125,127

Receivables tram Other Governments 1,676,758 313,361 1,990,119

Security Deposit 46,667 - - - 26,667

Total Asscts $ 21354319 $ 717,588 + = $ 1 $ 22.261.908

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities -

Accounts Payable $ 1,495,280 $ 105,972 $ 1,601,252

Accured Salares and Wages 352,841 352,841

Due to Other Funds 1,000,000 1,000,000

Payable to State Government 59,962 30,962

Payable to Federal Government 46,531 46,531

Cher Liabilities 2,030 2,030

Uncamed Revenue = 503,093 = = - a 503,093

Total Liabilities ___ 2848121 TITSER | - = 3,565,709

Fund Balances

Restricted Fund Balance

Cupital Reserve 6310453 6,310,453

Capital Rosorve-Designated for Subsequent
Year's Expenditures 2,826,605 2,826,605

Maintenance Reserve 1,010,633 1,010,633

Emergency Reserve 300,000 300,000

Excess Surplus 3,721,630 3,721,630

Pacess Surplus-Designated for Subsequent

Year's Expenditures 1,712,365 1,712,365

Debt Servico $ 1 1

Assigned Fund Balances

Year End Encumbrances 2,014,533 2,014,533

Designated for Subsequent Year's

Expenditures 1,308,580 1,308,580

Unassigned Fund Balance (508,601) - - - : (508,601)

Total Fund Balances 13,606,198 = = 1 18,696,199

Total Liahilities and Fund Balances $ 21544319 $5 TIRSER $ _ = & 1 $ 22,261,908
  

‘The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an Integral Part ofthis Statement
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EXHIBIT B-1

HACKENSACKBOARD OFEDUCATION

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

BALANCE SHEET

AS OF JUNE 30, 2020

Total Fund Balances (Exhibit B-1) 5 18,696,199

Amounts reported for governmentalactivities in the statement of

net position (A-1) are different because;

Capital assets used in governmentalactivities are not financial

resources and therefore are not reported in the funds. The cost

of the assels is $58,838,973 and the accumulated depreciation

is $34,702,169. 24,136,804

Certain amounts resulting from the measurement ofthe net pensionliability are

reported as cither deferred outflowsofresources ordeferred inflows of resources

on thestatement of net position and deferred over future years.

Deferred Outflows ofResources S 3,372,910

Deferred Inflows of Resources (10,791,095)

(7,418,185)

Thedistrict has financed capital assets and certain computersupplies through the issuance

of capital leases and lease-purchase agreements, Theinterest accrual at year end is:

(18,873)

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable and net pension. liability

are not due and payablein the current period and therefore are not reported as

liabilities in the funds.

Capital Leases Payable (941,814)

Lease-Purchase Agreements (338,487)

Compensated Absences (2,898,412)

Net Pension Liability (26,128,655)

___(30,307,368)

Net Position of Governmental Activities (Exhibit A-1) $5,088,577

‘The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an Integral Part of this Statement
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HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

REVENUES

Local Sources

Properly Tax Levy

Tuition

Interest
Miscellancous

‘Total - Local Sources

State Sources

Federal Sources

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current

Regular Instruction

Special Education Instruction

‘Other Instruction

School-Sponsired Activities and Athletics

Support Services

Student and Instruction Related Services

General Administrative Services

School Administrative Services

Central Services end Info. Technology

Plant Operations and Maintenance

Pupil Transportation

[ebt Service

Principal

Interest

Capital Outlay

Total Expenditures

Bxeess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Capital lease Proceeds

Transfers In

"Transfers Que

Total Other Financing Sourves and Uses

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year

Fund Balance. End ot Year

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

EXHIBIT B-2

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Special Capital Debt Total

General Revenue Projects Service Governmental

Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds

$ 34,522,152 623,163 5 85,146,015

7,083,222 7,083,222

208,536 $ 2,063 210,099

428,819 - = 428,819

87,243,420 - 2.063 624,263 07,868,753

40,627,832 $ 2,184,923 42,012,755

216,779 3,205,218 - = 3421997

133,088,040 5490,141 2,063 623,263 139,203,507

52496, B85 2,910,624 55,407,509

24,805,239 1,450,054 26,255,293

3,278,929 56,304 3,373,233

1,713,625 1,715,625

15,401,482 1,138,898 19,630,380

1.102.718 1,102,718

7.140.247 7,140,247

3,079,091 3,079,091

10,630,131 202,702 10,832,833

2,024,892 2,924,892

804,957 158,226 395,00 1,558,183

38,266 28,262 66,528

2,275,150 13,058 = cae 2,288,208

128.691,512 5.901640 158,225 623,262 135,374,740

4,306,428 (411,495) (156,163) 1 3,828,767

616,116 416,116

1,877 411,499 413,376

(411,499) = {LATT) = (413.176)

206,494 411,498 (1,877) os 516,116

4,602,922 = (158,040) 1 4,444,883

14,009,276 ==> 158,040 2 14,251,316

$ 18,006,198. $5 =, À = 143 18,606,199
 

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Stutements are an Integral Part ofthis StulemenL
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EXITIBIT B-3

HACKENSACK BOARD OFEDUCATION

ILLUSTRATIVE RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STA
TEMENT OF

REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

WITH THE DISTRICT-AVIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE FISCAL. YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Total Net Change in Fund Balances - Goveramental Funds (Fxhibit B-2) $ 4.444.885

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of

activities are different because:

Capital oudeys to purchase or build capital assets are reported in governmental

finds as expenditures. However, for governmental ectivilies those costs are

shawn in thestatement and allovated over their eslimated useful lives as annual

depreciation expense. ‘This is the amount by which capital ullay exceeds depreciation

in the current period.

Cepital Outlay $ 2,288,208

Depreciation Expense (1,782,677)
505,531

In the slatentent ofactivities, certain operating expenses - compensated absences and pension

expense are measured by the amounts earned or accrued during the year, Ia the governmental

funds, however, expenditures for these items are measured by the amount of financial

respurces used (paid):

Met Decrease in Compensaled Absences 504,053

Net Decreise in Pension Expense 119,863——"#
623,916

Repayment ofdeht is an expenditure in the grvernmental funds, dul the repayment reduces long-term

liabilities in the statement of net position und docs not effect the statement of activities

Principal Repayments

ond Principal
595,000

Capital Leases
309,645

Lease Purchase Agreements
653,538

1,558,183

The issuance oflong-term debt provides current financial resources to

aovestmental funds, but it increases }ong-tern Hebilitics in the statement of net

position and does not affect the stalement ofactivilies.

Debt Issued:

Capital Lenses
(616,116)

Iu the statement ofactivilies, certain emounts related Lo the ismuunge oflong tecm debt are defecred and

amortized over the term ofthe debt. In che govertunental funds, theee: amounis either provide or wie current

resources, ‘These atniounte represent the current year amortization of the costs related to the issuance of

long term debt.

Deferred Amounts on Refunding of Debt
(8,197)

Original Issue Premium
42,154

33,957

Interest on long-term debt in Ihe setement ofactivities ditiers fom the aracunt reported in the

governmental finds because interest is recorded as. an expeniliture in the funds when it is due, and

thus requires the use of current financial resources. In the statement of activities, however,inlerest

expense is recognized as the interest accrue, regardless of ion it is due.

Decrease in neccued intereal
Agu

‚Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities (Exhibit A-2)
5 6,554,847

‘The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an Integral Part of this Statement
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ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and Cash Fquivalents

Intergovernmental Receivable

Other Accounts Receivable

Inventory

Total Current Assets

Capital Assets

Building and Building Improvements

Machinery and Equipment

Less: Accumulated Depreviation

Totul Capital Asscts, Net

Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Unearned Revenue

Vota] Current Liabilities

NET POSITION

Investment in Capital Assets

Unrestricted

Total Net Position

The accompanying Notes ta the Financial Statements are an integral Part of this Statement

HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION

PROPRIETARY FUND

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

AS OF JUNE 30, 2020

EXHIBIT B-4

Business-Type

Activities

Enterprise Fund

FoodServices

$ 520,771
158,907
15,398
17,959

713,035

392,221
611,521

(431,981)

371.561

1,284,596

76,323

09,942

571,561

613,103

$2 1184754



HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION

PROPRIETARY FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND

CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDEDJUNE30, 2020

OPERATING REVENUES

Charges for Services

Daily Sales

Reimbursable Programs- School Lunch Program

Non-Reimbursable Programs

Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES

Salaries and Benefits

Cost of Sales - Reimbursable Programs

Cost of Sales - Non-Reimbursable Programs

Purchased Management Services

Other Purchased Services

Insurance

Repairs and Maintenance

Supplies

Miscellaneous

Depreciation

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Loss

NONOPERATING REVENUES

State Sources

School Lunch Program

Federal Sources

National School Breakfast Program

National School Lunch Program

National School Snack Program

Food Distribution Program

Total Nonoperaling Revenues

Changein Net Position

Net Position, Beginning of Year

Net Position, End of Year

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an Integral Part of this Statement

EXHIBIT B-5

Business-Type

Activities

Enterprise Fund

Food Services

$ 215,233
88,264

303,497

1,160,952

935,974

3,287

109,210

364

135,956

64,735

22,538

8,775

42,761

2,484,552

(2,181,055)

20,819

543,048
1,127,200

35,390
169,673

1,896,130
___Sir

284,925)

1,469,679

5 1,184,734AUSFES
 



EXHIBIT B-6

HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION

PROPRIETARY FUND

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Business-Type

Activities

Enterprise Fund

FoodServices

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Cash Received ftom Customers 5 316,901

Cash Payment for Salaries and Benelits (1,160,952)

Cash Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services (1,409,956)

Mel Cash Used by Operating Activities _ 2,254,007)

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities

Cash Received from State and ederal Subsidy Reimbursements 1,764,049

Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activitics = 1,764,049

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financial Activities

Purchase of Capital Assets en (231,617)

Net Cash Used for Capital end Related Financing Activities (231,617)

Nel Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents (721.575)

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 1,242,346

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $ 520,771
 

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash

Used by Operating Activities

Operating Loss s (2,181,055)

Adjustments lo Reconcile Operating Loss to

Net Cash Used hy Operating Activities

Depreciation 42,761

Non Cash Federal Assistance -

Fond Distribution Program (USDA Commodities) 169,673

Change in Assets, Liabilities and Deferred Inilows of Resources

(Increase)Decrease in Other Accounts Receivable 2,773

(IncrcasehDecrease in Inventory 5,699

Increase(Decrease) in Accounts Payable (302,726)

Increase (Decrease) in Unearned Revenue 10,631

Increase’(Decrease) in Deferred Commodilies Revenue _ (1,763)

‘Total Adjusiments (72,952)

Net Cash Used by Operating Activities $ (2,254,007)

Non-Cash Investing, Capital and Financing Activities

Value Received for Food Distribution Program $ 167,910

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are anIntegral Part of this Statement
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EXHIBIT B-?

HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

AS OF JUNE 30, 2020

 

 

 

 

Private Purpose
Unemployment Scholarship

Compensation Trust Fund Agency Fund

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 48,622 $ 29,024 $ 358,211

Other Accounts Receivable 21,603

Due from General Fund 1,000,000 = #

Total Assets 1,070,225 39,024 $ 358,211

LIABILITIES

Intergovernmental Payable - State 74,258

Payroll Deductions and Withholdings 17,404

Due to Student Groups = - . 340,807

Total Liabilities T4258 - $ 358,211

NET POSITION

Held in Trust for Unemployment Claims 995,967

Held in Trust for Private Purpose Scholarships u - 39,024

‘Total Net Position 5 995,967 $ 39,024

‘The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an Integral Part of this Statement
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EXHIBIT8-8

HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION

FLDUCIARYFUNDS

STATEMENT OF CHANGESIN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Private Purpose

 

 

 

 

 

Unemployment Scholarship

Compensation Trust Fund

ADDITIONS

Contributions

Employees 5 90,935

District 1,000,000

Investment Earnings

Interest sa 408 $ 363

Total Additions _ 1,091,343 __ 363

DEDUCTIONS

Scholarship Awards
16,000

Unemployment Contributions 185,687 =

Total Deductions _ 185,687 16,000.

Change in Net Position 905,656 (15,637)

Net Position, Beginning of Year 90,311 54,661

Net Position, End of Year $ 995.967 à 39,024
    

‘The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an Integral Part of this Statement
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HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION

NOTES TO THEFINANCLAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE FISCAL YEARENDED JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Reporting Entity

The Hackensack Board of Edueation (the “Board” or the “District”) is an instrumentality of the State of New Jersey,

established to function as an education institution, The Board consists of nine elected officials and is responsible for the

fiscal control of the District. A Superintendent is appointed by the Board and is responsible forthe administrative control of

the District, A Business Administrator/Board Secretaryis also appointed by the Board and oversees the business functions

of the District. Under existing statutes, the Board's duties and powers include, but are not limited to, the development and

adoption of a school program;the establishment, organization and operation of schools; andthe acquisition, maintenance and

disposition of school property, The Board currentlyoperates a Pre-Kindergarten through grade twelve (12) school district,

The Board also has broad financial responsibilities, including the approval of the annual budget and the establishmentofa

system of accounting and budgetary controls. The Superintendent is the Chief Administrative Officer of the District who is

responsible for general supervision of all schools, planning and operational functions of the Distriet. The Business

Administrator/Board Secretary is the Chief Financial Officer and is responsible for budgeting, financial accounting and

reporting and reports through the Superintendent to the Board.

The reporting entity is composed of the primary government, component units, and other organizationsthat are included to

ensure that the financial statements of the District are not misleading. The primary government consists of all funds,

departments, boards and agenciesthat are not legallyseparate from the District. For the Hackensack Board of Education this

includes general operations, food service and student related activities of the District.

Component units are legally separate organizations for which the District is financially accountable, The District is

financially accountable for an organization if the District appoints a voting majority ofthe otganization’s governing board

and (1) the District is able to significantly influence the programs or services performed or provided byIhe organization; or

(2) the District is legallyentitled to or can otherwise access the organization's resources; the Districtis legally obligated or

has otherwise assumed the responsibility to finance the deficits of, or provide financial support to, the organization, or the

District is obligated for the debt of the organization. Component units may also include organizations that are fiscally

dependent on the District in that the District approves the budget, the issuance ofdebtorthe levying of taxes. Based on the

foregoingcriteria, the District has no component units. Furthermore, the District is not includable in any other reporting

entity as a component umit.

B. New Accounting Standards

Forfiscal year 2020,there were no GASBstatements required to be adopted and implemented by the District.

Accounting standards that the District is currently reviewing for applicability and potential impactonthe financial statements

include:

» GASB No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, implementation postponed will be effective beginning with the fiscal year

ending June 30, 2021, The objective of this Statement is to improve guidance regarding the identification of

fiduciary activities for accounting and financial reporting purposes and how those activities should be reported. This

Statementestablished criteria for identifying fiduciaryactivities ofall state and local governments.



HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FORTHEFISCAL YEARENDED JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

B. New Accounting Standards (Continued)

 

+ GASB No.87, Leases, implementation postponed will be effective beginning with the fiscal year ending June 30,

2022. The objective of this Statement is to better meet the information necds of financial statement users by

improving accounting and financial reporting for leases by governments. This Statement increases the usefulness of

governments’ financial statements by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that

previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources oroutflows of resources based

on the paymentprovisions of the contract.

a GASB No. 89, Accountingfor Interest Costs Incurred Before the End of a Construction Period, implementation

postponed will be effective beginning with the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022. The objectives of this Statementis

to improve financial reporting by providing users of financial statements with more relevant information about

capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a reporting period, The resulting information also will enhance the

comparability of information about capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a reporting period for both

governmentalactivities and business-type activities,

® GASB No. 92, Omnibus 2020, implementation postponed will be effective beginning with the fiscal year ending

June 30, 2022 except requirements related to GASB No. 87 and Implementation Guide No. 2019-3 areeffective

upon issuance. The objective of this Statement is to enhance comparability in the application of accounting and

financial reporting requirements and to improve the consistency of authoritative literature by addressing practice

issues that have been identified during implementation and application of certain GASB Statements. This Statement

addresses 2 varietyoftopics.

2 GASB No. 96, Subscription — Based Information Technology Arrangements, will be effective beginning with the

fiscal year ending June 30, 2023. The objective of this Statement will be to improve financial reporting by

establishing a definition for subscription-based information technology arrangements (SBITAs) and providing

uniform guidance for accounting and financial reporting for transactions that meet that definition. That definition

and uniform guidance will result in greater consistency in practice, Establishing the capitalization criteria for

implementation costs also will reduce diversity and improve comparability in fmancial reporting by governments.

This Statementalso will enhance the relevance and reliability or a government’s financial statements by requiring a

governmentto report a subscription asset and subscription liability for a SBITAand to disclose essential information

about the arrangement. The disclosures will allow uscrs to understand the scale and important aspects of a

government’s SBITAactivities and evaluate a government's obligutions and assets résulting from SBITAs.

e GASB No. 97, Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue

Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans —An Amendment ofGASB Statements No. 14 and No.84, and a

Supersession ofGASB Statement No. 32, the section that maybe applicable to the District will be effective beginning

with the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022. The objective of this Statementis to provide more consistent financial

reporting of defined contribution pension plans, defined contribution OPEB plans, and other employee benefit plans,

while mitigating the costs associated with reporting those plans. The requirements also will enhance the relevance,

consistency, and comparability of (1) the information related to Section 457 plans that meet the definition of a

pension plan and the benefits provided through those plans and (2) investment information for all Section 457 plans.
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HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL VEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 1 SUMMARYOF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES(Continued)

C, Basis of Presentation - Financial Statements

The financial statements include both district-wide financial statements (based on the District as a whole) and fund financial

statements (based on specific District activities or objectives). Both the district-wide and fund financial statements

categorize activities as either governmental activities or business-iype activities. While separate district-wide and fund

financial statements are presented, theyare interrelated, Inthe district-wide financial statements, the sovermnental activities

column incorporates data from governmental funds while business-type activities incorporate data from the District's

enterprise funds. Fiduciaryfunds are excluded from the district-wide financial statements.

Distriet-Wide Financial Statements

Thedistrict-wide financial statements (i¢., the statement ofnet position and the statementofactivities) report information on

all of the nonfiduciaryactivities of the Board of Education. All fiduciaryactivities are reported only in the fund financial

statements. For the most par, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental

activities, which normally are supported by property taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are teported separately from

business-type activities, whichrelyto a significant extent on fees and charges for support. In the statement of net position,

both the governmental and business-type activities columns (a) are presented on a consolidated basis by column, and (b)

reflect on a full accrual economic resource basis, which incorporates long-term assets and receivables as well as long-term

debt and obligations,

The statement ofactivities demonstrates the degree to whichthe direct expenses of a given function or segment are offset by

program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program

revenues include 1) charges to customers or other governmentalentities, including other schooldistricts, who purchase, use,

or directly benefit from goods orservices provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions thal are

restricted o mccting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Property taxes, unrestricted

state aid and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues,

Asa generalrule the effect of interfundactivity has been eliminated from the district-wide financial statements. Exceptions

to this generalrule are charges between the Board’s proprietary and fiduciary funds since elimination of these charges would

distort the direct costs and program revenuesreported for the various functions concerned.

Fund Financial Statements

Separate fund financial statements are provided for governmental, proprietary, and fiduciaryactivities, even though the latter

are excluded from the district-wide financial statements. The emphasis of fund financialstatements is on major individual

governmental and enterprise funds, each reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. All remaining

governmental and enterprise funds are ageregated and reported as nomnajor funds. The District considers all of its

governmental and enterprise funds to be major funds.

The District reports the following major governmental funds.

The general fund is the School District’s primary operating fund. lt accounts for all financial resources of the

District, except these to be accounted for in another fund.



HACKENSACKBOARD OFEDUCATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FORTHE FISCAL YEARENDED JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES (Continued)

C. Basis of Presentation - Financial Statements (Continued)

Fund Financial Statements (Continued)

The special revenuefund accounts for the proceeds ofspecific revenue sources legally restricted to expenditures for

specified purposes. ‘This fund accounts for federal, state and local financial programs, with the exception of grants for

major capital projects and the child nutrition programs.

The capital projectsfied accounts for the proceeds from the sale of bonds, lease purchases and other revenues used

for the acquisition or construction of capital facilities and other capital assets, other than those financed by the

proprietaryfunds.

The debt service fimd accounts for the accumulation of resources that are restricted, committed or assigned for the

payment of principaland interest on long-term generalobligation debt ofgovernmental funds.

‘The District reports the following major proprietary funds whichare organized to be self-supporting through user charges:

Thefood service fiend accounts forthe activities of the school cafeteria, which provides fond service to students as

well as a la carte and catering services for administrators, teachers and special events.

Additionally, the District reports the following fund types:

The fiduciary trust funds are used to account for resources legally held in trust for state unemployment insurance

claims and for private donations for scholarship awards. All resources of the funds, including any eamings on

invested resources, may be used to support the intended purpose. There is no requirementthat anyportion ofthese

resources be preserved as capital.

The fiduciary agencyfunds account for assets held by the District as an agent for student activities and for payroll

deductions and withholdings, The fimds for the student activities fund are solely for noninstructional student

activities that are supported and controlled by student organizations and clubs for which school administration does

not have management involvement, The payroll funds are held to remit employee withholdings to respective state,

federal and other agencies.

Activity between funds that aro representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year

are referred to as either “due to/from other funds” (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or “advancesto/from other

finds”(i.e., the non-current portion of interfund loans). All otheroutstanding balances between fundsare reported as “due

to/fram other funds”. Anyresidual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are

reported in the district-wide financial statements as “internal balances”,

Reclassifications

Certain amounts presented in the prior year data may have been reclassified im order to be consistent with the current

year’s presentation.

D. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The accounting and financial reporting treatment is determined by the applicable measurement focus and basis of

accounting. Measurement focus indicates the type of resources being measured such as current financial resources or

economic resources, The basis of accounting indicates the timing of transactions or events for recognitionin the financial

statements.
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HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEARENDED JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

D. Measurement Focus and Basis ofAccounting (Continued)

The district-wide financial siatements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus andthe accrualbasis of

accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary find fmancial statements with the exception of the agency fund which

does nol have a measurement focus. All assets,all liabilities and all deferred outflows/inflows of resources associated with

these operations (with the exception of the fiduciary funds) are included on the Statement of Net Position. Revenues are

recorded when earned and expenses are recordedat the timeliabilities are incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash

flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which theyare levied. Grants and similar ttems are

recognized as revenue as soonasall eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the

modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual (ie. when theyare both

measurable and available). Revenues are considered to be available when theyare collectible within the current period or

soon enough thereafier to payliabilities of the current period. Forthis purpose, the Board considers revenues to be available

if theyare collected within 60 days after year-end. Expenditures are recorded whena liability is incurred, as under accrual

basis of accounting, with the exception of debt service expenditures as well as expenditures related to compensated absences

andclaims and judgments which are recorded only when paymentis due. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as

expenditures in governmental funds. Issuance of long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other

financing sources.

Propertytaxes, tuition, facility rental fees, unrestricted state aid, and interest associated with the currentfiscal period are all

considered lo be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period, Entitlements

(formula-type grants and aid) are recorded as revenues when all eligibility requirements are met, including any time

requirements, and the amount is received during the period or within the availability period for this revenue source.

Expenditure-driven grants and similar awards (reimbursement-type grants and awards) are recognized as revenue when the

qualifying expenditures have been incurred and all other eligibility requirements imposed by the grantor or provider have

been met, and the amountis received during the period or within the availability period for this revenue source. All other

revenueitems are considered to he measurable and available only whencashis received by the District,

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use,it is the Board’s policy to userestricted resources first,

then unrestricted resources as they are needed,

E. Assets. Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balance

1, Cash, Cash Equivalents andInvestments

Cash and cash équivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term investments with original

maturities of three months or less fromthe date of acquisition.

Investmentsare reported at fair value and are limited by N.J.S.A. 18A:20-37.

2. Receivables

All receivables are reported at their gross value, and where appropriate, are reduced by theestimated portion thal is expected

to be uncollectible.

3. Inventories

The cost of inventories ofthe governmental fundtypes are recorded as expenditures at the time individual inventory items

are purchased.

Food Service Fund inventories, exclusive of the federal commodities, are valued at cost, using the first-in first-out (FIFO)

method and consist offood and expendable supplies. The cost of such inventories is recorded as expenses when consumed

rather than when purchased. The United States Departmentof Agriculture (U SDA) commodity portion of the Food Service

Fund inventory consists offood donated by the USDA. Itis valued at estimated market prices by the USDA. The amount of

unused commodities inventory at year-end is reported as deferred inflows of resources.
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HACKENSACKBOARD OF EDUCATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCTAL STATEMENTS

FORTHE FISCAL YEARENDED JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES(Continued)

E. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows ofResources, and Net Position/Fund Balance (Continued)

4, Capital Assets

Capital asscts, which include property, plant and equipment, are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type

activilies columns in the district-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the Board as assets with an initial,

individual cost of $2,000 and an estimated useful life in excess oftwo years. ‘The District was able to estimate the historical

cost for the initial reporting ofthese capital assets through back trending. As the District constructs or acquires additional

‚capital asscts each period, they are capitalized and reported at historical cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at

acquisition value at the date of donation. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the

asset or materially extendits usefullife are not capitalized.

Majoroutlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest incurred during the

construction phase ofcapital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized value of the assels

constructed,

Land and construction in progress are not depreciated. ‘The other property, plant, and equipmentofthe District is depreciated

using the straight line method overthe following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years

Buildings 40

Building Improvements 7-2

Furniture, Equipment and Vehicles 5-20

5. Deferred Ontflows/Inflows ofResources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of

resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resourees, represents a consumption of net

position that applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until

then, The Board has one item which arise only under the accrual basis of accounting that qualifies for reporting in this

category. The item that qualifies for reporting in this category is the deferred amounts on net pension liability. Deferred

amounts on net pension liability are reported in the district-wide statement of net position and result from: (1) differences

between expected and actual experience; (2) changes in assumptions; (3) net difference between projected and actual

investment earnings on pension plan investments; (4) changes in proportion and differences between employer contributions

and proportionate share of contributions; and (5) contributions made subsequent to the measurement date, These amounts

are deferred and amortized over future years.

In additionto liabilities, the statementof financial position will sometimes report aseparate section for deferred inflows of

resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows ofresources, represents an acquisition of nel position

that applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as an inflowofresources (revenue) until thattime. The Board has

one type whicharise only under the accrual basis of accounting that qualifies for reporting in this category. The tem that

qualifies for reporting in this category are the deferred amounts on net pension liability. Deferred amounts on net pension

liability are reported in the district-wide statement of net position and result from: (1) differences between expected and

actual experience: (2) changes in assumptions, (3) net difference between projected and actual investment earnings on

pension plan investments; and (4) changes in proportion and differences between employer contributions and proportionate

share of contributions, These amounts are deferred and amortized over future years.
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES(Continued)

E. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows ofResources, and Net Position/Fund Balance (Continued)

6. CompensatedAbsences

It is the District’s policy to permit employees to accumulate (with certain restrictions) earned but unused vacation and sick

leave benefits. A long-termliability of accumulated vacation and sick leave and salary related payments has been recorded

in the governmental activities in the district-wide financial statements, representing the Board’s commitment to fund such

costs from future operations. Proprietary Funds accrue accumulated vacation and sick leave and salaryrelated payments in

the period that they are earned. A liability is reported in the governmental funds onlyto the amount actually due at year end

as a result ofemployee resignations and retiremenis.

7. Pensions

In the district-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, for purposes of

measuring the net pension hability, deferred outtlows of resources and deferred inflows ofresources related to pensions, and

ension expense, information about the fiduciary net position ofthe retirementsystems sponsored and administered by the

state ofNewJerseyand additions to/deductions fromtheseretirement systems’ fiduciary net position have been determined

on the same basis as theyare reported bytheretirement systems. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of

employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are

reported at fair value.

In the governmental fund financial staternents, net pension liabilities representamounts normally expected to be liquidated

with expendable available financial resources for required pension contributions that are due and payable at year end,

Pension expenditures are recognized based on contractual pension contributions that are required to be made to the pension

plan during thefiscal year.

8. Long-Term Obligations

In the district-wide financial statements, and proprietaryfund types in the fund financial statements, long-term debt and other

long-term obligations are reported as Habilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-lype activities, or

proprietary fund type statementofnet position. Bond premiumsare deferred and amortized overthe life of the bonds using

the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported with the unamortized bond premium. Bondissuance costs (other

than for prepaid msurance) are treated as an expense.

In the fund financial statements, governmental eve recognize bond premiums, as well as bond issuance costs, during

the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources, Premiums received on debt

issuances are reported as other financing sources, Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds

received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

9. Net Position’Fund Balance

District-Wide Siatements

In the district-wide statements, there are three classes of net position:

+ Net Investmentin Capital Assets — consists of net capital assets (cost less accumulated depreciation) reduced by

outstanding balances of related debt obligations from the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets.

Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources attributable to the acquisition, construction or

improvementofthose assets or related debt also should be included.

+ Restricted Net Position — reports net position when constraints placed on the residual amount of noncapital assets

are either externally imposed by ein (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or

regulations of other governments, or imposed bylawthrough constitutional provisions or enabling legislation,

© Unrestricted Net Fosition — any portion of net position not already classified as either net Investmentin capital

assets or net position — restricted is classified as netposition — unrestricted.
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

E, Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balance (Continued)

9. Net Position/Fund Balance (Continued)

Governmental Fund Statements

Fund balance categories are designed to make the nature and extentof the constraints placed on the District’s fund balance

more transparent. ‘These categories are comprised of a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the District is bound

to observe constraints imposed upon the use of the resources reported in governmental funds.

Restricted Fund Balance — Amounts constrained to specific purposes bytheir providers (such as grantors, bondholders, and

higherlevels ofgovernment), through constitutional provisions, or by enabling legislation.

Capital Reserve — This restriction was created by the Districtin accordance with NJAC 6A:23A-14.1 (o fund future

capital expenditures (See Note 2C).

Capital Reserve - Designated for Subsequent Year's Expenditures — This designation was created to dedicate the portion

of capital reserve fund balance appropriated in the adopted 2020/2021 District budget certified for taxes.

Maintenance Reserve — This restriction was created by the Board in accordance with NIAC GA:23A-14.2 to

accumulate fumds for the required maintenance of schoolfacilities in accordance with the EFCA (NISA 18A;7G-9)

for a thorough and efficient education, (See Note 2D),

Emergency Reserve — This restriction was created in accordance with NIAC 6A:23A-14,4(A}1 to accumulate funds in

accordance with State statute to finance wnanticipated general fund expenditures required for a thorough and efficient

education, (See Note 2E).

Excess Surplus — This restriction was created in accordance with NISA 18A:7F-7 to represent the June 30, 2020

audited excess surplusthat is required to be appropriated in the 2021/2022 original budget certified for taxes.

Excess Surplus — Designated for Subsequent Year's Expencfitures - This restriction was created in accordance with

NJSA 18.A:7F-7 to representthe June 30, 2019 andited excess surplus that was appropriated in the 2020/2021 original

budget certified for taxes.

Debt Service — Represents fund balancerestricted specificallyfor the repayment of long-term debt principal and interest

in the Debt Service Fund.

Assigned Fund Balance — Amounts a government intends to use for a specific purpose; intent can be expressed by the

governing bodyor by an official or body to which the governing body delegates the authority.

Year-End Encumbrances — Represent outstanding purchase orders for goods or services approved by management for

specific purposes from available resources of the current year for which the goods and materials have not yet been

received or the services have not yet been rendered at June 30.

Desienated for Subsequent Year's Expenditures — This designation was created to dedicate the portion of fund balance

appropriated in the adopted 2020/2021 District budgetcertified fortaxes,
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

E. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balance (Continued)

9. NetPosition¿Fund Balance (Continued)

Governmental Fund Statements (Continued)

Unassigned Fund Balance — Represents fund balance that has not been restricted, committed or assigned lo specific

purposes within the governmental finds.

In the general operating fund and other governmental funds(capital projects and debt service fund types), it is the District’s

policy Lo consider restricted resources to have been spent first when an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both

restricted and unrestricted (i.e., committed, assigned or unassigned) fund balances are available, followed by committed and

then assigned fund balances. Unassigned amounts are used onlyafter the other resources have been used.

10. Fund Balance Policies

Fund balance of governmental funds is reported in various categories based on the nature of anylimitations requiring the use

of resources for specific purposes. The governmentitself can establish limitations on the use of resources through either a

commitment (committed fund balance) or an assignment(assigned fund balance).

The committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can be used onlyfor the specific purposes determined by a

formalaction of the government’s highest level of decision-making authority. The Board ofTrustees is the highest level of

decision-making authorityfor the governmentthat can, by adoption of a resolution or formal Board action prior to the end of

the fiscal year, commit find balance. Once adopted,the limitation imposed bytheresolution remains in place until a similar

action is laken (the adoption of another resolution) to removeorrevise the limitation. The District has no committed fund

balances at year end.

Amountsin the assigned fund balanceclassification are intended to be used bythe governmentfor specific purposes but do

not meet the criteria to be classified as committed. The Board has authorized the School Business Administrator/Board

Seeretary to assign fund balance. The Board may also assign fund balance as it does when appropriating fund balanceto

cover a gap between estimated revenue and appropriations in the subsequent year’s appropriated budget. Unlike

commitments, assignments generally only exist temporarily. In other words, an additional action does not normallyhave to

be taken for the removal of an assignment, Conversely, as discussed above, an additionalactionis essential to cither remove

or revise a commitment.

F. Revenues and Expenditures/Expenses

I. Program Revenues

Amounts reported as program revenues in the district-wide statement of activities include 1) charges to customers or

applicants for goods or services, provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions.

Internally dedicated resourcesare reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues, Likewise, general revenues

include all propertytaxes, unrestricted state aid, investment earnings and miscellaneous revenues.
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NOTE 1 SUMMARYOF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTINGPOLICIES (Continued)

F, Revenues and Expenditures/Expenses (Continued)

2, Property Taxes

Property taxes are levied pursuant to law and are collected by the municipality and are transferred to the District as

requested. Property tax revenues are recognized in the year they are levied and become available. Property taxes collected

in advance of the year-end for which they are levied and transferred to the District are reported as deferred inflows of

resources, The tax bills are mailed annually in June bythe municipal tax collector and are levied and due in four quarterly

installments on August 1, November 1, February 1 and May | of the fiscal year, When unpaid, taxes or any other municipal

lien, or part thereof, on real property, remains in arrears on April 1% in the year following the calendar year levy when the

same became in arrears, the tax collector of the municipality shall, subject to the provisions ofNewJersey Statute, enforce

the lien by placing the property on a tax sale. The municipality may institute annual“in rem” tax foreclosure proceedings ta

enforce the tax collection or acquisition oftitle to the property.

3. Tuition Revenues andExpenditures

Tuition Revenues - Tuition charges wereestablished by the Board of Education based on estimated costs. The charges are

subject to adjustment whenthe final costs are determined and certified by the State Department of Education.

Tuition Expenditures - Tuition charges for the fiscal years 2018-2019 and 2019-2020 were based on rates established by the

receiving district, These rates are subject to change when the actual costs have been certified by the State Department of

Education.

4. Proprietary Funds, Operating andNonoperating Revenues andExpenses

Proprictary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses

generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprictary fund’s

principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the food service enterprise fund are charges to customers

for sales and services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative

expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as

nonoperating revenues and expenses. Federal and State subsidies forthe food service operation are considered nonoperating

TEVEQUCS.:

NOTE2 STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. Budgetary Information

In accordance with the requirements ofthe NewJersey Department of Education (“the Department”), the District annually

preparesits operating budget for the forthcoming year. The budget, exceptfor the general fund and special revenue fund,

which is more fully explained below and in the notes to the required supplementary information, is prepared in accordance

with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and serves as a formal plan for expenditures

and the proposed means for financing them. Capital lease transactions are accounted for on the GAAP hasis.

The annual budget is adopted in the spring of the preceding year for the general, special revenue and debt service funds. The

District is not required to adopt an annual budget for the capital projects fund. The budget is submitted to the county

superintendent for review and approvalprior to adoption. The annual budgetis yoted upon at the annual school election on

the third Tuesday in April.
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NOTE 2 STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY(Continued)

A. Budgetary Information (Continued)

Budget adoptions and amendments are recorded in the District's board minutes. The budget is amended by the Board of

Trustees as needed throughoutthe year. The budget for revenues, other resources, other uses, and fund balances is preparcd

by fund source and amount. The budget for expenditures is prepared by fund, program, function, object and amount. The

legal level of budgetary control is established at the line item account within each fund, Line item accounts are defined as

the lowest (most specific) level of detail as established pursuant to the minimumchart of accounts referenced in N.J.A,C.

6:20-2A.2(m)l. The Board approved several budget transfers during 2019/2020, Also, during 2019/2020 the Board

increased the original budget by $3,507,814, The increase was funded byadditional grant awards and the reappropriation of

prior year general fund encumbrances,

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting systemis employed as a management control device during the year. For

governmental funds there are no substantial differences between the budgetary basis of accounting and accounting principles

generallyaccepted in the United States of America, with the exception of the legally mandated revenue recognition of certain

state aid payments for budgetary purposes only and the treatment of encumbrances in the special revenue fund as described

in the Notes to Required Supplementary Information (RSI). Encumbrance accountingis also employed as an extension of

formal budgetary integrationin the governmental [und types. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

Eneumbrance accounting is employed in the governmental funds. Under encumbrance accounting, purchase orders,

contracts and other commitments for the expenditure of resources are recorded to reserve a portion of the applicable

appropriation. Open encumbrances in governmental fimds other than the special revenue fund are reported as committed

and/or assigned fund balances at fiscal year end as they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities but rather commitments

related to unperformed contracts for goods and services whichare reappropriated and honored during the subsequentfiscal

year.

B. Deficit Fund Equity

The District has an unassigned fund deficit of $508,601 in the General Fund as of June 30, 2020 as reported in the fund

financial statements (modified accrual basis), NJSA 18A:22-44.2 providesthat in theevent a state schoolaid payment is not

made until the following school budget year, districts must record these delayed state aid payments as revenue, for budget

purposes only, in the current school budget year. The statute provides legal authority for school districts to recognize this

revenue in the current budget year. GASB Statement No, 33, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange

Transactions”, requires that intergovernmental transactions (revenue, expendilurc, asset, liability) should be recognized in

symmetry(‘-e., if one government recognizes anasset,the other government recounizes a liability), Since the State ofNew

Jersey is recording cerlain 2019/2020 budgeted state aid payments in the subsequent fiscal year, the school district cannot

recognize such payments on the GAAP(fund) financial statements until the year the State records the payable. Due to the

timing difference of recording these delayed state aid payments, the General Fund deficit does not alone indicate that the

District is facing financialdifficulties; however, unless the State ofNewJersey budgets the delayed payments in future years,

the District may also report fund deficits in the future.

Pursuant to NISA 184:22-44.2, any negative unreserved, undesignated (i.e., unassigned) general fund balance that is

reported as a direct result of a delay in the payment of state aid until the following fiscal year, is nol considered as a violation

of NewJersey Statute or regulation and is not considered an item in need of corrective action, The District deficit in the

GAAP(fund) financial statements of $508,601 in the General Fundis less than the delayed state aid payments at June 30,

2020.
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NOTE2 STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (Continued)

C. Capital Reserve

A capital reserve account was established by the District. The accumulation of funds will be used for capital outlay

expendituresin subsequentfiscal years. The capital reserve is maintained in the generalfund and its activity is included in

the general fund annual budget.

Funds placed in the capital reserve are restricted to capital projects in the district's approved Long Range Facilities Plan

(LREP), Upon submission of the LRFP to the Department, a district may increase the balance in the capital reserve by

appropriating funds in the annual general [und budget certified for taxes or by transfer by board resolution at year end ofany

unanticipated revenue or unexpended line-item appropriation amounts or both, A district may also appropriate additional

amounts when the express approval of the voters has been obtained either by a separate proposal at budget time or by a

special question at one of the fourspecial elections authorized pursuant to N.J.8.A, 19:60-2. Pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6:23A-

14.1(y), the balance in the reserve cannot at any time exceed the local support costs of uncompleted capital projects in its

approved LRFP.

Theactivity ofthe capital reserveforthefiscal year ended June 30, 2020is as follows:

Balance, July 1, 2019 $ 7,753,406

Increased by

Interest Earnings $5 47,652

Deposits Approved by Board Resolution 3,000,000

Total Increases 3,047,652

10,801,058

Decreased by:

Withdrawals Approved in District Budget 1,664,000

Balance, June 30, 2020 $ 9,137,058

The withdrawals from the capital reserve were for use in a department approved facilities project, consistent with the

district’s Long Range Facilities Plan. $2,826,605 of the capital reserve balance at June 30, 2020 was designated and

appropriated for use in the 2020/2021 original budgetcertifiedfor taxes.

D, Maintenance Reserve

A maintenance reserve account was established by the District. The accumulation of funds will be used for required

maintenance ofschool facilities expenditures in subsequentfiscal years. The maintenance reserve is maintained in the

General Fund andits activity is included in the General Fund annual budget.

Funds placed in the maintenance reserve are restricted lo required maintenance activities for a school facility as reported in

the comprehensive maintenance plan. A District may appropriate funds into the maintenance reserve in the annual General

Fund budgetcertified for taxes or bytransfer by board resolution at year end of any unanticipated revenue or unexpended

line item appropriation amounts or both. Pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:23A-14,2(g), the balance in the reserve cannot at any time

exceed four percent of the replacementcost ofthe schooldistrict's schoolfacilities for the current year,
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NOTE 3 STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY(Continued)

D. Maintenance Reserve (Continued)

The activity of the maintenance reserve forthe fiscal year ended June 30, 2020is as follows:

Balance, July 1, 2019 $ 765,331

Increased by

Interest Earnings 6,608

Deposits Approved by Board Resolution 1,000,000

1,006,608

1,771,939

Decreased by:

Withdrawals Approved in District Budget 761,306

Balance, June 30, 2020 $ 1,0 10,633

“The June 30, 2020 comprehensive maintenance plan indicated a maximum maintenance reserve amount of$7,510,326. The

withdrawals from Ihe maintenance reserve were for use in required maintenanceactivities for schoolfacilities.

E. Emergency Reserve

An emergency reserve account was established by the District, The accumulation of funds will be used to finance

unanticipated General Fund current expenditures required for a thorough and efficient education in subsequent fiscal years.

Funds placed in the emergency reserve are restricted lo finance reasonably unforeseeable costs and shall not include

additional costs due to poor planning, A District may appropriate funds into the ernergencyreserve in (he annual General

Fundbudget certified for taxes or by transfer by board resolution at ycar end ofany unanticipaled revere or unexpended

line item appropriation amounts or both. Withdrawals from the reserve require the approval of the Commissioner unless the

withdrawal is necessary to meet an increase in total health care costs in excess of four percent or the withdrawal is included

in the original budget certified for taxes to finance school security improvements to school facilities pursuant to 18A:7G-

4(c)l. Pursuant to NJAC 6A:23A4-14.4(A), the balance in the reserve cannot at any time excced the greater of $250,000 or

one percentof the schooldistrict's General Fund budgetas certified for taxes up to a maximum of$1,000,000.

Theactivity ofthe emergencyreserve for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 is as follows:

Balance, July 1, 2019 $ 2,335

Increased by

Deposits Approved by Board Resolution 300,000

Decreased by:

Withdrawals Approved in District Budget 2,335

Balance, June 36, 2020 $ 300,000
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NOTE 3 STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (Continued)

F, Calculation of Excess Surplus

In accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-7, as amended, the restricted fumd balance for Excess Surplus is a required

calculation pursuant to the New Jersey Comprehensive Educational Improvement and Financing Act of 1996 (CEIFA).

New Jersey schooldistricts are required to restrict General Fund fund balance in exeess of 2% of budget expenditures at

the fiscal year end of June 30 if they did not appropriate a required minimum amount as budgeted fund balance in their

subsequent year’s budget. The excess fund balance at June 30, 2020 is $5,433,995. Of this amount, $1,712,365 was

designated and appropriated in the 2020/2021 original budget certified for taxes and the remaining amount of $3,721,630

will be appropriated in the 2021/2022 original budgetcertified for taxes.

NOTE 3 DETAILED NOTES ON ALLFUNDS

A. Cash Deposits and Investments

Cash Deposits

The Board's deposits are insured through either the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC), National Credit Union

Share Insurance Fund (NCUSIF), Securities Investor Protection Corporation (SIPC) or New Jersey's Governmental Unit

Deposit Protection Act (GUDPA). The Board is required to deposit their funds in a depository which is protecting such

funds pursuant to GUDPA. The New Jersey Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act requires all banks doing business in

the State ofNew Jerscy to pledge collateral equal to at least 5% of the average amountofits public deposits and 100% ofthe

average amount of its public funds in excess of the lesser of 75% of its capital funds or $200 million for all deposits not

covered by the FDIC and NCUSIF.

Bank balances are insured up to $250,000 in the aggregate by the FDIC for each bank. NCUSIP insures credit union

accounts up to $250,000 in the aggregate for each financial institution. SIPC replaces cash claims up to a maximum of

$250,000 for each failed brokerage firm. At June 30, 2020, the book value of the Board's deposits were $21,191,750 and

bank and brokerage firm balances of the Board’s deposits amounted to $22,366,679. The Board's deposits which are

displayed onthe various fund balance sheets as "cash" or “cash and cash equivalents” are categorized as:

Depository Account

Insured $ 22,366,679

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits — Custodial credit risk is the risk thal in the event of a bank failure, the government's

deposits may not be returned to it. The Board does not have a policy for custodial credit risk. As of June 30, 2020 none

ofthe Board’s bank balances were exposed to custodial creditrisk.

Investments

The Board is permitted to invest public funds in accordance with the types of securities authorized by N_ISA, 18A:20-37.

Examples of the allowable investments are bonds or other obligations © the United States or obligations guaranteed by the

United States of America; Government Money Market Mutual Funds; anyobligation that a federal agency or a federal

instrumentality has issued in accordance with an act of Congress, which security has a maturity date not greater than 397

days from the date of purchase, provided that such obligations bear a fixed rate of interest not dependent on any index or

other external factor: bonds or other obligations of the schooldistrict or bonds or other obligations of the local unit or units

within which the school district is located: Bondsor other obligations, having a maturity date of not more than 397 days from

the date of purchase, issued by New Jersey school districts, municipalities, counties, and entities subject to the “Local

Authorities Fiscal Control Law.” (C.40A:5A-1 et seq.); Other bondsor obligations having a maturity date not more than 397

days from the date of purchase may be approved by the Division of Investment in the Department of the Treasuryfor

invesiment by school districts; Local Government investment pools; deposits with the State of New Jersey Cash

Management Fund established pursuant to section 1 ofPL, 1977, 0,281 (C.52:1 84-90.4): and agreements for the repurchase

of fullycollateralized securities,iftransacted in accordance with the above statute.

As ofJune 30, 2020, the Board had no outstanding investments.
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NOTE 3 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS(Continued)

A. Cash Deposits and Investments (Continued)

Interest Rate Risk — The Board does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means of

managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.

CreditRisk — State lawlimits investments as noted above (N.J.S.A. 184:20-37). The District does not have an investment

policy that would further limit its investment choices.
 

ConcentrationofCredit Risk — The Board places no limit in the amountthe District may invest in anyone issuer,

Investment and interest earnings in the Capital Projects Fund arc assigned to the General Fund in accordance with Board

policy.

B. Receivables

Receivables as of June 30, 2020 for the district’s individual major funds, nonmajor, internal service, and fiduciary funds

in the aggregate, including the applicable allowancesfor uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

 

 

Special Food
General Revenue Service Total

Recelvables:
Intergoyermmental-

Federal 5 306,220 $ 157,388 5 463,608

State 5 184.314 7,141 1,519 192,974

Local 1,492,444 1,492,444

Accounts = _ - 15,398 15,398

Gross Receivables 1,676,758 313,361 174,305 2,164,424

Less: Allowance tor =

Uncollectibles E >

Net Total Receivables $ 1,676,758 $ 313,361 $ 174305 $ 2,164,424

C. Unesarned Revenue

Governmental funds report unearned revenue in connection with resources that have been received, but not yet earned. At

the end ofthe currentfiscal year, the various components of unearned revenue reported in the governmental funds were as

follows:

Special Revenue Fund
Unencumbered Grant Draw Downs 340,073

Grant Draw Downs Reserved for Encumbrances 163,020

Total Unearned Revenue for Governmental Funds $ 503,003
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NOTE 3 DETAILED NOTES ONALL FUNDS (Continued)

D. Capital Assets

Capitalassetactivityforthe fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 was as follows:

Governmental Activities:

Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated:

Land

Total Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated

Capital Assets, Being Depreciated:

Buildings and Building Improvements
Machineryand Equipment

Total Capital Assels Being Depreciated

Less Accumulated Depreciation for:

Buildings and Building Improvements
Equipment

Total Accumulated Depreciation

Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated, Net

Governmental Activities Capital Assets, Net

Business-Type Activities:
Capital Assets, Being Depreciated:

Buildings and Building Improvements
Equipment

Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated

Less Accumulated Depreciation for:

Buildings and Building Improvements

Equipment

Total Accumulated Depreciation

Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated, Net

Business-Type Activities Capital Assets, Net

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Balance, Balance,

July 1, 2019 Increases Decreases June 30. 2020

5 68.800 - - $ 68,800

68,500 - - _ 68,800

50,354,955 $ 1,391,111 51,746,066

6,127,010 897,097 - 7,024,107

__56481965 2,288,208 - 58,770,173

(28,453,551) (1,358,793) (29,812,344) *

(4,465,941) (423,884) - (4,889,825)

(32,919,492) (1,782,677) - (34,702,169)

23,562,473 505,531 - 24,068,004

$23,631,273 $ 505,591 $ - $5 24,136,804

$ 188,123 204,098 5 392,221

583,802 $ 27,519 = 611,321

771,925 231,617 - 1,003,542

(60,369) (12,074) (72,443)

(328,851) (30,687) - (359,538)

(389,220) (42,761) = (431,981)

382,705 188,856 . 571,561

$ 382,705 $ 188,856 $ - $ 571,561
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NOTE 3 DETATLED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS(Continued)

D, Capital Assets (Continued)

Depreciation expense was charged to finctions/programs of the District as follows:

Governmental Activities:

Instruction

Regular Instruction

Special Education Instruction

Other Instruction
School-Sponsored Activities and Athletics

Total Instruction

Support Services

Student and Instruction Related Services

General Administrative Services

School Administrative Services

Central Services and Info. Technology
Plant Operations and Maintenance

Pupil Transportation

Total Support Services

Total Governmental Funds

Business-Type Activitics:

Food Service Fund

Total Depreciation Expense-Business-Type Activities

82,107
36,018
4,533

67,787

190,445

27,345
1,612

10,048
113,943

1,419,760
19,524

1,592,232

_1,782,677

5

42,761

> 42,761
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NOTE 3 DETAILED NOTES ON ALLFUNDS(Continued)

D. Capital Assets (Continued)

Construction and Other Significant Commitments

The District has the following active construction projects as of June 30, 2020:

 

 

 

Remaining

Project
Commitment

Various Schools Power Washing $ 57,320

TurfFicld
547,22]

Construction Services of HS Locker/Fieldhouse Storage 63,929

Construction Services HS Rear Cafe Entrance 20250

Total
5 688,720

E. Interfund Receivables, Payables. and Transfers

The composition of interfund balances as ofJune 30, 2020,is as follows:

Due To/From Other Funds

Receivable Fund _ Payable Fund - Amount

Unemployment Compensation Trust Fund General Fund $ 1.000.000

The above balancesare the result of budget appropriations raised in one fund which are due to another fund.

The District expects all interfund balances to be liquidated within oneyear.

Interfund Transfers

Transfer In:

General Special

Fund Revenue Total

Transfer Out:
General Fund $ 411,499 § 411,499

General Capital Projects $ 1,877 - 1877

S 1877

$

411,499 $ 413,376
 

 

The abovetransfers are the result of revenues earned in one fund to finance expenditures in another fund.
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NOTE3 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS(Continued)

F, Leases

Operating Leases

‘The District leases various office and medical equipment under noncancelable operating leases. Lease paymentsfor the

fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 were $660,215. The future minimum lease payments for these operating leases are as

follows:
Fiscal

Year Ended

June 30, Amount

2021 $ 666,534

2022 678,159
2023 674,450

Total $ 2019143

Capital Leases

TheDistrict is leasing a phone system, buses and copiers totaling $1,416,1 16 under capital leases. The leases are for

terms of4 to 5 years.

The capital assets acquired through capital leases are as follows:

Governmental

Activities

Building Improvements $ 800,000

Machinery and Equipment 616,116

Total 5 1,416,116

The future minimum lease obligations and the net present value of these minimum lease payments as of June 30, 2020

were as follows:

Fiseal Year

Ending Governmental

Tune 30, Activities

2021 $ 330,843

2022 330,843
2023 330,843

Total minimum lease payments 992,529

Less; amount representing interest (50,715)

Present value of minimum lease payments 941,814
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NOTE 3 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

F. Leases (Continued)

Lease Purchase Agreements

The District has entered into lease purchase agreements totaling $2,424,000 for the purchase of chrombooks and various |

information technology supplies. The leases are for terms of 4 years,

The future minimum lease obligations and the net present value of these minimum lease payments as of June 30, 2019

were as follows:

Fiscal Year

Ending Governmental

June 30, Activities

2021 $ 345,211

Less: amount representing interest (6,724)

Present value of minimum lease payments 5 338,487
 

G. Lons-Term Debt

 

General Obligation Bonds

The Board issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of major capitalfacilities

and other capital assets or other purposes permitted bystatute. The full faith and credit of the Board are inrevocably

pledged for the paymentof the principal of the bonds and the interest thereon. At June 30, 2020 there were no bonds

payable.

Statutorv Borrowing Powereee

The Board's remaining borrowing power under N.J.S. 184:24-19, as amended,at June30, 2020 was as follows:

4%, of Equalized Valuation Basis (Municipal) $ 233,145,744

Legs: Net Debt
=
 

Remaining Borrowing Power $ 233,145,744
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TI. Other Long-Term Liabilities

Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

Long-term liability activityfor the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, was as follows:

   

 

 

Due

Balance, Balance, Within

July 1, 2019 Additions Reductions June 30, 2020 One Year

Governmental Activities:

Bonds Payable $ 595,000 5 595,000 $ -

Add: Unamortized Premium 42,154 = 42,154 - -

Tots] Bonds Payable 637.154 - 637,154 - -

Capilal Leases $ 635,343 $ 616,116 $ 309,645 941,814 $ 305,709

Lease-Purchase Agrecments 992,025 653,538 338,187 338,487

Compensated Absences 3,402,465 504,055 2898412 289.841

Net Pension Liability 25.847.699 s 2,719,044 26,128,655 =

Governmental Activity

Long-TermLiabilitics $ 34,514,686 5 616,116 À 4,823,434 § 30,307,368 $ 934,037
   

For the governmental activities, the liabilities for capital leases, lease-purchase agreements, compensated absences and net

pensionliability are generally liquidated by the general fund.

NOTE 4 OTHER INFORMATION

A. Risk Management

The Distriet is exposed to various risks ofloss related to properly, general liability, automobile coverage, theft of, damage to

and destructionofassets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; student accident, termination of employees and natural

disasters. The Board has obtained commercial insurance coverage to guard against these events to minimize the exposure to

the District should they occur. A complete schedule of insurance coverage can be found in thestatistical section of this

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

The District is a member of the NewJersey School Insurance Group (NJSIG or Group). The Groupis a risk sharing public

entity pool, established for the purposeofinsuring against worker's compensation claims.

The relationship between the Board and the Group is governed by a contract and by-laws that have been adopted by

resolution of each unit's governing body. The Board is contractually obligated to make all annual and supplementary

contributions to the Group, to report claims on a timely basis, cooperate with the management of the Group, its claims

administrator and attorneys in claimsinvestigation and settlement, and to follow risk managementprocedures as outlined by

the Group, Members have a contractualobligation to find any deficit of the Groupattributable to a membership year during

whichthey were a member.
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NOTE 4 OTHER INFORMATION(Continued)

A. Risk Management (Continued)

NISIG provides its members with risk management services, including the defense of and settlement of claims and to

establish reasonable and necessary loss reduction and prevention procedures to be followed by Ihe members. Complete

financial statements of the respective insurance fund is onfile with the School's Business Administrator.

There has been no significant reduction in insurance coveragefromthe previous year nor have there been any settlements in

excess of insurance coverage’s in anyofthe prior three years.

The District has elected to find its New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance underthe “Benefit Reimbursement

Method”. Underthis plan the District is required to reimburse the NewJersey Unemployment Trust Fund for benefits paid

to its former employees and chargedto its accountwith the State. The Districtis billed quarterly for amounis due to the

State. The following is a summary of District contributions, employee contributions, reimbursements to the State for

benefits paid and the ending balance ofthe Distriet’s fiduciary trust fund forthe current and previous two years:

  

Fiscal

Year Ended District Employee Amount Ending

June 30 Contributions Contributions Reimbursed Balance

2020 1,000,000 $ 90,935 $ 185,687 5 995,967

2019 None 87,371 215,681 90,311

2018 None 84,289 126,136 217,393

B. Contingent Liabilities

TheDistrict is a party defendant in some lawsuits, none of a kind unusual for a school district of its size and scope of

operation, In the opinion of the Board's Attorney the potential claims against the District not covered by insurance policies

would not materially affect the financial condition of the District.

Federal and State Awards — The Board participates in a number of federal and state programs that are fully or partially

funded by grants received from other governmental units. Expenditures financed by grants are subject to andit by the

appropriate grantor government, If expenditures aredisallowed duc to noncompliance with grant programregulations, the

Board may be required to reimburse the grantor government. As ofJune 30, 2020, significant amounts of grant expenditures

have not been audited by the various grantor agencies but the Board believes that disallowed expenditures, ifany, based on

subsequent audits will not have a material effect on any of the individual governmental funds or the overall financial position

ofthe District. :

C. Federal Arbitrage Regulations

The District is subject lo Section 148 of the Internal Revenue Codeasit pertains to the arbitrage rebate on all tax-exempt

obligations, both long and short-term debt. Under the 1986 Tax Reform Act, the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) required

that all excess earnings from investment proceeds berebated to the IRS. Arbitrage, for purposes of these regulations,is

defined as the difference between the yield on the investment and the yield on theobligations issued. If there are excess

earnings, this amount may be required to be rebated to the IRS. At June 30, 2020, the District has not estimated its arbitrage

earnings due to the IRS,if any.
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NOTE 4 OTHER INFORMATION(Continued)

D. Employee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans

Plan Deseriptions and Benefits Provided

The State of NewJersey sponsors and administers the following contributory defined benefit public employee retirement

systems (retirement systems) covering substantiallyall Board employees who are eligible for pension coverage:

Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) — Established in January 1955, underthe provisions of N.J.S.A, 43:15A to

provide coverage, to substantiallyall full time employees of the State or any county, municipality, school district, or public

agencyprovided the employee is nota member of another State-administered retirement system, Membership is mandatory

for such employees. PERS is a cost sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plan. For additional information

about PERS,please refer to the State Division of Pension and Benefits (Division’s) Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

(CAFR) which can be found at www.state.nj.usftreasury/pensions,

‘The vesting and benefit provisions are set by N.I.S.A. 43:15A. PERS providesretirement, death, and disability benefits. All

benefits vest afler ten years ofservice, except for medical benefits, which vest after 25 years ofservice or underthe disability

provisions ofPERS.

The following represents the membership tiers for PERS:

 
Tier Definition

1 Members who were enrolled prior ta July 1, 2007

2 Members who wereeligible to enroll on orafter July |, 2007 and prior to November 2, 2008

3 Members whowere eligible to enroll on or after November 2, 2008 and prior to May 22, 2010

4 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after May 22, 2010 and prior to June 28, 2011

5 Members who were eligible 10 enroll an or afler June 28, 2011

Service retirement benefits of 1/55" offinal averagesalary for each yearofservice credit is available to tier 1 and 2 members

upon reaching age 60 and to tier 3 members uponreaching age 62. Service retirement benefits of 1/60" of final average

salary for each year of service credit is available to tier 4 members upon reached age 62 and ticr 5 members upon reaching

age 65. Earlyretirement benefits are available to tier 1 and 2 members before reaching age 60, tier 3 and 4 members with 25

or more years of service credit before age 62, and tier 3 members with 30 or more years of service credit before age 65.

Benefits are reduced by a fraction of a percent for each month that a memberretires prior to the age at which a member can

receive full carly retirement benefits in accordance with tbeir respective tier. Tier 1 members can receive an unreduced

benefit from age 35 to age 60ifthey have at leasi 25 years of service. Deferred retirementis available to members who have

at least ten years ofservice credit and have not reached the serviceretirement age forthe respective tier.

Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) — Established in January 1955, under the provisions of N.J.S.A. 1BA!66 to

provide coverage to substantiallyall full time certified teachers orprofessional staff of the public schoo! systems in the State.

Membership is mandatoryfor such employees, TPAF is a cost sharing multiple- employer detined benefit pension plan with

a special fundingsituation, whichthe State is responsible to fund 100%of local employer contributions, excluding anylocal

employerearlyretirement incentive (ERI) contributions. For additional information about TPAF,please refer to the State

Division of Pension and Benefits (Division’s) Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAPR) which can be found at

wiv. state, nj .us/treasury/pensions.

Thevesting and benefit provisions arc set by N.LS.A. 18A:66. TPAF provides retirement, death, and disability benefits. All

benefils vest after ten years ofservice, except for medical benefits, which vest after 25 years of service or under thedisability

provisions of TPAF. Members are always fully vested for their own contributions and, after three years of service credil,

become vested for 2% ofrelated interest carned on the contributions, In the case of death before retirement, members’

beneficiaries are entitled to full interest credited to the members’ accounts.
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D. Employee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans (Continued)

Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Continued)

‘The following represent the membershiptiers for TPAF:

 
Tier Definition _

1 Members who were enrolled prior to July 1, 2007

2 Members who wereeligible to enroll on orafter July 1, 2007 and prior to November 2, 2008

3 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after November2, 2008 and prior to May22, 2010

4 Members who were eligible to enroll on or afier May 22, 2010 and prior to June 28, 2011

5 Members who were eligible lo enroll on or after June 28, 2011

Service retirement benefits of 1/55% of final average salaryfor each year ofservico creditig available to tier 1 and 2 members

upon reaching age 60 and to tier 3 members upon reaching age 62. Service retirement benefits of 1/60% of final average

salary for each ycar of service credit is available to tier 4 members upon reached age 62 and tier 5 members upon reaching

age 65. Earlyretirement benefits are available to tier 1 and 2 members before reaching age 60, tier 3 and 4 members with 25

or more years of service credit before age 62, and tier 5 members with 30 or more years of service credit before age 65.

Benefits are reduced by a fraction of a percent for each month that a memberretires prior to the retirement for his/her

respective tier. Deferred retirement is available to members who have at least ten years of service credit and have not

reachedthe service retirement age for the respective tier.

TheState ofNewJersey sponsors and administers the following defined contribution public employee retirement program

covering certain state and local government employees whichinclude those Board employees whoare eligible for pension

coverage.

Defined Contribution Retirement Program (DCRP) — established under the provisions of Chapter 92, P.L. 2007 and

Chapter 103, P.L. 2008 to provide coverage to elected and certain appointed officials, effective July 1, 2007 and

employees enrolled in PERS on or after July 1, 2007 who earn in excess of established annual maximum compensation

limits (equivalent to annual maximum wage forsocial security deductions), This provision was extended by Chapter 1,

P.L. 2010, effective May 21, 2010, to new employees (Tier 2) of the PERS and new employees who would otherwise be

eligible to participate in PERS and do not carn the minimumsalary required or do not work the minimum required hours

but earn a base salary of at least $5,000 are eligible for participation in the DCRP. Membership is mandatory for such

individuals with vesting occurring after one (1) year ofmembership. DCRP is a defined contribution pension plan.

Other Pension Funds

TheState established and administers a Supplemental Annuity Collective Trust Fund (SACT) which is available to active

members of the State-administered retirement systemsto purchase annuities to supplement the guaranteed benefits provided

by their retirement system. ‘The state or local government employers do not appropriate funds to SACT.

The cost of living increase for PERS and TPAF, are funded directly by each of the respective systems but are currently

suspended as a result of reform legislation.

According to state law, all obligations of each retirement system will be assumed by the State of NewJersey should any

retirement systembe terminated.

The State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Pensions and Benefits (“Division”), issues publicly

available financial reportsthat include the financial statements and required supplementaryinformation of each of the above

systems. The financial reports may be accessed via the New Jersey, Division of Pensions and Benefits, websile at

www.state.nj.us/ireasury/pensions.
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D. Employee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans (Continued)

Plan Amendments

The authority to amend the provisions of the above plans rests with newlegislation passed by the State of New Jersey.

Pension reforms enacted pursuant to Chapter 78, P.L. 2011 included provisions creating special Pension Plan Design

Committees for TPAF and PERS,once a Target Funded Ratio (FR) is met. The Pension Plan Design Committees will

have the discretionary authority to modify certain plan design features, including member contribution rate; formula for

calculation of final compensation offinal salary; fraction used to calculate a retirement allowance; age at which a member

may be eligible and ihe benefits for service or carly retirement; and benefits provided for disability retirement. The

committees will also have the authority to reactivate the cost of living adjustment (COLA) on pensions. However,

modifications can only be madeto the extent thatthe resulting impact does not cause the fundedratio to drop below the TFR

in any one year of a 30-year projection period.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the retirement systems are prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting

principles as applicable to governmental organizations. In doing so, the Division adheres to reporting requirements

established by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

The accrual basis of accounting is used for measuring financial position and changes in net position of the pension trust

funds. Under this method, contributions are recorded in the accounting period in which they are legally due from the

employer or plan member, and deductions are recorded at the time theliabilities are due and payable in accordance with the

terms of each plan. The accounts ofthe Division are organized and operated onthe basis of funds. All funds are accounted

forusing an economic resources measurement focus.

Investment Valuation

The Division of Investment, Departmentofthe Treasury, State ofNew Jersey (Division of Investment) manages and invests

certain assets of the retirement systems, Prudential retirementis the third-party administrator for the DCRP and provides

record keeping, administrative services and investment options. Investment transactions are accounted for on a trade or

investment date basis. Interest and dividend income is recorded on the acerual basis, with dividends accruing on the ex-

dividend date. The net increase or decrease in the fair value ofinvestments includesthe net realized and unrealized gains

or losses on investments.

The State of New Jersey, Departmentofthe Treasury, Division of Investmentissues publicly available financial reports that

include the financial statements of the State ofNewJersey Cash Management Fund. Thefinancial reports maybe obtained in

writing to the State of NewJersey, Departmentof the Treasury, Division of Investment, P.O. Box 290, Trenton, NewJersey

08625-0290 orat www.state.nj.usftreasury/doinvest.
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D. Employee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans (Continued)

Collective Net Pension Liability

The collective net pension liability of the participating employers for local PERSat June 30, 2019 is $18.1 billion and the

plan fiduciary net position as a percentage ofthe total pensionliability is 56.27%, The collective net pension liability of

the State funded TPAF at June 30, 2019 is $61.5 billion andthe plan fiduciarynet position as a percentage oftotal pension

liability is 26.93%.

Thetotal pensionliabilities were determined based on actuarial valuations as of July1, 2018 which were rolled forward to

June 30, 2019,

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

In the July 1, 2018 PERS and TPAFactuarial valuation, the actuarial assumptions and methods used in these valuations were

described in the Actuarial Assumptions and Methods section of the Actuary’s report and are included here in this note to the

financial statements. The pension systemsselected economic and demographic assumptions and prescribed them for use for

purposes of compliance with GASB Statement No. 68. The Actuary provided guidance with respect to these assumptions,

andit is their belief that the assumptionsrepresent reasonableexpectations ofanticipated plan experience.

Employer and Employee Pension Contributions

The contribution policyis set by laws of the State of NewJersey and contributions are required by active members and

participating employers. Plan members and employer contributions maybe amended byState ofNewJerseylegislation with

the amount of contributions bythe State of NewJersey contingent upon the Annual Appropriations Act. As defined, the

retirement systems require employee contributions based on 7.50% for PERS, 7.50% for TPAF and 5.50% for DCRP ofthe

employee’s annual compensation for fiscal year 2020.

PERS employers’ and TPAF State’s nonemployer contributions are based on actuarially determined amounts, which include

the normal cost and unfunded accrued liability, For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 for TPAF, which is a cost sharing

multiple employer defined benefit pension plan with a special funding situation, the State’s annual pension contribution was

less than the actuarial determined amount. For PERS, which is a cost sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension

plan, the annual pension contributions were equalto the actuarial determined amounts. TPAF nonemplover contributions are

made annually by the State ofNew Jersey to the pension system on behalf of the Board. PERS employer contributions are

made annually by the Board to the pension system in accordance with Chapter 114, P.L. 1997. In the DCRP, which is a

defined contribution plan, member contributions are matched by a 3% employer contribution. All PERS and DCRP

contributions madeby the Board forfiscal yeats 2020, 2019 and 2018 were equalto the required contributions,

During the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020, 2019 and 2018 the Board was required to contribute for PERS and DCRP and

the State ofNew Jersey, as a nonemployer contributing entity, contributed for TPAF,respectively for normal cast pension

and unfunded accrued liability contributions (including non-contributory group life insurance (NCGI)) the following

amounts:

Fiscal
Year Ended On-behalf

June 30), PERS TPAF DCRP

2020 $ 1,410,429 § 10079089 $ 85,277

2019 1,457,332 8,944,577 85,576

2018 1,368,986 6,740,148 76,045
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D. Employee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans (Continued)

Employer and Employee Pension Contributions (Continued)

In addition for fiscal years 2020, 2019 and 2018 the District contributed $3,953, $4,646 and $15,314, respectively for PERS

and the State contributed $5,112, $5,564 and $6,526, respectively for TPAF for Long Term Disability Insurance Premium

(LTD).

The PERS contributions are recognized in the governmental fund financial statements (modified accrual basis) as an

expenditure. The on-behalf TPAT contributions are recognized in the governmental fund financial statements {modified

acorual basis) as both a revenue and expenditure in accordance with GASB Statement No. 85, Omnibus 2017 (GASB No.

85). The DCRPcontributions are recognized in the governmental fund financial statements (modified accrual basis) as an

expenditure, as well as, the district-wide financial statements (accrual basis) as an expense.

Also, in accordance with N.LS.A. 18A:66-66 the State of NewJersey reimbursed the Board $3,655,601 during the fiscal

year ended June 30, 2020 for the employer’s shareofsocial security contributions for TPAT membersascalculated on their

hase salaries, This amount has been recognized inthe district-wide financial statements (accrual basis) and the governmental

fund financial statements (modified accrual basis) as both a revenue and expense/expenditure in accordance with GASB No.

85.

Pension Liabilitics, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outtlows of Resources and Deferred Inflows ofResources Related

to Pensions

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS)

GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, (GASB No. 68) requires parlicipating

employers in PERS to recognize their proportionate share ofthe collective net pension liability, collective deferred outflows

of resources, collective deferred inflows of resources and collective pension expense. The employer allocation percentages

presented are based ontheratio of the contributions as an individual employer to total contributions to the PERS during the

measurement period July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019, Employer allocation percentages have been rounded for

presentation purposes.

Although the NJ Division of Pensions and Benefits (“Division”) administers one cost-sharing multiple employer defined

benefit pension plan, separate (sub) actuarial valuations are prepared to determine the actuarial determined contribution rate

by group. Following this method, the measurement of the collective net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources,

deferred inflows of resources and pension expense are determined separately for each individual employer of the State and

local groups of the plan.

To facilitate the separate (sub) actuarial valuations, the Division maintains separate accounts to identify additions,

deductions, and fiduciary net position applicable to each group. The allocation percentages are presented for each group.

The allocation percentages for each group as of June 30, 2019 are based onthe ratio of each employer's contribution to total

employercontributionsofthe group forthe fiscal year ended June 30, 2019.

At Tune 30, 2020, the District reported in the statement of net position (accrual basis) a liability of $26,128,655 forits

proportionate share of the PERSnet pension liability, The net pensionliability was measured as of June 30, 2019 and was

determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2018. The District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability was

based on the ratio of the District’s share of contributions to the pension plan relative Lo the total contributions of all

participating governmental entities, for the year ended June 30, 2019, At June 30, 2019, the Districts proportionate share

was .14501 percent, which was a decrease of .00150 percent from its proportionate share measured as of June 30, 2018 of

14651 percent,
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D. Employee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans (Continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows ofResources and Deferred Inflows ofResources Related

to Pensions (Continued)

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) (Continued)

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, the District recognized in the district-wide statement of activities (accrual basis)

pension expense of $1,290,666 for PERS. The pension contribution made by the District during the current 2019/2020 fiscal

year is the contribution that is applied to the net pension liability reported at the end of the current fiscal year ofJune 30,

3020 with a measurement date of the prior fiscal year end of June 30, 2019. Since the State of New Jersey applies the

current year pension contribution towards the calculation of the net pension liability reported at the end of the currentfiscal

year, which has a measurement date of the preceding fiscal year end, there is no deferred outflows ofresources reported as of

June 30, 2020 for contributions made subsequent to the measurement date. At June 30, 2020, the District reported deferred

outtlows of resources and deferred inflows ofresourcesrelated to PERS pension from the following sources:

Deferred
Outilows

of Resources

Difference Between Expected and
Actual Experience 5 468,975

Changes of Assumptions 2,609,042

Net Difference Between Projected and Actual

Earnings on Pension Plan Investments -

Changes in Proportion and Differences Between

Borough Contributions and Proportionate Share

of Contributions 204,893

Total $ 3,372,910

Deferred

Inflows

ofResources

$ 115,425
9,069,173

412,451

1,194,046

Ss 10,791,095

At June 30, 2020, the amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to PERS

pension will be recognized in pension expense/(benefit} as follows:

Year

Ending

June30, Total

2021 $ (1,543,837)
2022 (1,964,637)
2023 (1,939,827)
2024 (1,663,014)
2025 (306,870)

$ (141885)
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D. Employee Retirement Svstems and Pension Plans (Continued)

Pension Liabilitics, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows ofResources Related

to Pensions (Continued)

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions

The District’s total pensionliability for the June 30, 2019 measurement date was determined by an actuarial valuation as of

July 1, 2018, which wasrolled forward to June 30, 2019. This actuarial valuation used the following actuarial assumptions,

applied to all periods in the measurement.

PERS

Inflation Rate:
Price 2,75%
Wage 3.25%

Salary Increases:

Through 2026 2.00-6.00%
Based on Years

of Service

Thereafter 3.00%-7.00%

Based on Years

of Service

Investment Rate of Return 7.00%

Mortality Rate Table Pub-2010

Assumptions for mortality improvements are based on Society of Actuaries Scale MP-2019.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2018 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience study for

the period July 1, 2014 to June 30, 2018.
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NOTE 4 OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

D. Employee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans (Continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows ofResources Related

to Pensions (Continued)

Public Employees Retirement Sysiem (PERS) (Continued)

Long-Term ExpectedRate ofReturn

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments (7% at June 30, 2019) is

determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of the Division of Investment and Division of

Pensions and Benefits, the board of trustees and actuaries. The long-term expected rate of retum on pension plan

investments was determined using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of

return (expected retums, net of pension plans investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.

‘These ranges are combined to producethe long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of

return bythe target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation, Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of

reium for each major asset class included in the PERS’s target asset allocation as of June 30, 2019 are summarized in the

followingtable:

Long-Term

Target Expected Real

AssetClass Allocation

=Rate

of

Return

Risk Mitigation Strategies 3.00% 4.67%

Cash Equivalents 3.00% 2.00%

U.S. Treasuries 5.00% 2.68%

Investment Grade Credit 10,00% 4.25%

US Equity 28.00% 8.26%

Non-US Developed Markets Equity 12.50% 9.00%

Emerging Markets Equity 6.50% 11.37%

High Yield 2.00% 5.37%

Real Assets 2.50% 9.31%

Private Credit 6.00% 7.92%

Real Estate 7.50% 8.33%

Private Equity 12.00% 10.85%

Discount Rate

Thediscountrate used to measurethetotal pensionliabilities of the PERS plan wasas follows:

Fiscal

Year Measurement Date Discount Rate

2020 June 30, 2019 6.28%

2019 June 30, 2018 5.66%
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NOTE 4 OTHERINFORMATION (Continued)

D. Employee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans (Continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows ofResources Related

to Pensions (Continued)

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS)(Continued)

Discount Rate (Continued)

The following table represents the crossover period, if applicable, for the PERS defined benefit plan:

Period of Projected Benefit

Payments for which the Following

Rates were Applied:

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return Through June 30, 2057

Municipal Bond Rate * From July 1, 2057

and Thereafter

* The municipal bond return rate used is 3.50% as ofthe measurement date of June 30, 2019. The source is the Bond Buyer

Go 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index, which includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating

of AA/Aa or higher.

Sensitivity ofNet Pension Liability

The following presents the District's proportionate share of the PERSnet pension liability calculated using the discount rate

of 6.28%, as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the PERS net pension liability would beifit were calculated

using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (5.28 percent) or L-pereentage-point higher (7.28 percent) than the

current rate:

1% Current 1%

Decrease Discount Rate Increase

5.28% 6.28% 7.28%

District's Proportionate Share of

the PERS Net PensionLiability $ 33,004,737 $ 26,128,655 $ 20,334,582
  

The sensitivity analysis was based on the proportionate share of the District's net pensionliability as of the measurement

date ofJune 30, 2019. A sensitivity analysis specific to the District's net pension Liability al June 39, 2019 was not provided

bythe pension system.

Pension Plan Fiduciury Net Position

Detailed information about the PERS pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued financial

report from the State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Pension and Benefits. The financial report

maybe accessed via the New Jersey, Division of Pensions and Benefits, website at www,state.nj.us/ireasury/pensions.
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D. Employee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans (Continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows ofResources Related

to Pensions (Continued)

Teachers Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF)

GASB No.68, requires participating employers in TPAF to recognize their proportionate share of the collective net pension

liability, collective deferred outflowsof resources, collective deferred inflows of resources and collective pension expense,

The non-employer allocation percentages presented are based on theratio of the State’s contributions made as an employee

and non-employer adjusted for unpaid earlyretirement incentives 10 total contributions to TPAF during the measurement

period July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019. Non-employer allocation percentages have been rounded for presentation

purposes.

The contributionpolicy for TPAFis set by N.1.S.A. 18A:66 and requires contributions by active members and non-employer

contributions by the State. State legislation has modified the amount that is contributed by the State. The State’s pension

contribution is based on an actuarially determined amount, which includes the employer portion of the normal cost and an

amortization of the unfunded accrued liability. Forthe fiscal year ended June 30, 2019,the State's pension contribution was

less than the actuarial determined amount.

In accordance with GASB No.68, the District is not required to recognize a net pensionliability for TPAP. The State of

NewJersey, as a nonemployer contributing entity, is the only entity that has a legal obligation to make employer

contributions to TPAF on behalf of the District, Accordingly, the District's proportionate share percentage determined under

Statement No. 68 is zero percent and the State’s proportionate share is 100% of the net pension liability attributable to the

District for TPAF. Therefore, in addition, the District does not recognize any portion of the TPAF collective deferred

outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources,

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, the District recognized in the distriet-wide statement of activities (accrual basis)

persion expense of $16,125,517 for TPAF, This amount has been included in the district-wide statement of activities

(accrual basis) as both a revenue and expense in accordance with GASB No.85.

At June 30, 2020 the State’s proportionate share ofthe net pension liabilityattributable to the Districtis $273,394,132. The

nonemployerallocation percentages are based on the ratio of the State’s contributions made as a nonemployer attributable to

the District, adjusted for unpaid carlyretirement incentives, relative to total contributions to TPAF during the year ended

June 30, 2019, At June 30, 2019, the State’s share of the net pensionliability attributable to the District was .44548 percent,

which was a decrease of .00137 percent from its proportionate share measured as of June 30, 2018 of 44685 percent.
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NOTE 4 OTHER INFORMATION(Continued)

D. Employee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans (Continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows ofResources and Deferred Inflows ofResources Related

to Pensions (Continued)

Teachers Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions

‘The total pension liability for the June 30, 2019 measurement date was determined byan actuarial valuation as of July 1,

2018, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2019. This actuarial valuation used the following actuarial assumptions, applied

to all periods in the measurement,

TPAF

Inflation Rate:

Price 2.75%
Wage 3.25%

SalaryIncreases:

Through 2026 1,55-4,55%
Based on Years

ofService

Thereafier 2.75%-5.65%
Based on Years

of Service

Investment Rate of Retum 7.00%

Mortality Rate Table Pub-2010

Assumptions for mortality improvements are based on Society of Actuaries Scale MP-2019.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July|, 2018 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience study for

the period July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2018.
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NOTE 4 OTHER INFORMATION(Continued)

D. Employee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans (Continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outtlows ofResources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related

to Pensions (Continued)

Teachers Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Continued)

Long-Term Expected Rate ofReturn

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of retum on plan investments (7% at June 30, 2019) is

determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of the Division of Investment and Division of

Pensions and Benefits, the board of trustees and actuaries, The long-term expected rate of retum on pension plan

investments was determined using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rate of

return (expected returns, net of pension plans investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.

These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of

return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of

retum for each major asset class included in the TPAF’s target asset allocation as of June 30, 2019 are summarized in the

following table:

Long-Term

Target Expected Real

Asset Class Allocation Rate ofReturn

Risk Mitigation Strategies 3.00% 4.67%

Cash Equivalents 5.00% 2.00%

US. Treasurics 5.00% 2.68%

Investment Grade Credit 10.00% 4.25%

US Equity 28.00% 8.26%

Non-US Developed Markets Equity 12.50% 9.00%

Emerging Markets Equity 6.50% 11.37%

High Yield 2,00% 5.37%

Real Assets 2.50% 9.31%

Private Credit 6.00% 7.92%

Real Estate 7.50% 8.33%

Private Equity 12.00% 10.85%
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D. Employee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans (Continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows ofResources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related

to Pensions (Continued)

Teachers Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Continued)

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure thetotal pensionliabilities ofthe TPAF plan wasas follows:

Fiscal

Year Measurement Date Discount Rate

2020 June 30, 2019 5.60%

2019 June 30, 2018 486%

The following table represents the crossover period, if applicable, for the TPAF defined benefit plan:

Period of Projected Benefit

Payments for which the Following

Rates were Applied:

Long-Term Expected Rate ofReturn Through June 30, 2054

Municipal Bond Rate * From July 1, 2054

and Thereafter

* The municipal bond return rate used is 3.50% as of the measurement date of June 30, 2019. The source is the Bond Buyer

Go 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index, which includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating

ofAAJAaor higher.

Sensitivity afNet Pension Liahitity

The following presents the State’s proportionate share of the TPAF net pensionlability attributable to the District calculated

using the discount rate of 5.60%, as well as what the State’s proportionate share of the TPAF net pension lability

attributable to the District that would be ifit were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (4.60

percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (6.60 percent) than the currentrate:

1% Current 1%

Decrease Discount Rate Increase

State's Proportionate Share of
the TPAF Net Pension Liability

Attributable to the District $ 322,392,193 $ 273,394,132 Ss 232,741,214
 

The sensitivity analysis was based on the State’s proportionate share of the net pensionliability attributable to the District as

of the measurementdate of June 30, 2019. A scusitivity analysis specific to the State’s proportionate share ofthenet pension

liability attributable to the District at June 30, 2019 was not provided by the pension system.
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D. Employee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans (Continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outilows ofResources and Deferred Inflows ofResources Related

to Pensions (Continued)

Teachers Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Continued)

Pension Plan Fiduciary NetPosition

Detailed information about the TPAF pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued financial

report fromthe State of NewJersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Pension and Benefits. The financial report

may be accessed via the NewJersey, Division of Pensions and Benefits, website at www.state.nj usftreasury/pensions.

E. Post-Retirement Medical Benefits

The State ofNewJersey sponsors and administers the post-retirement health benefit program plan for schooldistricts.

As a result of implementing GASB Statement No. 74, Financial Reporting for Postemplayment Benefit Plans Other than

Pension Plans, the post-retirement health benefit program plan is reported in an Agency Fund in the New Jersey

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. Therefore, the plan has no assets

accumulated in a trust, In accordance with GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for

Postemployment Benefits Other than Pension (GASB No. 75), the plan is classified as a single employer defined benefit

OPEBplan with a special funding situation that is not administered through

a

trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of

GASB No.75.

Plan Description and Benefits Provided

The State ofNew Jersey sponsors and administers the following post-retirement health benefit program plan covering certain

local schooldistrict employees, including those Board employees andretirees cligible for coverage.

State Health Benefit Program Fund — Local Education Retired Employees Plan (including Prescription Drug Program

Fund) —N.1.8.A. 52:14-17.32f provides medical coverage, prescription drug benefits and Medicare Part B reimbursementto

qualified retired education employees and their covered dependents. The State of New Jersey provides employer-paid

coverage to members of the TPAF who retire from a board of education or countycollege with 25 years ofservice or on a

disability retirement. Under the provisions of Chapter 126, P.L. 1992, the State also provides employer-paid coverage to

members of the PERS and Alternate Benefits Program (ABP) who retire from a board of education or county college with 25

years of service or on a disability retirement if the member’s employer does not provide this coverage. Cerlain local

participating employers also provide post-retirement medical coverage to their employees. Retirees who are not eligible for

employer paid health coverageat retirement can continue in the program if their employer participates in this program or if

they are participating in the health benefits plan of their former employer and are enrolled in Medicare Paris A and B by

paying the cost of the insurance for themselves and their covered dependents.

Pursuant to Chapter 78, P.L. 2011, futureretireeseligible for postretirement medical coverage who haveless than 20 years of

creditable service on June 28, 2011 will be required to paya percentageofthecast oftheir health care coverage in retirement

provided they retire with 25 or more years of pension service credit, The percentage of the premium for which the retiree

will be responsible will be determined based onthe retiree’s annual retirementbenefit and level of coverage.
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E. Post-Retirement Medical Benefits (Continued)

‘The State of New Jersey, Department ofthe Treasury, Division of Pensions and Benefits, issues publicly available financial
reports that include the financial statements and required supplementary information of the above Fimd. The financial

reports may be accessed via the State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Pensions and Benefits, website

at wucw.state.n].us/ireasury/pensions.

Plan Membership

Membership of the defined benefit OPEB planconsisted ofthe following at June 30, 2018:

Active Plan Members 216,892

Inactive Plan Memibers or Beneficiaries Currently Receiving Benefits 148.051

Inactive Plan Members Entitled to but not yet Receiving Benefits - 

Total 364,943

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The financial stalements of the post-employment health benefit plans are prepared in accordance with U.S. generally

accepted accounting principles as applicable to governmental organizations. In doing so, the Division adheres lo reporting
requirements established by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

The accrual basis of accounting is used for measuring financial position and changes in net position of the post-employment

health benefit plans, Under this method, contributions are recorded in the accounting period in which they are legally due

from the employeror plan member, and deductionsare recorded at the time the liabilities are due and payable in accordance

with the terms of each plan. The accounts of the Division are organized and operated on Ihe basis of finds. All funds are

accounted Tor using an economic resources measurementfocus.

Investment Valuation

Investments are reported al fair value. Investments that do not have an established market arc reported at estimated fair

value. Fair value is the amount at which a financial instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willmg

parties, other than in a forced orliquidation sale.

Collective Net OPEB Liability

The collective net OPER liability of the State, as the non-employer contributing entity, of the plan at June 30, 2019 is $41.7
billion, andthe plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB liability is zero percent.

The total OPEB liabilities were determined based on actuarial valuations as of Jume 30, 2018 which were rolled forward to

June 30, 2019.
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E. Post-Retirement Medical Benefits (Continued)

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Tn the June 30, 2018 OPEB actuarial valuation, the actuarial assumptions and methods used in these valuations were

described in the Actuarial Assumptions and Methods section of the Actuary’s report and are included here in this note to the

financial statements. The Plan selected economic and demographic assumptions and preseribed them for use for purposes of

compliance with GASB Statement No. 75. The Actuary provided guidance withrespectto these assumptions, and it is their

belief that the assumptions represent reasonable expectations of anticipated plan experience.

Post-Retirement Medical Benefits Contributions

The funding policy of the OPEB planis pay as you gobasis; therefore, there is no prefunding ofthe lability. Contributions

to pay for the health benefit premiums ofparticipating employees in the OPEB plan are made by the State, as a non-

employer contributing entity, under a special funding situation in accordance with State statutes as previously disclosed. The

Stale as a non-employercontributing entity made contributions of $1.28 billion to the OPEB plan infiscal year 2019,

‘The State sets {he contribution rate based on a pay as you go basis rather than the actuarial determined contribution an

amount actuarially determined jn accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 75. The actuarial determined

contribution represents a level of funding that, if paid on an angoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and

any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or finding excess) of the plan using a systematic and rational method over a closed period

equalto the average of the expected remaining service lives of al] employees that are provided with OPEB through the Plan,

over a period not to excecd thirty years. The State’s contributions, as a nonemployer contributing entity, to the State Health

Benefits Program Fund — Local Éducation Retired Employees Plan for retirees’ post-retirement benefits on behalf of the

School District for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020, 2019 and 2018 were $3,739,158, $4,057,382 and $4,353,318,

respectively, which equaled the required contributions for each year. The State’s contributions to the State Health Benefits

Program Find — Local Education Retired Employees Plan for PERSretirees’ post-retirement benefits on behalfof the School

District was not delermined or made available by the Slate of New Jersey. The on-behalf OPEB contributions are

recognized in the governmental fund financial statements (modified accrual basis) as both a revenue and expenditure in

accordance with GASB No. 85.

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expenses and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related

to OPEB

GASB Statement No. 75 requires participating employers in the State Health Benefit Program Fund — Local Education

Retired Employees Plan to recognize their proportionate share ofthe collective OPEB liability, collective deferred outflows

of resources, collective deferred inflows of resources and collective OPEB expense. The nonemployer allocation

percentages presented are based on the ratio of the State’s contributions made as a nonemployer toward the actuarially

determined contribution amount to lotal contributions to the plan during the measurement period July 1, 2018 through June

30,2019. Nonemployer allocation percentages have been rounded for presentation purposes.

In accordance with GASB No.75,the District is not required to recognize an OPEBliability for the post-employmenthealth

benefit plan. The State ofNew Jersey, as a nonemployer contributing entity, is the onlyentity that has a legal obligalion to

make employer contributions to the plan on behalf of the District, Accordingly, the District’s proportionate share percentage

determined imder Statement No. 75 is zero percent and the State’s proportionate share is 100% of the OPEB liability

attributable to the District, Therefore, in addition, the District does not recognize any portion of the collective deferred

outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resourcesrelated to the plan.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, the District recognized im the district-wide statement of activities (accrual basis)

OPEB expense of $4,002,341. This amount has been included in the district-wide slatement ofactivities (accrual basis) as

both a revenue and expensein accordance with GASB No,85.

At June 30, 2020 the State’s proportionate share of the OPEB Liability attributable to the District is $146,408,858, The

nonemployer allocation percentages are based on the tatio of the State’s proportionate share of the OPEB liability

attributable to the District at June 30, 2019 io the total OPEB liability of the State Health Benefit Program Fund — Local

Education Retired Employees Plan at June 30, 2019, At June 30, 2019, the state’s share of the OPEB liabilityattributable to

the District was .35086 percent, which was a decrease of .00338 percent from its proportionate share measured as ofJune 30,

2018 of 35424 percent.
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E. Post-Retirement Medical Benefits (Continued)

 

OPEBLiabilities, OPEB Expenses and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related

to OPEB (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions

The OPEB liability for the June 30, 2019 measurement date was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2018,

which was rolled forward to June 30, 2019. This actuarial valuation used the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all

periods in the measurement.

Inflation Rate 2.50%

Salary Increases*

PERS:

Initial Fiscal Year Applied Through 2026

Rate 2.00% ta 6.00%

Kate Thereafter 3.00% to 7.00%

TPAF:

Initial Fiscal Year Applied Through 2026

Rate 1.55% to 3.05%

Rate Thercaller 1.55%to 3.05%

Mortality:

PERS Pre-retirement and Post-retirement based on Pub-2010

Healthy "General" classification headcount-weighted

mortality table with fully generational mortalily

improvement projections from the central year using

Scale MP-2019,

TPAF Pre-retirement and Post-retirement based on Pub-2010

“Yeachers" and "General" classifications respectively,

headcount-weighted mortality tables with fully

generational mortality improvementprojections from

the central year using Scale MP-2019.

Long-Term Rate of Return 2,00%

*Sularyincreases are based on Ihe defined benefit pension plan that the memberis enrolled m

and the members years of service.

For the June 30, 2019 measurement date healtheare cost trend rates [or pre-Medicare medical benefits, the trend is initially

5.7%and decreases to a 4.5% long-termtrendrate aller eight years. For posl-65 medical benefits, the actual fully-insured

Medicare Advantage trendrates for fiscal year 2020 are reflected. The assumed post-65 medical trendis 4.5% forall future

years, Forprescription drug benefits, the initial trend rate is 7.5% and decreases to a 4.5% long-term trend rate after eight

years. For Medicare Part B reimbursements, the trend rate is 5,0%.
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E. Post-Retirement Medical Benefits (Continued)

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expenses and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related

to OPEB (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions (Continued)

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2018 valuation were based onthe results of the TPAF and PERS actuarial

experiencestudies for the period July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2018 and July 1, 2014 to June 30, 2018, respectively,

100% of active members are considered to participate in the plan upon retirement.

Long-Term Expected Rate ofReturn

As the OPEBplan only invests in the State ofNew Jersey Cash Management Fund, the long-term expected rate of return on

OPER investments was based off the best-estimate ranges of future real rates of return (expected retums, net of OPEB plan

investment expense and inflation) for cash equivalents, which is 2.00% as of June 30, 2019.

Discount Rate

‘The discountrate used to measure the total OPEB liabilitiesofthe plan was as follows:

Fiscal

Year Measurement Date Discount Rate

2020 June 30, 2019 350%

2019 June 30, 2018 3.87%

Thediscountrate represents the municipal bond return rate as chosen by the Division. ‘The source is the Bond Buyer Go 20-

Bond Municipal Bond Index, which includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of

AA/Aa or higher, As the long-term rate of retum is less thanthe municipal bondrate,it is not considered in the calculation

ofthe discountrate,rather the discountrate is set at the municipal bondrate.
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E. Post-Retirement Medical Benefits (Continued)

OPEBLiabilities, OPEB Expenses and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related

to OPEB (Continued)

Changes in the Total OPEB Liability

The change in the State's proportionate share of the OPEB liabilityatiribulable to the Districtfor the fiscal year ended June

30, 2020 (measurement date June 30, 2019) is as follows:

Total OPEB

Liability

State Share 100%)

Balance, June 30, 2018 Measurement Date 5 163,344,104

Changes Recognized for the Fiscal Year:

Service Cost 6,060,784

Interest on the Total OPEB Liability 6,472,383

Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience (27,290,290)

Changes ofAssumptions 2,182,968

Gross Benefit Payments 133,224

Contributions from the Member (4,494,315)

Net Changes $ (16,935,246)

Balance, June 30, 2019 Measurement Date $ 146,408,858

Changes of assumptions and other inputs reflect a change in the discountrate from 3.87% percent in 2018 to 3.50% percent

in 2019,

‘The change in the total OPEB liability was based on the State's proportionate share of the OPEBliabilityattributable to the

District at June 30, 2019.

Sensitivity of OPEB Liability

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate. The following presents the State’s proportionate share

of the OPEB liability attributable to the District calculated using the discount rate of 3.50%, as well as what the Stato's

proportionate share of the OPEB Hability attributable to the District that would beif it were calculated using a discountrate

that is 1-percentage-point lower (2.50 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher(4.50 percent) than the currentrate:

1% Current 1%

Decrease Discount Rate Increase

(2.50%) (3.50%) (4.50%)

State's Proportionate Share of

the OPER Liability

Attributable to the District S__ 172,966,718 5 146,408,358 $ 125,312,750
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NOTE 4 OTHER INFORMATION(Continued)

E. Post-Retirement Medical Benefits (Continued)

OPEBLiabilitics, OPEB Expenses and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related

to OPEB (Continued)

Sensitivity of OPEB Liability (Continued)

Sensitivity ofthe total OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates. The following presents the State’s

proportionate share of the OPEB liability attributable to the District calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-

percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higherthan the current healthcare cost trend rates:

Healthcare

1% Cost Trend 1%

Decrease Rates Increase

Total OPEB Liability (School Retirees) $ 120,634,373 $ 146,408,858 § 180,528,983
  

The sensitivity analyses were based on the State’s proportionate share of the OPEB hability attributable to the District at

June 30, 2019, Sensitivity analyses specific to the State's proporlionate share of the OPEB liability attributable to the

District at June 30, 2019 were not provided by the pension system.

F. Tax Abatements

As defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), a tax abatement is an agreement between a

government and an individual or entity in which the government promises to forgo tax revenues and the individual or

entity promises to subsequently take a specific action that contributes to economic development or otherwise benefits the

government or its citizens, School districts are not authorized by NewJersey statute lo enter into tax abatement

agreements. However, the county or municipality in which the school district is situated may have entered into tax

abatementagreements, and that potential school lax revenue must be disclosed in these financial statements. If the county

or municipality entered into tax abatement agreements, those agreements will not directly affect the school district's local

tax revenue because N.J.S.A. 54:4-75 and N.J.S.A. 54:4-76 require that amounts so forgiven must effectively be recouped

from other taxpayers and remitted to the school district.

For Hackensack Board of Education, the District’s share of abated taxes resulting ftom the municipality having entered

into a tax abatement agreement is indeterminate.

NOTE 5 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Appropriation of Fund Balance

On August 12, 2020 the Board approved the appropriation of an additional $1,500,000 of General Fund unassigned fund

balance to the 2020/2021 budgetas a result of a reduction in 2020/2021 state aid anticipated in the adopted budget certified

fortaxes,

Lease-Purchase Agreement

On September 4, 2020 the District entered into a lease purchase agreement forthe acquisition of chrombooks in (he amount

of $1,027,407, The lease purchase agreementis for a term of4 years at an interest rate of 1.06% with thefirst lease payment

due October 1, 2020. ‘
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NOTE 6 INFECTIOUS DISEASE OUTBREAK — COVID-19 PANDEMIC

The outbreak of COVID-19, a respiratory disease caused by a newstrain of coronavirus, has been characterized as 4

pandemic (the “Pandemic”) by the World Health Organization and is curently affecting manyparts of the world, including

the United States and the State of New Jersey. On January 31, 2020, the Secretary of the United States Health and Human

Services Departmentdeclared a public health emergency for the United States and on March 13, 2020, the President of the

United States declared the outbreak of COVID-19 in the United States a national emergency. Subsequently, the President's

Coronavirus Guidelines for America and the United States Centers for Disease Control and Prevention called upon

Americans to takeactions to slow the spread of COVID-19 in the United States.

New Jersey Governor Phil Murphy has issued multiple Executive Orders since March 16, 2020 including but notlimited to

aggressive social distancing measures, restrictions on local clections, restrictions on foreclosure and evictions, suspension of

all elective surgeries, closing ofall schools and child care centers, the commandeering of properly such as medical supplies,

the cessation ofall non-essential construction projects, extending insurance premiumgrace periods, the temporaryreprieve to

certain at-risk inmates and the extension ofthe permitied statutory grace period from May 11, 2020 to June 1, 2020 for

quarterly property taxes due May 1, 2020, The Board expects ongoing actions will be taken byState, federal and local

governments and private entities to mitigate the spread and impacts of COVID-19, The Pandemic has negativelyaffected

travel, commerce, and financial markets globally, and is widely expected to continue negativelyaffecting economic growth

and financial markets worldwide. These négative impacts mayreduce or negativelyaffect property values within the School

District. The declaration of a public health emergencyremains in effect as of the date of audit, As part of a planned multi-

stage approach torestart the State’s economy, Governor Murphyhas signed a series of Executive Orders permitting the

resumption of certain activities.

Because of the evolving nature of the outbreak and federal, state and local responses thereto, the Board cannot predict how

the outbreak will impact the financial condition or operations of the School District, orif there will be amyimpact on the

assessed values of property within the Schoo! District or deferral of tax payments to municipalities. The Board cannot

predict costs associated with this or any other potential infectious discase outbreak; including whether there will be any

reduction in State funding oran increase in operational costs incurred to clean, sanitize and maintainit facilities either before

or after an outbreak of an infectious disease.
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EXHIBIT C-1

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Variance

Original Final Final Nudget
Budget Adjustments Budget Actual lo Actual

REVENUES

‘Local Sources:

Property Vax Levy $84,593,752 $ 2 54,522,157

Tisitien Beis Oiber LEY 7,134,332 1,136,322 7,083,212 (3.110

Interest on Maintennnce Reserve 6,608 6,608

Interest on Capital Reserve 12.900 10,900 47,652 37,652

Interest an Investments 154,176 154,176

Unrestricted Mixcullancaus 400,200 - an 423,819 28,819

Torn! Lowul Souroes BORRO + 92.060084 97,343.49 174,545

Slate Soureca

Categocical Tmnsportativa Aid 682,382 682,382

Catoporienl Special Educsiion Aid 5 $ 4,787,858 787,838 =

Equalization Aid - 14,505,187 14 #7

Cnterorical Security Aid - Z121,337 2,121,557

Extruvediniary Ald = 731,009 17,305 776,303

Om-bulalf TPAF Pension System Contribusions-Nermal Custs de

Agutued Lisbilitie: (Nen-Budget) 9,901,634 9.901.614

Ou-behalfTPAT Pension System Contribirsons-CG

(Non-Buchret) 177,473 177,475

On-behalfTRAPCoatiibutiona-Post Retirement Medical

Contributions (Non-Budper} 3,739,158 3,739,158

OnebetallTRAP Contributions-|ang-TermnDisability

Insurance Contributions (Nom-Hudget} $142 5.112

Reimbursed TPAZ Socinl Security Payments (Non-Andget) _ = a = 5655601 | 363540

‘Total State Sources aan = 827,364 41,089,227 18,253,263

Federal Sauces

Metticnid Helinbursement A 2 210,457 Het 282

Totul Federal Sources a E, 210,497 216.178 6237

Total eventos al__ + 115,307,545 193,443 435 18,435,850

EXPENDITURTS

CURRENT EXFENIMTURES

Tnatroction = Reuular Programe

Balmes al Teachers

Kindergarten 1,125,073 $ 13,000 1,140,075 1,144,503 25470

Cirad1-5 10,044.737 (142,676) 0,362087 5,804,141 57,040

nada 6-2 6,139,943 128,000 7,063,943 7,042,365 21,580

Grades 9-12 10,625,386 203.500 [0,832,886 10,200,564 32.301

Regular Program = Home insiswetion

Salariea of Teachers 26,500 - 26,500 PAZ 10,458

Purchased Frofessional-Edueational Services 20,000 (20,000) -

Regular Progmuns - Uudistributed Instrectinm
‘Other Salurss für Instrostion 482567 1,700 484,207 458,278 23,949

Purchased Urefssaional-Educationnl Services RET SO (14,201 207,300 683.901 118,304

Purchased Techuical Services (27,104) 103,501 19,045 S455

Other Purchased Services 52,854 166,432 60,133 106,303

Geperal Supplies 3,12% 1103251 1,045,672 50,579

Texthraks 157,437 186,937 175,088 11,889

Other Ohjects (492) 6648 yo 7H

Total Regular Programs 31,438,508 247,278 31,785,847 312571 17

ci)
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Varlanes

Original Final Final Budget
Budget Adjustments Budget Actual To Actual

EXPENDITURES
CURRENT EXPENDITURES (Continued)

Special Education

Lsaming mndlor Language Disabilities

Snlarier afTeachers S 694336 8 20008S Hé0,612 5 15,92

Oíher Sularies for Instmestion 691,389 33,900 a 6862 38,135

Total Learning and/or Larigsago Disabilities 1,575,945 35,000. 1,610,945 1,546,976 54,068

Behavior Disabilities

Salaries of Teachers 314,485 - 374,585 709,536 75,046

Other Salaries far Insteastion DIU | = #0 15d -

Total Rahme Disshilities 404,735 - 464129 380,655 15,046

Multiple Disabüiries
Salaries ofTeachers 745,430 40,999 506,429 781,323 25,108

Olher Salaries for Instruction 33 2a,su0 547,516. 537427 CRE

Total Muttiple Disabilitics 1,084,246 269409 BRA AHI AOS

Resource Raona! Repos Center

Salaries ofTeachers 5,283,776 (378,500) 4,905,276 4,755,549 169,327

Cher Salaries for Instruction 1,753,129 (126,500) 1,628,629 1,574,659 51,970

¿herObjecss o EN 701 oa 101

‘Total Resource RoveReeoures Center 7,097,606 _ (505.000) >. 6,332,606 _ 6311,208 221,398

Preschaol Disabilities - Fell Times
Salaries of Teachers 1,083,180 24,535 1,110,734 6,007

DiliceSalariosfre Instruction 491,108 6,845 630,143 37,20

General Supplies Bu - 13,822 Ts 6,241.

Total Preachoo! abilibos - Full Time 1.529.288 us 314,022 e ASRR 1,743,756 69,554

‘Horne insmuctian

Snlaries af Teacher 126,500 60,500 137,000 116,721 70,299

Purchased Profiasional-Educational Services 20,000 £18,315) 1,685. 1,600 $5

Tren! Hore Inseroetion 146,500 42,185: 188,655. 118,321, 70,364

Total Spocial Edusarica MA 155.706 11,989,030 11,453,604 535,426.

Biliaganl Eóucarian

Salaries ofTeaches 1,920,252 19.000 1,959,252 1.991.541 aa

Diber Snlariex für Instruction 122,051 - 122,03: 106,802 15,229

Textbooks - im 10 | = 120

TotBilingual Education 2.042283 2.061.453 2,088,343 23.110

School Spunsorcd CoEsrra Currisalas Activities
Salurias 195,491 140 155,561 158,680

Purchased Servi 104,150 - 104,159 6,320

Supplies and Mnterials 19,509 = 15,500 1,178

Other Objects 1006 : 1000 ai

Total School Sponsored Co/Extre Curtieglar Activisias 320,141 Hao. 320,241 166,658 153,583
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
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EXPENDITURES

CURRENT EXPENDITURES (Continued)
Sohoaldpnasared Auldotics - Instrection

Saari  us
Purchased Services

Supoliss and Marerinis

‘Other Objects

Tatal Schoal-Spenaored Athletics » Instrachem

Sumner School - Instruction
Salaries ofTeachers

Tota! Summer Seheal - Instruction

Insteuctional Alternative Rduecution Program - Instruetion

Salaries ofTeachers
Other Salaries for Instructiess

‘Total Instructional Altermative Edncution Program - lagtruction

Tatal Instruction

Instraclica
to Other LEAs Within the Stale-Epecial

 

Tuition to Couney Vocational Schwul Dsetiet - Regular

Tuition to ColmWacstianal Sebool District - Special

Tuition to CSSD 4b Kegional Day Schools

iu the: State

 

Tuition te APSSD

Tisitine - State Facilities

‘Total Undistribused ©:
Instruction

 

Altendance and Socinl Werl: Servicss
Salaries

Total Attendance anit Social Work Serviser

Health Senedces

Salaice

Parchneed Professional aid ‘Techoical Senaces

‘Other Purchased Services
Supalies and Materials

Fatal Health Service:

Speech, (FT, PT Related Services

Salaries
PurchasePrufessional-Bducstionn! Services

Total Spesch, OT, PT de RelatServices

Oxher Support Serv. Studcats- Extra Serv,

‘Sales

Purchased Professional-Edventional Servicas
Supplies and Materials

‘Total Other Seppor Serv. Studente- Extra Serv.

‘Guidance
Salaries of Olber Professional Staff

ries of Sccestariea and Clerical Assistants

‘Other Purchased Professionaland Technical Services

Uidwe Purchased Services
Supplies and Marerials

 

Tosal Guidimes
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Variance

Original Vinat Final Budget
Budget Adjustments Budget Aëtual To Actual

5 1200805 £ (133800) 3 1,076,003 $ BITTE À 198,330
167,403 (54,0081) 113,478 103,40 4,071

102,000 16,308 118,208 91,009 27,199
57,10 400 57,500. $7008 415

1,536,378 (371.192) 1,365,186 1,135,111 230.075

52,556 5a 58,556 10,944 17,642

53,556 (15,020) 38,556 20,514 17,642

44,616 43,500 RK,116 39,642 28474
amO - 131,400 - 10,100

Hui 43,500 06.516 59,642 38874

SES 46,131,385 1,537,400

(256,780) 1,207,822 598,861
- 34,981
= 327,Thd 301,662 26,102

3402,787 (29,300) 441 2,583,617 TRUE

478.211 - 474211 3,314,119 979,892
EC 16053 18,053 ai

11,117,134 (338,730) 10K973,254 3,343,594, 2,429,060

3,400 - 5400 E aa

Sd 5 5.406 - 5490

EMI € (RENTE BES 336.613 16,153
44,10 22371 FRATI 45,373 31308
31,000 (8,306) 25,604 21,411 4,253
11308 Us 11318 H143 4,673

562,756 16,983 579,719 411,570 58,143

1,624,453 251,907 1,976,402
609.00 253,947 333.347

2214495. 645.894 2870343 2,703,508 60641

234,022 (62 4x10) 772,022 131,593 20,424

1,086,480 79,184 1,165,764 $130 253,541
= no 100 100 at

1,920,502 17,382 1,937,886 1,643,915

1,237,532 (27,19) 1,230,442 1,124,594 21,85%

sub 144,306 20
- = 39,640
= ET
24 3881 57

1,445,345 {36.012} 1,404,333 1,376,771 132,562:
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EXPENDITURES

CURRENTEXPENDITURES(Continued)
Child Study Teams

Salavics of Other Professional Stat?

Salariep ofSecretarias aud Clerical Assistants

Purchased Profsssional-Eduentional 36

  

 

ince

Osher Purchased Professional and Technical Senses

Miscellaneous Purchased Services

Supplies and Materisis

Ores Objeurs

“fatal Child Soy Tezms

Improvement ef lastcastional Bervices

Enlaries ol Supervisor of Insraclion

Sularies ol Cilior Professional Staff

Salarios of Seeretories end Clasical Agststamts

Purchased Professioma!-Eduestions] Services

Other Purchased Serviews

fies and Materials

  

Total Improvement of Jostruchional Services

Faocatiomal Media Servicesiichool Library
Saluries
  Pur vofeesional aad Tecluical Services

Other Purchased Services
Supplice and Mnterials

 

Totnl Frucatiomal bedis Servichaol Libcany

Instructional StaffTraiciny

Purchased Profersionaliducational Serviass

‘Other Purchased Services
Supetice and Marerials

 

Tosal Irstructiemul Staff Training Services

Suppon Services Cuwsral Administration
Salariss

Legal Services
AndaFees

Other Purchased Professional Sorvieca

CommunicacionsTelspheme

BOE Other Purchnsed Services

Mise Purchased Sernces

General Supplies,

Miscellaneous Expendibarce

BOE Membership Dues and Fees

Total Sopporr Services Guaczal Administration

 

Support Services £choo] Administration

Salaries ofPrinzipial/ässt, Prineipnls

Salaries of Oher Professional Stat?

Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants

Purchased Profissicaal and Technical Services

‘Other Purchased Services

Supplies ard Meiccial
Other Objects

 

Total Support Services Schaal Administration

HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION

GENERAL FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020
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Variance

Original Final Final Budget
Budget

_

Adjustments Rudget Actual ‘Yo Actual

5 2,600,728 3 (192,000) 5 3,408,778 $ 3208327 5 100,401

FASE 3,100 337,508 336,192 Laue

124,880 77332 202,182 44,063 157,514

21,000 50,108 71,108 22,507 48,605

313 343 343

30,000 W205 40,209 32,511 7,298

2,600 A 254 6

2,111,474 (28,905) 4.062.168 377195 5S73

1,085,254 050 1,027,218 1,023,117 3.503

439,605 32,974 542,579 542,579 -

(44,298) 182,605 158,763 72,542

(5,750) 1,250 1,230 -

(8,717) 3,783 5,724 39

(300) 6,700 8,210 ash

HE 1,575 Lov sol

159 BAT) 1,766,311, 1,736,927, 20.383

352,181 503 552,681 473,368 9313

10,400 - 10,400 10,100

7,500 : 7,504
32,900 _ 3,75 FRADA

603.281 6,028 405,306 514,324 gages

10,050 7353 19,933 482

18,475 977 19,402 5 87

4,000 (1245) 2,753, 28 209

sh 783 40,110 28,536 1.374

247,119 (23,449) 261,661 261.348 313

208,500 226,513 435,013 422,736 124277

15,700 52,700 60,045 2,655

32,585 23,751) 69,834 36,828 33,006

227,010 (146,143) 20,837 38373 42,484

3,850 1,000 2.509 341

31,501 31,033 44,567 17,966

Aal 973 19,555 20

8,384 16,250 34,483 151

32,624 (1,873) 27,855 2,806

943,155 94,153 1,047,406 113.005

3,403,779 127,429 3,531,208 3,437,204 a

79,056 75,986) .

1,206,551 (22,014) 1,154,377 1,182,573 1,804

12,140 15.830 13,803 17,187

28,500 (151) 15,976 6,633

9490 31,151 = 3208 17,343

474,176 47,559 AETOS SAME 42,967
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HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION

GENERAL FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

EXPENDITURES

CURRENT EXPENDITURES (Continacd)

CentServeces

Salaries
Purchased Professional Senaces

Purchased Technical Services,

‘MiscelInneous Purchased Services

Suippties und Materials
Interest on Lease Purchass Apresments

Miscellaneous Experditures

‘Total Ceatzal Secviess

Adinin, Info. Technology

Salaries

Purchased Professional Services

Purchased Technical Services

Chher Furcheaed Services

Supplics and Matenal

Cibor Objcets

Tatol Admin. Info, Techwlogy

Required Maintenance for School Faeilthes.

Salarios

anise. Repairand Mnint Serv,
General Supplica

 

Tora! Required hnmsenanse fai School Fac.

Custadint Seraces

Salines

Salimeof Nod-lnsivuctional Aides
Purchasal Professional and Technical Services

Cheng, Repair and Maint Serv.

of Land and Padlding (ber Thaw Lense Purchase Agmt

her Purchased Property a

Other Furchnsed Property Serviees - (Mon Thiduet Lease Paymeniay

Inssrunge

 

ch  

Miscellaneous Purchased Services

General Supplies

Energy{NaturGas}

Encigs (Electricity)

‘Ocher Objects

   
Total trial Nervicus

re and Upkews ofGrounds

 

Sales
Cleaning, Repair and Maint. Serv,

General Supplica

“Fatal Caro and Upkesp nfTrans

Socuvity

Salaries

Purch. Professional and ‘lechuical Sorcee

Cleaning, Repatr,and Maintesanes Services

‘Geutral Suppiies

Total Security

EXHIBIT C-1

 

 

 

 

 

          

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

   

Varlante

Original Final Final Budger
—Godget _Adjustments |Budge —__Actwal __TwActual

5 710.657 34,789. 5 143,43 TASAde .

1,500 (em) 1230 30 + 1,206

18,300 11380 18,120 16.370 1.550
2,500 2 2,700 2,540 660
5,500 2,805 4,305 FAT ER

320,000 (78,500) 211,300 241,590
7.188 (1,0007 6480 2,603 3,791

1,065,837 (42,758 1.023,78] TAU? 249,578

3 703,160 (34,790 3 E 3 664,333 $ 6.146

14,400 3 12,310 2,190

111,000 (105,000) 6,00

1,117,869 (2,150) 1,315,115 1,281,075 34,044

441,000 (16,952) 279,065 415455 8.609
2,120 8500 160 BER 1.909

2.591.858 (150,972) 7,490,386 2,381,598 38.888

344,235 303,500 435,856 11,889

222787) 322,410 1,544,101 505,863 335,438
100600285 197,732 31,599

725,910 _ 48306

(372,095) 3.473,639 65,624
a q 17,683

430 83,621 41,319

(143,959) 316,606 ILEGEl

39,020 607,494 160,580

1424 105,571 4857

528,295 199,406 721,697 4

Lo = 1,000

438,200 sa 345,064 103,878
497,887 516,384 411,705 104,679

803,552 816,836 639,144 157,742

00 700 125 ss

1675342 413,001) = 415,870

LZ0,TRH - 120,788 1,622

33,000 20,700 63,700 12,435

42,000 26,674 asbd

205,7%8 47,378 253,162 31,853

74,875 2,500

350,000 ‚ 350,000 308,004

132,000 347,14 263,863
6.000 - 2,110

562,476 217,641 FRO STE 348,855 135.667
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HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION

GENERAL FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE MISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

EXPENDITURES
CURRENT BXPINDITURES (Continued)
Student Tramspartation Services
Salaries far Pupil Trans (Other Than Serween Home & School)

Managemen! Fos (ESC nnd CTSA Transportation Program)
Other Purchased Professional and Techmical Services
‘Cleming, Repair, and Malatcoanee Services
Contract Services»Add in Lien Payments - Charter Sebool
Crntsact Services (Betwuen Home and School}Vendors
Contract Services (Chk Than Retweon Home and Schou!}-Vendere

Contract Services (Berween Home and School}-Joint Agreements

Contmnet Services (Special Ku Stadents)-Vendors
Contmct Survices (Spesial Ed Students}-foant Agecoments
Contract Services (Special Ed Smdents-ESCs and CTS As

ellancovs Purchased Services - Transportation
Char Dijerta

  

  

Total Student Transportation Servius

‘Unallocated Senedita - Employes Benefits

Social Security’ Commihutinas
Ciber Retivement Contribubions-PERS

‘Other Retirement Contributions - DORE

Unensployanent Compensation

‘Wovkinen's Cronpecieation,

Health Benefits

Tuition Reumburecnsnt

Other Emplevee Benefits
Uncaped Paysnent to TerminatedRetired Steff

 

Treat Unallocated Henefits - Employes Hemefita

‘Ou-behslETRAFPension System Cauuibutions- Nonna

Coats & Accrued Liability (Nen-Budget)
Oo-behalfTAF Peagion System Coutribatinns-hOGl

Cos (Noe-Budget)

On-bshalf TRAP Cantributious-Post RetinaMedien!

Contributions (Non-Budget)

On-bebel? TRAP Crntributions-Long:Tens Dizability

insurance Conminutions {Non-Paslget)

Heinburaed TRAP Sacial Security Paysremis (Moo-Pusdget}

Total TPAF Gn-Behalf

Tots] Undistibued Expenditures

Total Expenditwea - Current Expenditures

CAPITAL OUTLAY

Epic
Undistribwied Expenditures-[uatruction

Undisiribated Expenditares-Covivel Services:

‘Undistribated Expenditures-Case and Upkesp ofGrounds

Undistribuiud Expendinires-Security

Schpal Buses - Regul
Undisicibuted Expenditures-Non-Inetreetional Services

  

Total Equipment

EXITC-1

 

 

 

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

Variunce

Original Final Final Budget
Audert „Adi justmenis Bndget Actual To Actual

so mas 7506 3 Tas 59450 5 69,374

125,000 (3,500) 121,500 3,700 117,800

2500 (1,500) 1,000 1,000

22,500 3.210) 19,490 14,435 5,057

20,000 (866) 19,123 17,770 1,564

3,000 (3,000) -

208,305 40,276 445051 414,608 34,423

320 13,000 200 zu0

11,600 (11,600)
164,552 -

2,740,802 2.979.982 2,389,316 390,666

cat - 2.900 548 1,452

6500 3.050 9,050 1421

38, HER 2,301 266 AZAR 941

1,169,755 64197 1,226,412 1,075,926 142,546

1,653,525 (30,000) 1,625,005 1.197.806 228119

86400 2 26,400 5.257 1,133

25,101 1,090,Du0 1,025,000 1,000,000 25,000

552,557 (28,782) 523,173 625,775 -

15,092,484 ST) 18435439 7 12,504,124 1,031,515

Katz à 8,612 1,890 6,782

23,983 - 45,989 2.277 82,112
125,600 164,810 254,410 112,543 1,857

18,504.351 (AS50275) 18,454,082. 16,665,218 130,864

3,901,514 (9501614)
117,495 (117,478)

3,739,154 RARAE

5112 (3,11)

as ae _ 3,655,601 ___03,655,601)

5 Y __Tara_(TTATESE0)

BABIN 445.154 66129557 TSOASS (210,523)
 

113,564, 104 824.057 114,388,761

 

122.071.644 17,083,083)

 

126,114 86,123 35,391

158,501 13,200] 133,673 9,627

10,963 10,963

35,000 135,005) 19,395 .

114,700 (2,500) 110,741 1,639

a 33,264 F413 13121

328,100, 175,536. 507,836 ara BIS
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EXPENDITURES
CAPITAL OUTLAY (Continued)

Facilities Acquisition and Constracticm Aervicss

ArchitecturalEngingermg Servioca

Oiler Puschased Prot and Tech. Series

Crasiustion Services

Leaae Purchase Agreements - Principal

Assesament for Debt Service oa BDA Tumdiou,

Total Facilities Acquisition and Construction Serviees

Interest Deposit ta Capital Reserve:

Assuls Asquired Undr Capital Leases (Nonbadgeted)

Equipment

Keu-Enstrustiinal Equipanent

Student Transportation - School Inses

Tol Asseis Acquired Under Cupital Leases

Total Capital Outiny

THANSFER OF FUNDS TO CHARTER SCHOOL

Tatol Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

(yert(Linde’) Expenditurss

Other Financing Sources (Vase)

Capital Lense Proceeds

Transfers In - Capital Projects

 

Transfers Oul ~ Spocial Revere Fund

Total Cher Financing Sources (Usos)

Excoñ ¡Deficieney) el Revenues CreerUnder)

Expendinares wad Chee Finnncinys Sources

Fund Balance, Begining of Yeor

EXINBITC-1

HAUCH

 

ENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION

GENERAL FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE Hi, 2020

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Warinnee

Original Final Final Budget
Budget Adjustments Fudget Actunl ‘To Actunl

323,000 323,000 195,742 127,258

761,308 1,075,117 4,837,023 1,212,744 624,279

1,134,400 (1,309,501) 24,459 24,459
37,812 Hi 37,817 37,312 -

LUE _ R216 2,202,354 1,446,298 TGDG

216,116 (216,178)
= fo 4 abd lou (200,0

- - = ANG bdo

261,118 265,052. 26.170 2,500,052 226,118

E 409397 $ Boas £ 4119/7184 +

120,064,519 LITHIZE © INEMEAT  PORALETZ $(7,456,945)
 

psp) [LIT

 

128) 16,127,102) 4851823 10,978,925

 

 

616,116 $16,116
1,877 1,877

(411,499) = 495 AAN z

(411,499) _ (411,499) 206,494 617,593

(8308577) LEN (CSSS) 5,058,317 1/506.918

17,142,946 E 17,142,546 17.142.946 =
 

   

 

Fimd Matsnce, End of Year $ Ja 5 10,604,345 $ 22201261

Recapitolation ol Fund Balance

Reatricted Fund Balance

Canitul Resa ve
a 6,310,454

Capital Reservo - Desimated dos Sulbeequent Years Expendimares (2020011 Budget) 2,824,405

Maintenance Reserve

Emergenoy Reserve

Excuse Surplus

Excess Surplus: Designated for Subsenuent Yoar's Expendstures f202021 Boyer}

Avsigued Fund Nalance
Year-End Encumbrances

2,014,533

Designated m Subsequent Yenr's Pxpenditures (2020/21 Budget) 1,308,589
2,596,464

 

Reconcitintion to Governmental Funds Statements (AL

Final baso Aid Payments Nol Recognized om CAAP Basia

 

Less:

Final Balance Por Gavernmemal Fund (GAAP)

01,363
05,0165)

  

  

stress



HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

RUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

BUDGET(NON-GAAP) AND ACTUAL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 202)

REVENUES

Interguvenmental

Federal
State

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES

Instruction

Salaries ofTeachers

Other Salares for Instruction

Puchased Professional - Educational Services

Purchased Professional Services & Technical Servi:

Other Purchased Services

General Supplics

Textbooks

Other Objects

Total Instruction

Support Services

Salaries of Supervisors of Instruction

Selaries of Other Professional Staif

Sulories of Community Involvement Specialist

Salaries ofMaster Teachers

Personal Services-Employee Benefits

Purchased Professional and Technical Services

Purchased Professional-Educational Services

Cleming, Repair de Maintensnes Services

Purchased Properly Services

Other Purchased Services

Travel
Supplics and Materials

Other Objects

Total Support Services

EXHIBIT C-2

 

 

 

 

 

Original Final Variance

Budget ” Adjustments Budget Actual Final to Actual

$ 2835409 $ 659,451 9 3,404,950 # 3,307,523 (187,427)

2,163,537 1,678,235 3,841,772 2,345,638 (1,496,134)

_ 4,909,056 2,337,686 7,336,722 5,653,161 (1,683,561)

2,405,991 (881,757) 1,518,234 1,232,956 285,278

456,399 68,864 525,263 456,886 68,377

3,000 3,000 176 2,824

156,902 112,216 269,118 133,191 145,927

1,285,020 320,802. 1,605,822 1,520,780 85,042

918,084 918,084 479,896 438,188

5,535 5,535 5,535 -

2 3,020 3,020) 2482 538

4,304,912 543,764 4.848.076 3,821,902 1,026,174

118,400 - 118,400 115,242 3,158

72,000 61,690 133,690 73,690 60,000

20,000 - 20,000 19,992 8

72,000 70 72,070 72,070 -

383,296 284,429 667,725 647,936 19,789

419,127 274,578 693,705 684,631 3,074

21,40 171,443 192,843 192,749 ga

46,096 46,006 22955 23,141

2,287 2,187 2,287 =

200,415 200,415 200,415 =

74,823 74,823 49,158 25,565

7,492 7.392 650 6,723

653,141 653,141 143,470 509,671

- 4,300 4,500 4,336 164

1,106,223 1,780,864 2.887.087 2,129,700 657,387
 



Capital Outly
Instructional Equipment

Total Capital Oullay

"Fatal Expemdicures

cess (Deticieney) of Revenues

Orver{ Under} Expenditures:

 

‘Other Financing Sources

‘Transfers In- General Fund

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other

Financing Sources Over (Under)

Expeditures and Other Financing (Uses)

Fund Balances, Bepinning of Year

Fund Bilances, End ofYear

HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCTIEDULE

BUDGET (NON-GAAF) AND ACTU,

 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

EXHIBIT C-2

 

 

 

 

 

 

Original Final Variance

Budget Adjustments Budget Actual Final to Actual

-_ 13,058 13,058 13.058 . +

= = 13,058 13,058 13,058 =

5,410,535 2,157,686 7,148,221 _ 6,064,660 1,683,561

3,507,814

(411,490) = (411,499) (411,499) a

411,499 = 411,499 alla =

$ =£ Zé - a8 5
  

Reconciliation to Govermental Fund Statements (GAAP)

Less State Aid Revenue Not recognized on GAAP Basis

Fund Balance (GAAP)

 



EXHIBIT C-3

IACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

 

NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed us a management control device during the year. For

povernmental limds there are no substantial differences between the budgetary basis of accounting and accounting principles

generally accepted in the United Stales ol America, withthe exception ofthe legally mandated revenue recognition of certain

state aid payments for budgetary purposes only and the treatment of encumbrances in the special revenue fund as described

below. Encumbranes accountingis also employed as an extension oflormal budgetaryintegration of the governmental fund

types. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

The accounting revords of the Special Revenue und are maintained on the grant accounting budgelary basis, The grant

accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that the grant accounting budgetary basis recognizes encumbrances as

expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does not. Sufficient supplemental records

are maintained to allow for the presentation ofGAAP basis financial reports.

‘The following presents a reconciliation ofthe General and Special Revenue Funds from the budgetary basis of accounting

ag presented in the Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund and Special Revenue Fund to the GAAP basis of

accounting as presented in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Governmental Funds,

Special

General Revenue

Fund Fund

Sources/inflows of resources
Actual amounts (budectary basis) "revenue"

from the budgetary comparison schedule (O1) 5 135,543,435 (C-2) § 5,653,161

Difference - Sudget to GAAP:

State Aid payinents recognized for GAAPpurposes, not recognized

for Budgetarystatements (2018/2019) State Aid and Extraordinary Aid) 3,049,670

State Aid payment recognized for Budgetary purposes, not recognized

für GAAP statements (2019/2020) State Aid and Extraordinary Aid) (3,505,065)

Grant accounting budgetarybasis differes rem GAAP in that

encumbrances are recognized as expenditures, and the related revenue is

recognized but are not recognized forfinancial reporting purposes until incurred

Encumbrances, June 30, 2020 _ = (163,420)

Total revenues as reported on the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures

and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds. (B-2) $5 133,088.40 (B-2) $ 5,490,141

Uses/outllows of resources

Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total outflows"from the

budgetary comparison schedule (C-1) S$ 128,691,612 (0-2) $ 6,064,660

Difference - Budget ta GAAP:

Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered bynot received

are reported in the yearthe orderis place for budgetary purposes,

but inthe year the supplies arc received for financial reporting purposes

Encumbrances, June 30, 2020 - 163,020

Total expenditures as reported on the Statement of Revenues,

Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Punds 2) S$ 128,691,612 (B-2) 5 5,001,640



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - PARTTI

PENSION AND POST-EMPLOYMENTBENEFITS INFORMATION
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EXHIBIT L-4

HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY

AND SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT CONTRIBUTIONS

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARYINFORMATION

FOR THE FISCAL YEARENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Change ofBenefit Terms: None.

Change of Assumptions: Assumptions used in calculating the net pension Hability and

statutorily required employer contribution are presented in Note 4D.



Total OPER Liability

Serrive Cost
Intereston Votal OPEB Liability

Changes olBenefit Terme
Difterences Hetwoon Expected anil Actual Experience

Chinges of Assumptions

Gross Benefit Payments

Contribution from the Member

Net Change in Total OPEB Liability

Total OPEB Linbility - Begloning

Total OPEB Linbility - Ending

District's Frupurtionate Share ofOPLH Liahility

State's Preportionate Share ofOFLB Tjability

Total OPERA Liability - Ending

District's Covered Payroll

 

Districis Proporionnie Sharessfihe

Jotal OPEB Linbility as a Percentage of its

Covered Payroll

HACKENSACKBOARD OF EDTICATION

TOTAL OPEB LLABILITY

Pustemplayment Health Benefit Plan

Last ThreeFiscal Years*

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORAMTION

SCHRDITLE OF CHANGES IN THE DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF

 

    

2020 aus 2018

S OMR OS BTBEAST TER
8472383 6,750,033 5,836,411

(27,290,290) (11,082,850)
1,182,968 (18,744,553) (24,707,925)
(4,494,325) (4,267,763) (4,258,398)

133,324 156,805
(20,507,689) (14,793,108)
183,851,793 198,644,901

3 163344,104 3 182851793

so $0
146 dOR,ASE 163,444,104
& HGADRASS «$163,344 5

§ 59,682,095 5 38193685 3 S8/173/990

0% 0% 0%

Tote: No agsely are aecummlared in a trust that mects the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB 75.

*The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined us of the previous Hscal year end

This schedule is presentedto illustrate the requirement to show information for 1 years ía necordinee with GASB

 

Statement No.

years Tor which informationis available.

. Hwever, until a fill 10-year trend is compiled, the

 

#4

iglrict will onlypresent information for those

EXHIBIT L-5



EXHIBIT L-6

HACKENSACKBOARD OF EDUCATION

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE OPES LIABILITY

AND SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT PROPORTIONATESTARE OF THE OPEB LIABILITY

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Changes in Benefit Terms: None.

Assumptions used in calculating the OPEB liability
Changes ofAssumptions

are presented in Note4E.
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
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HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

PRESCHOOL EDUCATION AID SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES
PRESCHOOL - ALL PROGRAMS

BUDGETARYBASIS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

EXHIBIT E-2

 

 

 

 

 

 

Original Budget Final

Budget Adjustinents Budget Actual Variance

EXPENDITURES

Instruction

Salaries of Teachers $ 1,050,985 - 1,050,985 $ 835,505 5 195,480

Other Salaries for Instruction 456,399 64,000 20,399 454,819 65,580

Purchascd Professional-Educational Services 3,000 3,000 176 2,824

General Supplies = - 231.896 231.896 86,676 145,220

“Total Instruction 1,507,584 298,896  1,806.2#0 1,397,176 409,104

Support Services

Salaries of Supervisors of Instruction 118,400 - 118,400 115,242 3,158

Salaries of Other Professional Staff 72.000 61,690 133,650 73,690 60,000

Salaries of Community Involvement Spee 20,000 - 20,000 19,992 8

Salaries of Master Teachers 72,000 0 72,070 72,070 -

Personal Services - Employee Benefits 419,127 15.000 434,127 434,127 =

Other Purchased Professional - Education Servicı 21,400 - 21,400 21,400 -

OtherPurchased Professional Services 24,900 24,900 23,260 1.640

Cleaning, Repair & Maintenance Services 2,287 2,287 2,287 -

Purchased Property Services - Rentals - . 200,415 200.415 200,415 -

‘Votal Support Services 722,927 304,362 1,027,289 962,483 64,806.

Farililies Acquisition and Construction Services

Instructional Equipment - - -

Noninstructional Equipment ca - - - -

Total Facilities Acquisition and Construction

Services -_ a - === _

Total Expendilures $ 2230311 $ 603,358 $ 29133569 $ 2359659 $ 473,910
  
 

Calculation of Budget Carrvover

Total revised 2019-2020 Preschool Education Aid Allocation

Cancelled Prior Year Accounts Payable

General Fund Contribution

Add: Actual ECPA/PEA Carryover (June 30, 2019)

Total Preschool Ed, Aid Funds Available for 2019-2020 Budget

Less: 2019-2020 Budgeted Preschool Education Aid (Including

prior year budgeted carryover)

Available & Unbudeeted Preschool Education Aid Funds as of

Tune 30, 2020

Add: June 30, 2020 Unexpended Preschool Education Aid

2019-2020 C/0 » Preschool Education Add Programs

219-19 Preschool Education Aid CA) Budgeted in 2020-2021

S 1,818,812

417,499

631,348
2,861,689

2,833,569

28,000

473,910

$ 48,127



CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND



EXHIBIT F-1

HACENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATOIN

CAPITALPROJECTS FUND

SUMMARY SCHEDULEOF PROJECT EXPENDITURES

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE FISCAL YEARENDED JUNE 30, 2020
Unexpended

Project

Modified Expenditures to Date Balance

Issue! Project Tithe Appropriation Prior Years Current Year June 30.2020

Acquisition ofChromebouks de Various Information Technology [tems 5 1,500,916 À 1,456,492 $ 44424 # =

Acquisition ofPhone System
800008 636,198 113,802. =

 
$ 2300916 $ 2142600 5 15822 $ =

Fund Balance, June 30, 20211 - GAAP Basis $ =

39



EXHIBIT F-2

HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGETARYBASIS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE30, 2020

Revenues and Other Financing Sources

Interest on Investments >2065

Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources 2,063

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Capital Lease/Lease Purchase Agreement - Principal 158,226

Transfer to General Fund q 1,877

Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 160,103

Excess ofRevenues and Other Financing Sources over Expenditures

and Other Financing Uses (158,040)

Fund Balance- Beginning 158.040

Fund Balance- Ending
$ $

Reconciliation to GAAP

Fund Balance, End ofYear - Budgetary Basis $ -

Fund Balance, June 30, 2020- GAAP $ ci

90



EXHIBIT F-2a

HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE AND PROJECT STATUS

BUDGETARY BASIS

ACQUISITION OF CHROMEBOOKS AND VARIOUS INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY ITEMS

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

 

 

 

Revised

Authorized

Prior Periods Current Year Totals Cost

Revenues and Other Financing Sources

Capital Lease Proceeds $ 1,500,000 - $ 1,500,000 $ 1,500,000

Interest Ramings 730 186 916 916

Total Revenues and Other Finaneing Sources 1,500,730 186 1,500,916 1,500,916

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

General SuppliesEquipment 1,456,492 - 1,456,492 1,456,492

Lease Purchase Agreement- Principal = 44,424 44,424 44,424

Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 1,456,492 44,424 1,500,916 1,500,916
 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other Vinancing Sources

over (under) Expenditures and Other Financing Uses $ 44238 $ (44,238) 5 : $ =

91



EXHIBIT F-2

HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION

. CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE AND PROJECT STATUS

BUDGETARYBASIS

ACQUISITION OF PHONE SYSTEM

FROMINCEPTIONAND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE30, 2020

 

 

 

 

  

Revised

Authorized

Prior Periods Current Year Totals Cost

Revenues and Other Financing Sources

Capital Lease Proceeds $800,000 --& 800,000 $ 800,000

Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources 800,000 - 800.000 _800,000

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

General Supplies 658,115 658,115 658,115

Equipment
28,083 - 28,083 28,083

Capital Lease - Principal - 113,802 115,802 113,802

‘Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 686,198 113,802 800,000 800,000

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other Financing Sources

over (under) Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

§

113,802 S_ (113,802) $ -_ $ =



ENTERPRISE FUND



EXHIBIT G-i

HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION

ENTERPRISE FUND

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE PRESENTED ON EXHIBIT R-4

EXHIBIT G-2

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND

CHANGESIN NET POSITION

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE PRESENTED ON EXMIBITB-5

EXHIBIT G-3

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE PRESENTED ON EXHIBIT B-6

93



FIDUCIARYFUNDS



EXHIBIT H-I

HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENTOF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AS OF JUNE 30, 2020

 

 

 

Student Total

Activity Payroll Agency Funds

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents S 540,807 $ 17,404 $ 358,211

Total Assets $ 340807 $ 17,404 $ 358,211

LIABILITIES

Payroll Deductions and Withholdings 5 17,404 $ 17.404

Dueto Student Groups $ 340,807 - 340,807

‘Total Liabilities 5 340,807 $ 17,404 $ 358,211
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EXHIBIT E-2

HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGESIN NET POSITION

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

THIS STATEMENT18 NOT APPLICABLE

 

 

EXHIBIT H-3

STUDENT ACTIVITY AGENCY FUND

SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE30, 2020

Balance, Balance,

July L, 2019 Receipts Disbursements June 30, 2020

ELEMENTARY/MIDDLE SCHOOL

Fairmount Avenue School 5 1,771 $ 3374 $ 3,206 $ 1,939

Jackson Avenue School 2,658 1,934 590 4,002

Fanny MTillers School 818 3,644 2,721 1,741

Nellie Parker School 6,685 6,119 2,460 10,344

Nellie Parker School Donation 1,470 1,470

MIDDLE SCHOOL.

Middle School 20,188 25,744 18,946 26,986

HIGH SCHOOL

Hizh School 196,082 128,538 92,687 231,933

Varsity 8,751 23,701 31,528 924

ATHLETIC

Athletic Department 43,706 18,985 1,418 61,273

Athletic Scholarship - SU... — 195 195

Total - All Schools $ 282,129 $ 212,429 $ 153,751 $ 340,807
    



EXHIBIT H-4

HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION

PAYROLL AGENCY FUND

SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEARENDED JUNE 30, 2020

 

 

 

Balance, Balance,

June 30, June 30,

2019 Additions Delctions 2020

ASSETS

Cash $ 604,961 S 69,667,793 $ 70,255,350 $ 17,404

‘Total Assets 5 604,961 $ 69,667,793 $ 70,255,350 5 17,404

LIABILITIES

Accrued Salaries and Wages $ 5,173 $ 40,206,654 $ 40,211,827 $ -

Payroll Deductions and Withholdings 599,788 29,461,139 30,043,523 17,404

Total Liabilities $ 604,961 § 69,667,793 $ 70,255,350 $ 17,404
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STATISTICAL SECTION

‘This part of the Hackensack's Board of Education's comprehensive annual financial report

presents detailed information as a context for understanding what the informationin the financial

statements, note disclosures, and required supplementaryinformation says about the government's

overall financial health.

Contents
Exhibits

Financial Trends

These schedules contain trend informationto help the reader understand

howthe government's financial performance and well-being have changed

over time. J1 to 45

Revenue Capacity

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the govern-

ment's most significant local revenue source, the propertytax. J-6 to 1-9

Debt Capacity

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the atforda-

bility of the government's currentlevels of outstanding debt and the

government's ability to issue additional debt in the future. J-10 to J-13

Demographic and Economic Information

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the

reader understand the environment within which the government's finan-

J-|4 and J-15cial activities takeplace.

Operating Information

Theseschedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader

understand how the informationin the government's financial report

relates to the services the government provides and the activities it performs. J-16 to J-20

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the

comprehensive annualfinancial reports for the relevant year.
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EXHIBIT J-7

HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES

LAST TEN YEARS

(Unaudited)

(rate per 8100 ofassessed value)

 

 

Total Direct Total Direct and

Calendar School Tax City of Overlapping Tax

Year Rate Hackensack Bergen County Rate

2011 $ 1300 $ 1.430 $5 0.220 $ 2.950

2012 1.360 1,490 0.250 3.100

2013 1.420 1.540 0.260 3,220

2014 1,480 1.610 0.240 3.330

2015 1.550 1.690 0.260 3.500

2016 1.490 1.640 0.250 3.380

2017 1.540 1.640 0.240 3.420

2018 1.53 1.629 0.248 3.413

2019 1.521 1.585 0,251 3.357

2020 1.510 1.552 0.247 3.309

Source: Municipal Tax Collector

Note: Bergen County Board of Taxationcertifies only the total tax rate of cach taxing entity anc

total tax rate of the respective municipality
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EXHIBIT J-9

HACKENSACKBOARD OF EDUCATION

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(Unaudited)

Fiscal Collected within the Fiscal Year

Year of the Levy Collections in

Ended Taxes Levied for Percentage Subsequent

June 30, the Fiscal Year Amount ofLevy Years

2011 $ 64,779,300 $ 64,779,306 100.00%

2012 67,106,955 67,106,955 100.00%

2013 69,093,004 69,093,004 100.00%

2014 71,871,379 71.871.379 100.00%

2015 74,147,498 74,147,498 100.00%

2016 75,582,908 75,582,908 100.00%

2017 79,758,684 79,758,684 100.00%

2018 81,921,377 81,921,377 109.00%

2019 83,501,257 83,501,257 100.00%

2020 85,146,015 85,146,015 100.00%

Source: District financial records
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EXHIBIT J-11

HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION

RATIOS OF NET GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(Unandited)

General Bönded Debt Outstanding

 

Fiscal Percentage of

Year General Net General Actual Taxable

Ended Obligation Bonded Debt Value” of

June 30, Bonds Deductions Outstanding Property Per Capita à

2011 $ 5,410,000 $ 5,410,000 0.11% $ 126

2012 4,780,000 4,780,000 0.10% 110

2013 4,160,000 4,160,000 0.08% * 96

2014 3,545,000 3,545,000 0.07% 8l

2015 2,935,000 2,935,000 0.06% 66

2016 2,340,000 2,340,000 0.05% 53

2017 1,755,000 1,755,000 0.03% 40

2018 1,175,000 1,175,000 0.02% 26

2019 595,000 595,000 0.01% 13

2020 - - 0.00% -

Source; District records

Notes:
a See Exhibit J-6 for property tax data.

b See Exhibit J-14 for population data.

* The Borough underwent a revaluation effective calendar year 2013
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HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2019
(Unaudited)

Municipal Debt: (1)

Hackensack Board of Education (As of June 30, 2020)

City of Hackensack

Overlapping Debt Apportioned to the Municipality:

Bergen Counly:
County of Bergen (A)

Bergen County Utilities Authority - Water Pollution (B)

Total Direct and Overlapping Debl

Source:

(1) City of Hackensack’s 2019 Annual Debt Statement

(A) The debt for this entity was apportioned to the City of Hackensack hy dividing the municipality's 2019

equalized value bythe total 2019 equalized value for Bergen County,

{B) Overlapping debt was computed based upon municipal flowto the Authority.
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EXHIBIT J-12

Total Debt

$ a

101,906,185

_101,908,185

44,854,210
12,534,195

57,188,405

§ 159,294,590
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EXHIBIT J-14

HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION

DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(Unaudited)

County Per Capita

 
 Year Population Personal Income Unemployment Rate

2011 43,068 $ 64,229 9,20%

2012 43,303 66.064 8.80%

2013 43,407 69,053 7.70%

2014 43,512 72,152 6.50%

2015 44,181 71,679 5.50%

2016 44,281 74,452 5.00%

2017 44,257 77,666 4,70%

2018 44,518 79,145 4.30%

2019 44,354 81,483 3.70%

2020 44,188 85,951 3.70% E

N/A - Not Available

Source: New Jersey State Department of Education
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HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION

EXHIBIT J-15

 

 

PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS,

CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

(Unaudited)

2020 2011

Percentage of Percentage of

Total Total

Municipal Municipal

Employer Employees Employment Employees Employment

NOT AVAILABLE
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EXHIBIT J-19

HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION
GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REQUIRILD MAINTENANCE FORSCHOOL FACILITIES

LAST TENYEARS

  

 

      

(Unaudited)

UNSISTRIBUTEN EXPENDITURES - REQUIRED
MAINTENANCE FOR SCHOOL FACILITIES

Project # (3) zo 202 2013 anid 2015 aus 2017 ais ais aa

School Filiticg
Unckensack High Schoo! NYA 3206518 $ 218,177 $ 277,050 § 40654 3 280651 5 311,184 5 MSI 3 455551 ze

Middle School WA MIE 1 158,843 214,047 165,203 183,389 241,140 578,160

Nollie K. PorierShoal WA 61,689 66,481 12,201 93443 103,730 136,754 144,563

Feirmenemt Schoal SIA 70,857 66,085 91,854 71,002 THRIS 103,896 111,491

FermyML Hillers School NIA 80,141 145,588 121,15 93117 103,268 156,257 146,526

Jackson Ayers Schcol NIA 73812 113,845 92,549 T6 1858 103,555 111,192

ECDC NA 49,144 61.358 46,918 52,184 68,655 51,544

Admimistratica Building, NON m 65035 3,966 91 11441 8,748 gui © IA 15.963

‘Votal School Fuvilities LARGE _ 666

|

832456 SOLLTE LISE 860,384

_

955100 1,258,989 _ 1,

Other Facilities ae =: = * = = = = D as =

Grund Total 5 s0244h $68,038 $ 83245 3 901,193 SLISIN S 800448 $ 06038 $ BSELOD S 1958980 S 1804]
 

Source: District Reads

Souree: School Disinet’s financial sitlements

q



Company

NIJSchool Board

Association Insurance
GroupNarth Jersey

Educational
Insurance Fund

Source: District Records

HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION

SCHEDULE OF INSURANCE

JUNE 30, 2020

(Unaudited)

Type of Coverage
Coverage

Properly =
Real and Personal Property $ 500,000,000

Total Building and Content Insured Value $ 184,803,442

Extra Expense $ 50,000,000
Valuable Papers end Records 5

=

10,000,000

Demplition and Increased Cost of Construction $ 25,000,000

Loss ofRents Not Covered

Loss ofBusiness Income/Tuition 5 435,000

Limited Builders Risk $

=

10,000,000

Fire Department Service Charge 5 10,000

Arson Reward $ 10,00

Pollutant Cleanup and Removal $ 250,000

Sublimits: Special Flood Hazard Area Flood Zones 5 25,000,000

Accounts Receivable $ 230,000

All Flood Zones
75,000,000

Earthquake
5 350,000,000

Terrorisin
5 1,000,000

Electronic Data Processing -

Data Processing Equipment
§ 2,500,000

Equipment -
Combined Single Limit per Accident for Property

Damage and Business Income § 100,000,000

Crime -

Public Employee Dishonesty with Faithful Performance $ 400,000

Theft, Disappearance and Destruction - Loss of Money &

Securities On or Off Premises 5 50,000

Theft, Disappearance and Destruction - Money Orders &

Counterfeit Paper Currency $ 50,000

Forgery or Alteration 5 50,000

Computer Fraud 5 30,000

Comprehensive General Liability -

Bodily Injury and Property Damage 5 31,000,000

Products end Completed Operations $ 31,000,000

Sexual Abuse
$ 17,000,000

Personal Injury and Advertising injury 5 31,000,000

Employee Benefits Lisbility $ 31,000,000

Terrorista
5 1,000,000

Automobile -
Bodily Injury and Property Damage $ 31,000,000
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Deductible

5,000

5.000
5,000

NIA
WA
WA

WA

WA
NIA
NEA

1,000,000
WA

10,000
N/A
WA

1.000

3,000

1,000

500

500
500
500

N/A

NIA
WA
WA

1,000
N/A

N/A
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EXHIBIT K-1

TIETIOR I. LERCH, CPA, MA, PEA
ELISABETHA SHICH, GPA, RMA, PBA

GARY J O, CPA, BMA, PSA
ROBERT W. HAAG, CPA, PSA

GARY W. HIGGINS, CMA, RMA, PEA RALPH M. PICOME, Hl CPA RMA, PRA

JEFEHIY C, BLISE, OPA, IMA, PEA DONMAL. JAPHET, ÜPA, BSA,

PAUL. LERCH, OPA, BMA, PSA
DIERRA GOLLE, CIA

JULIE 3, CONSONT, CPA, PEA
MARE SACO, CTA

ANDREWD. PARENTS, CPA, BALA, PEA
ROBERT LEACH, CPA

‘CHRIS SOHN, CRA

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCLAL REPORTING AND ON

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Honorable President and Members

of the Board of Education

Hackensack Board ofEducation

Hackensack, New Jersey

Wehave audited, in accordance with ihe auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the

standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller

General of the United States and audit requirements prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of

Education, State of New Jersey, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type achvilies,

cach major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Hackensack Board of Education as of and for

the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the

Hackensack Board of Edueation’s basic Gnancial statements and have issued our report thereon dated December17,

2020.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Hackensack Board of

Education's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are

appropriate in the cireumstancesfor the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements but not for the

purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Hackensack Board of Education's internal control.

Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Hackensack Board of Education’s internal

control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or

employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,

rhisstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal

control, such that there ig a reasonable possibilitythat a material misstatementofthe entity’s financial statements will

not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a

combination ofdeficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to

merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control was forthe limited purpose describedin the first paragraph ofthis section and was

not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknessesorsignificant deficiencies

and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. Given these

limitations, during our audit we did not idenlify anydeficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material

weaknesses. We did identify a certain deficiency in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of

findings and questioned costs as item 2020-001 that we consider to be a significant deficiency.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Hackensack Board of Education’s financial statements

are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,

repulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on

the delermination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those

provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our

iests disclosed an instance of noncompliance or other matter that is required to be reported under Government

Auditing Standards and audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department ofEducation,

State of NewJersey and which is described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item

2020-001.

 

We also noted certain matters that are not required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards that we

reported to management of the Hackensack Board of Education in a' separate report entitled, “Auditor's Management

Report on Administrative Findings — Financial, Compliance and Performance” dated December 17, 2020,

 

Hackensack Board of Education's Responses to Findings

The Hackensack Board of Education’s response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the

accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The Hackensack Board of Educalion's response was nol

subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the andit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express 10

opinion on the response.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose ofthis report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the

results of thal testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Hackensack Board of Education’s

internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with

Government Auditing Standards in considering the Hackensack Board of Education’s internal control and

compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Lech, Viacı À Hcc me COP

LERCH, VINCI & HIGGINS, LLP

Certified Public Accountants

Public School Accountants
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Fair Lawn, New Jersey

December 17, 2020

123



LERCH, VINCI & HIGGINS, Lup
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
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EXHIBIT K-2

DITE, LERCH, CPA BNA, PSA ELIZABETH A. SHICK, CBA, RMA, PRA

CARY JVINCI, O ROBERT W. HAAG, CPA, PSA

GARY W. HIGGINS, CPA, RMA, PSA RALPH M. PICONE, II CHA RMA, PSA

eKREY C. BLISS, CBA, RMA, PSA DONNA L. TAMIET, GA, PSA

PAUL. LURCH, CPA, RMA, PSA DEBRA GOL, CPA

183, CONSONI, OPA, PSA MARE SACO, CPA

ANDHERW D, PARENTE, UPA, IMA, PEA ROBERT LERCH, CEA

CHRIS SOHN, CRA

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOREACH MAJOR FEDERALAND STATE PROGRAM;

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE: AND REPORT ON SCHEDULE

OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS REQUIRED BY THE U.S. UNIFORM GUIDANCE AND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE REQUIRED BY NEW JERSEY

OMB CIRCULAR 15-08

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Honorable President and Members

of the Board of Education

Hackensack Board ofEducation

Hackensack, New Jersey

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal and State Program

We have audited the Hackensack Board of Education's compliance with the types of compliance requirements

described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Compliance Supplement and the New Jersey OMB

Circular 15-08 StateAid/ Grant Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of

Hackensack Board of Education’s major federal and state programs for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, The

Hackensack Board of Education’s major federal and state programsare identified in the summary of auditor's results

section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal and state statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions
of its federal awards and state financial assistance applicable to its federal and state programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Hackensack Board of Education's major
federal and state programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We

conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of

America; (he standards applicable to financial audits contained in GovernmentAuditing Standards, issucd by the

Comptroller General of the United States; audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of School Finance,

Department of Education, State of New Jersey; Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and

NewJersey OMB Circular 15-08, Single Audit Policy for Recipients ofFederal Grants, State Grants and State Aid.

Thase standards, U.S. Uniform Guidance and NewJersey Circular require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to
above (hai could have a direct and material effect on a major federal or state program occurred. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Hackensack Board of Education's compliance with those requirements
and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.
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Webelieve that ouraudit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal and state

program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Hackensack Board of Education’s

compliance,

Opinion on Each Major Federal and State Program

In our opinion, the Hackensack Board of Education complied,in all material respects, with the types of compliance

requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal and state

programs for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020.

Other Matters

‘The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance, which are required to be reported in

accordance with the U.S. Uniform Guidance and New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08 and which are described in the

accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2020-002 through 2020-005. Our opinion on each

major federal and state program is not modified with respect to these matters.

The Hackensack Board of Education’s responses to the noncompliance findingsidentified in our audit are described

in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, The Hackensack Board of Education’s responses

were not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no

opinion on the responses.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the Hackensack Board ofEducation is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal

control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing

our audit of compliance, we considered the Hackensack Board of Education's internal control over compliance with

the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal and state program to

determine the auditing procedures that aré appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion

on compliance for each major federal and state program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in

accordance with the U.S. Uniform Guidance and New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08, but not for the purpose of

expressing an opinion onthe effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an

opinion onthe effectiveness of the Hackensack Board of Education's internal control aver compliance.

A deficiency in interna] control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance

does not allow managementor employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or

detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal orstate program on a timely

basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in

inlernal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliancewith a type

of compliance requirementofa federal or state program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely

basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combinationofdeficiencies, in

interrial control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program that is less

severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to meritattention by those

charged with governance.

Ourconsideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of

this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be

material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and, therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may

exist that were not identified. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we

consider to be material weaknesses. However, we did identify certain deficiencies in internal control over

compliance, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2020-005 that we

consider to be significant deficiencies.



The Hackensack Board of Education’s response to the internal control over compliance findings identified in our

audit is described in the accompanying schedule offindings and questioned costs. The Hackensack Board of

Education’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and,

accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.

The purposeofthis report on internal control over complianceis solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal

control over compliance and the results ofthat testing based onthe requirements of U.S. Uniform Guidance and New

Jersey OMB Circular 15-08. Accordingly,this reportis not suitable for any other purpose.

Report on Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the U.S. Uniform Guidance and

Schedule of Expenditures of State Financial Assistance Required by New Jersey OMB Cireular 15-08

We have audited the financial statements of the governmentalactivities, the business-type activities, each major fund,

and the aggregate remaining fimd informationof the Hackensack Board ofEducation, as ofand for the fiscal year ended

June 30, 2020 and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively compris¢ the Board of Education's

basic financial statements. We have issued our report thereon dated December 17, 2020, which contained unmodified

opinions on those financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial

statements that collectively comprise the basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of

federal awards as required by the U.S. Uniform Guidance and schedule of expenditures of state financial assistance as

required by New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08 are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required

part ofthe basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and

relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The

information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the andit ofthe financial statements and certain

additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and

other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other

additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, In our

opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and schedule of expenditures of state financial assistance are

fuirly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

[sach : Umer & Higgos, CoP

LERCH, VINCI & HIGGINS, LLP

Certified Public Accountants

Public School Accountants
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EXHIBIT K-35

HACKENSACKBOARD OF EDUCATION

NOTES TO THESCHEDULES OF EXPENDITURES OF

FEDERAL AWARDS AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

FOR THE FISCAL YEARENDED JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 1 GENERAL

The accompanying schedules present the activity of all federal and state financial assistance programs of the

Hackensack Board of Education. The Board ofEducation is defined in Note 1(A) to the Board's financial statements.

‘All federal financial assistance received directly from federal agencies, as well as federal awards and state financial

assistance passed throughother government agenciesis included on the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and

state financial assistance.

NOTE 2 BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying schedules are prepared and presented using the budgetarybasis of accounting with the exception of

programs recorded in the food service fund, which are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. These basis of

accounting are described in Notes 1(C) to the Board's financial statements. The information in these schedules is

presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform

Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles, and Andit Requirements for Federal Awards (U.S. Uniform Guidance)

and NewJersey OMB Circular 15-08, “Single Audit Policv for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants, and State

Aid”. Therefore, some amounts presented in these schedules may differ from the amounts presented in, or used in the

preparation of, the financial statements.

NOTE 3 RELATIONSHIP TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements present the general fund and special revenue fund on a GAAP basis. Budgetary comparison

statements or schedules (RSI) are presented for the general fund and special revenue fund to demonstrate finance-

related legal compliance in whichcertain revenue is permitted by lawor grant agreementto be recognized in the audit

year, whereas for GAAP reporting, revenueis not recognized until the subsequerit year or when expenditures have been

made.

The general fond js presented in the accompanying schedules on a modified accrual basis with the exception of the

revenue recognition of the delayed state aid payments in the current budget year, which is mandated pursuant to

NJS.A. 184:22-44,2, For GAAP purposes, those payments are not recognized until the subsequent year due to the

state deferral and recordingofcertain state aid payments in the subsequent ycar. The special revenue fundis presented

in the accompanying schedules on the grant accounting budgetary basis which recognizes encumbrances as

expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues, which mayinclude the delayed state aid payments, whereas the

GAAP basis does not, The special revenue fund also recognizes the delayed state aid payments in the current budget

year, consistent with N.J.S.A, 184:22-44,2,

The net adjustment to reconcile from the budgetary basisto the GAAP basis is a decrease of $455,395 for the general

fund and a decrease of $163,020 for the special revenue fund. See the Notes lo Required Supplementary Information

for a reconciliation of the budgetary basis to the modified accrual basis of accounting for the general and special

revenue finds. Awards and financialassistance revenuesare reported in the Board's financial statements on a GAAP

basis as presented as follows:
 Federal State Total

General Fund $ 216,779 $ 40,627,832 $ 40,844,611

Special Revenue Fund 3,205,218 2,184,923 5,490,141

Food Service Fund 1,875,311 | 20,819 1,896,130
 

Total Awards and Financial Assistance $ 5,207,308 $ 42,933,574 $ 48,230,882
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EXHIBIT K-5

HACKENSACKBOARD OF EDUCATION

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULES OF EXPENDITURES OF

FEDERAL AWARDS AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

FORTHE FISCAL YEARENDED JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 4 RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL AND STATE FINANCIAL REPORTS

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules maynot necessarily agree with the amounts reported in the related

foderal andstate financial reports due to timing differences between the District’s fiscal year and grant program years.

NOTES OTHERINFORMATION

Revenues and expenditures reported under the Food Distribution Program as non-cash assistance represent current year

value received and current year distributions, respectively. TPAF Social Security contributions in the amount of

$3,655,601 represents the amount reimbursed bythe State for the employer's share of social security contributions for

TPAFmembers for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. The amount reported as TPAF Pension System Contributions

in the amount of $10,079,089, TPAF Post-Retirement Medical Benefits Contributions in the amount of $3,739,158 and

TPALong-Term Disability Insurancein the amount of$5,112 represents the amountpaid bythe State on behalf of the

District for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020.

NOTE 6 ON-BEHALF PROGRAMS NOT SUBJECT TO STATE SINGLE AUDIT

On-behalf State Programs for TPAF Pension, Post-Retirement Medical Benefits and Long-Term Disability Insurance

Contributions payments are not subject to a State single audit and, therefore, are excluded from major program

determination, The Schedule of State Financial Assistance provides a reconciliation of State financial assistance

reported in the District's financial statements and the amount subject to State single audit and major program

determination.

NOTE7 DE MINIMIS INDIRECT COST RATE

The District has notelected to use the 10 percent de minimis indirectcost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidanee.
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EXHIBITK-6

HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEARENDED JUNE30, 2020

Part I— SummaryofAuditor’s Results

Financial Statements
 

Typeofauditor's report issued on financial statements

Internal control over financial reporting:
1) Material weakness(es} identified?

2) Were significant deficiencies identified that are not
considered to be material weakness(es)?

Noncompliance material to the basie financial
statements noted?

Federal Awards Section
 

Internal Control over major programs:
(1) Material weakness(es) identified?

(2) Significant deficiencies identified that are not

considered to be material weaknesses?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for

major programs

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported

in accordance with Title 2 Part 200 of U.S. Uniform Guidance?

Identification ofmajor federal programs:

Unmodified

yes x no

_

xXyes noncreported

x yes no

yes x no

yes x none reported

Ummodified

x yes no

 

CEDANumber(s) FAIN NameofFederal Program or Cluster

84.010 50104190030 Title I

93.778 200SNTSMAP Medicaid Assistance Program (SEMI)
 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between

Type A and Type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?
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EXHIBIT K-6

HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Part I - Summary ofAnditor’s Results

State Awards Section

Internal Control over compliance:

(1) Material weaknesses identified?

2) Were significant deficiencies identified that are not

considered to be material weakness(es)?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for

major programs

Any audit findings disclosed that are requiredto be reported

in accordance with N.J, Circular Letter 15-08?

Identification of major state programs:

GMISNumber

20-495-034-5 120-078

20-495-034-5120-084

20-495-034-5120-089

20-495-034-5 120-44

20-495-(134-5094-003

ee

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between

Type A and Type B programs:

Auditee qualified a8 low-tisk auditee?

134

os _X_m

Xyes __hone reported

Unmodified

_Xyes _==

Name of State Programor Cluster

Equalization Aid

Security Aid

Special Education Categorical Aid

Extraordinary Aid

Reibursed TPAF Social Security

 

$901,135

X_ yes no



EXHIBIT K-7

HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEARENDED JUNE30, 2020

Part 2 — Schedule ofFinancial Statement Findings.

This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, fraud, illegal acts, violations of provisions of

contracts and grant agreements and abuse related to the financial statements in accordance with Government Auditing

Standards.

Finding 2020-001

Ouraudit of year end open purchase orders in the General Fund revealed certain purchase orders were not reviewed

at year end forvalidity, We noted numerous encumbrances which we deemed invalid at year end.

Criteria or specific reguirement:

Internal controls over year end closing procedures of open purchase orders,

Condition

Certain open purchase orders classificdas encumbrances at June 30, 2020 were determined not to be valid and

should have been cancelled prior to the financial statement close-out at year end.

Context

Encumbrances recorded in the General Fund at June 30, 2020 totaling $701,623 were determined to be invalid.

Effect
Financial statements do not properly reflect fund balances at year end.

Cause

Unknown.

Recommendation

Procedures be revised to ensure open purchase ordets are reviewed at year end for validity and invalid orders be

cancelled accordingly.

View of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Action

Management has reviewedthis finding and indicated it will revise its procedures to ensure corrective action is taken.



EXHIBIT K-7

HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Part 3 — Schedule ofFederal and State Award Findingsand Questioned Costs

This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance, including

questioned costs,related to the audit of major federal and state programs, as required by U.S. Uniform Guidance and New

Jersey OMB's Circular 15-08.

CURRENT YEAR FEDERAL AWARDS

Finding 2020-002

Our audit of the ESEA Tide I grant program revealed certain time and effort reports were not provided for audit for

certain employees charged to the grant program,

Information on the Federal Program:

TitleT 84.010

Criteria or Specific Requirement:

Uniform Guidance; Federal Grant Compliance Supplement

Condition:

Certain time and effort reports were not onfile to support certain salary charges to the Title I grant program during,

20192020,

Questioned Costs:

Unknown.

Context:

Three (3) time and effort reports for January 2020 and one (1) time and effort report for June 2020 were not

providedfor audit for three (3) employees sampledin the audit of salary charges.

Effect:

Grant expenditures may not be for eligible program charges.

Unknown.

Recommendation:

Time and effort reports be completed and retained on file for all employees charges of the ESEA Title I grant

program.

Views ofResponsible Officials and Planned Corrective Action Plan:

Managementhas reviewed this finding and has indicated that corrective action will be taken.
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EXHIBIT K-7

HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Part 3 — Schedule ofFederal and StateAward Findings and Questioned Costs

This section identifies the significant deficiencics, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance, including

questioned costs,related to the audit ofmajor federal and state programs, as required by U.S. Uniform Guidance and New

Jersey OMB’s Circular 15-08,

CURRENT YEAR STATE AWARDS

Finding 2020-003

Ourandit revealed certain expenditures that were not classified and charged to the proper budget account lines in

accordance with the Uniform MinimumChart ofAccounts for New Jersey Public Schools. 7

State Program Information:

Equalization Aid 495-034-5120-078

Special Education Aid 495-034-5120-089

Security Aid 495-034-5120-084

Criteria or Specifie Requirement

State Grant Compliance Supplement — State Aid Public — Special Tests and Provisions

Condition:

Capital lease and lease-purchase payments,travel expense reimbursements and the Athletic Director's salary were

not charged to the proper budget program, function and/or object codes.

Questioned Costs:

Unknown.

Context:

Lease payments totaling $843,223, 3 outof5 travel expense reimbursement tested and the Athletic Director's

salary of $167,320 were not charged to the proper budget line accounts,

Effect:

The District is not in compliance with the State of New Jersey Grant Compliance Supplement and Uniform

Minimum Chart of Accounts.

Cause:

Unknown.
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EXHIBIT K-7

HACKENSACKBOARD OF EDUCATION

SCHEDULE OFFINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Part 3 — Schedule ofFederal andStateAward Findings and Questioned Costs

This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance, including

questioned costs, related to the audit of major federal and state programs,as required by U.S. Uniform Guidance and New

Jersey OMB’s Circular 15-08.

CURRENT YEAR STATE AWARDS

Finding 2020-003 (Continued)

Recommendation:

Procedures be enhanced to ensure expenditures are charged to the proper budget line accounts in accordance with

The Uniform Minimum Chart ofAccounts for New Jersey Public Schools.

Viewof Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Action:

Management has reviewed this finding and indicated it will reviewand revise its procedures to ensure corrective

action is taken.

138



EXHIBIT K-7

HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Part 3 — Schedule ofFederal andStateAward Findings and Questioned Costs

This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance, including

questioned costs, related to the audit ofmajor federalandstate programs, as required by U.S. Uniform Guidance and New

Jersey OMB’s Circular 15-08.

CURRENT YEAR STATE AWARDS

Finding 2020-004

À review of students’ Individual Education Plans (IEP) revealed certain students reported on the application for

State Extraordinary Aid did not have an intensive related service specifically includedin their IEP. A minimum of

one intensive related service is required to be included in a student's TEP to be cligible for inclusion on the

Extraordinary Aid application.

State Program Information:

 

Extraordinary Special Education Aid 495-034-5120-044

Criteria or Specific Requirement

State Grant Compliance Supplement — Extraordinary Aid — Eligibility

Condition: |

Certain students IEPs included on the Extraordinary Aid application did not indicate they were required to

receive intensive related services.

Questioned Costs:

Unknown.

Context:

Eight (8) students tested out of twenty (20) sampled did not have an intensive related service included in their

TEP.

Effect:
 

Certain students included on the Extraordinary Aid application maynot have meteligibility requirements of the

program,

Cause:

Unknown.
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EXHIBIT K-7

HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2020

Part 3 — Schedule ofFederal andState Award Findings and Questioned Costs

This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance, including

questioned costs, related to the audit of majorfederal and state programs,as required by U.S, Uniform Guidance and New

Jersey OMB’s Circular 15-08.

CURRENT YEAR STATE AWARDS

Finding 2020-004 (Continued)

Recommendation:

Procedures be revised to ensure student IEP’s specifically identify the intensive related service provided to the

respective student reported onthe application of State ExtraordinaryAid,

View of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Action:

Managementhas reviewedthis finding and indicatedit will review and reviseits procedures to ensure corrective

action is taken.
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EXHIBIT K-7

HACKENSACKBOARD OF EDUCATION

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Part 3 — Schedule of Federal and State AwardFindings and Questioned Costs

This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance, including

questionedcosts, related to the audit of major federal and state programs, as required by U.S. Uniform Guidance and New

Jersey OMB’s Circular 15-08.

CURRENT YEAR STATE AWARDS

Finding 2020-005

Our audit of purchases and contract awards in excess of the bid threshold revealed the following as it relates to

compliance with the Public School Contracts Law and State procurement guidelines:

® We noted several instances where contract awards and purchases were made in excess of the bid threshold where

there was no documentation provided to support publicly advertised bids were sought, State contract or cooperative

purchasing contracts were awarded or a competitive contracting process was conducted in accordance with the

requirements of the Public School Contracts Law (N.I.3.A. 18A:18A).

+ Our audit indicated several vendors paid in excess of the bid threshold were based on the use of state contracts or

cooperative purchasing agreements which were notall approved by the Board and included in the official minutes.

Furthermore, the applicable state contract and cooperative purchasing agreements were not provided in order to

determinethe validity of the contracts.

s We noted purchases in excess of the bid threshold made through a National Purchasing Cooperative agreement

vendor that was not approved in the minutes and not publicly advertised for intent to purchase. In addition,

documentation was not provided to support verification of bid process or proofofcost savings.

State program information:

Equalization Aid 495-034-5120-078

Special Education Aid 495-034-5 120-089

Security Aid 495-034-5120-084

Criteria orspecific requirement:

State Grant Compliance Supplement — State Aid Public — Special Tests and Provisions

NISA 18A:18A — Public School Contracts Law

Condition:

Purchases of various goods and services were made which were not in accordance with the procedures specified in

(he Public School Contracts Lawand State procurement guidelines.

Questioned Costs:

Unknown.
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EXHIBIT K-7

HACKENSACKBOARD OF EDUCATION

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE30, 2020

Part 3 — Schedule of Federal and State Award Findings and Questioned Costs

This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance, including

questionedcosts,related to the audit of major federal and state programs, as required by U.S, Uniform Guidance and New

Jersey OMB's Circular 15-08.

CURRENT YEAR STATE AWARDS

Finding 2020-005 (Continued)

Context:

> Purchases and contracts in excess of the bid thresholdfor school supplics, custodian supplies, copiers and boiler

repairs were made in excess ofthe bid threshold for which documents were unavailable to determine if awards

were procured through public bids advertised or other required processes in accordance wilh Public School

Contracts Law.
> Five (5) vendors were noted, which were paid in excess ofthe bid threshold for which the District utilized state

contracts or cooperative pricing agreements, Such contracts were not all approved bythe board in the official

minutes, furthermore, documentation to support the specific state contract and/or cooperative purchasing

agreement contractutilized was not maintained by the District.
Purchases in excess of the bid threshold made under a National Cooperative purchasing agreement for computer

laptops were not supported by a cost-savings analysis, verification of bid process followed, advertisement of

intent to purchase under a National Cooperative and was not approved by Board resolution.

x

Effect:

Noncompliance with requirements ofthe Public School Contracts Law,

Cause:

Unknown.

Recommendation:

+ Internal control procedures over purchasing be reviewed and revised to ensure all contract awards and

purchases which exceed the bid threshold are procured in accordance with the requirements ofthe Public

School Contracts Law. In addition, documentation be maintained on file and made available for audit to

support the District’s compliance with the procedures required under the Public School Contracts Law

(N.IS.A. 18A:18A),

« Contract awards and purchases made in excess of the bid threshold through the use of State contracts,

cooperative purchasing agreements and National Purchasing Cooperatives be approved bythe Board in the

official minutes and made in accordance with State procurement guidelines. In addition, documentation be

maintained on file and made available for audit to support the District’s awards pursuant to State contract

and cooperative purchasing agreements.

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Action Plan:

Management has reviewed this finding and has indicated it will review and revise its procedures to ensure

corrective action is taken.
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EXHIBIT K-8

HACKENSACKBOARD OF EDUCATION

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2020

This section identifies the status of prior-year findings related to the basic financial statements and federal and state

awards that are required to be reported in accordance with Chapter 6.12 of Government Auditing Standards, U.S. Uniform

Guidance and New Jersey OMB’s Circular 15-08.

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS

Finding 2019-001

Condition

Certain open purchase orders at June 30, 2019 were determined to not have been classified properly between

accounts payable and encumbrances. In addition, certain liabilities were not recorded at year end,

Current Status

Corrective action has been taken

Finding 2019-002

Condition

Thetransactionsrelating to two (2) lease-purchase agreement bank accounts maintained by a Fiscal Agents were not

reported in the Districf's accounting records, Also, payments made by the Fiscal Agentas directed by the District

Administration were no approved bythe Board in the minutes,

Current Status

Corrective action has been taken.

Finding 2019-003

Condition

The Board is not in compliance with their previous bond undertakingto provide certain secondary market disclosure.

Current Status

Corrective action has been taken.

143



EXHIBIT K-8

HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

This section identifies the status of prior-year findings related to the basic financial statements and federal and state

awardsthat are required to be reported in accordance with Chapter 6.12 of Government Auditing Standards, U.S. Uniform

Guidance and New Jersey OMB's Circular 15-08.

STATUS OFPRIOR YEAR FINDINGS

Finding 2019-004

Condition

Purchase of security cameras, lease payments for a phone system and student accident insurance were charges to

regular instruction and school sponsored athletics rather than to the proper budget function codes of security and

ecneral administration.

Current Status

See Finding 2020-003

Finding 2019-005

Condition

Purchases of various goods and services were made which were not in accordance with the procedures specified in

the Public School Contracts Law and State procurement guidelines.

Current Status

See Finding 2020-005

Finding 2019-006

Condition

Transportation contracts were awarded or renewed through a coordinated transportation services agency (CTSA)

however, the Board did not formally approvethe contracts or rencwals by resolution nor was the approval of the

Executive County Superintendent providedfor audit.

Current Status

Corrective action has been taken.
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EXHIBIT K-85

HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

FORTHE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 36, 2020

This section identifies the status of prior-year findings related to the basic financial statements and federal and state

awards that are required to be reported in accordance with Chapter 6.12 of Government Auditing Standards, U.S, Uniform

Guidance and New Jersey OMB’s Circular 15-08.

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS

Finding 2019-007

Condition

Transportation contracts awarded through a coordinated transportation services agency in excessofthe bid threshold

in which no contract documentation was provided to the District.

Current Status

Corrective action has been taken.



HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION
AUDITORS? MANAGEMENT REPORT ON

ADMINISTRATIVE FINDINGS-
FINANCIAL, COMPLIANCE AND PERFORMANCE

JUNE 30, 2020



HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION |
TABLE OF CONTENTS

AUDITORS MANAGEMENT REPORT ON ADMINISTRATIVE FINDINGS

- FINANCIAL, COMPLIANCE AND PERFORMANCE

PageNo,

Auditor's Management Report 1

Scope of Audit 2

Administrative Practices and Procedures 2

Financial Planning, Accounting and Reporting 2-5

School Purchasing Programs 5-6

School Food Service 6-7

Student Body Activities 7-8
Application for State School Aid 8

Pupil Transportation

Facilities and Capital Assets
Testing for Lead of all Drinking Water in Educational Facilities

Management Suggestions
Fallow-Up Prior YearFindings
Schedule ofMeal Count Activity — Not Applicable

Net Cash Resource Schedule 10

Schedule of Audited Enrollments 11-13

Excess Surplus Calculation 14

Recommendations 15-16

Acknowledgement 16

W
o

o
o

o
o

G
t

G
o

0
0



LERCH, VINCI & HIGGINS,tip
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
REGISTERED MUNICIPAL ACCOUNTANTS

 

DIRTER PFLUACE, CPA EMA, PEN ELIZABETHA SHICK, CPA, RMA, PHA

Sauce JSVINCI, OPA, RMA, PHA ROBERT, HAAG, CPA, FSA

OARY W, HIGHING, CPA RMA, PBA RALPH M. PICONE,TT, CPA, RMA, PEA

ILLERA O. BLIES, CPA, RMA, PHA DONNA L. JADUET, CTA, PSA

PAUL J. LERCH, CPA, RMA, POA DEBRA GOLLE, CPA

JULIUS , CONSONI, CPA, PSA MARE SACO, CHA

ANTREWD. PARENTE, CPA, HMA, USA RODERT LERCH, Cha

AUDTTOR’S MANAGEMENT REPORT CHIMESOHN, CRA

Honorable President and Members

of the Board of Education
Hackensack Board of Education
Hackensack, New Jersey

We have audited in accordance with auditing slandards generally accepted in the United States of America and Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the basic financial statements of the Hackensack

Board of Education, State of New Jersey as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, and have issued our report

thereon dated December17, 2020,

As part of our audit, we performed procedures required by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State of
New Jersey and the findings and results thereof are disclosed on the following pages, as listed in the accompanying table of

contents.

This report is intended for the information of management, the Board of Education, others within the District and the New

Tersey State Department of Education. However,this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is notlimited,

Leech, Viver? Higos, LEP
LERCH, VINCI & HIGGINS, LLP

Certified Public Accountants

Public School Accountants
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Jcfitey C. Bliss
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HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION
ADMINISTRATIVE FINDINGS- FINANCIAL, COMPLIANCE AND PERFORMANCEREPORTING
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Scope of Audit

The audit covered the financial transactions of the Board Secretary/School Business Administratorthe activities of the Board

of Education and the records of the various funds underthe auspices of the Board of Education.

Administrative Practices and Procedures

Insurance

Fire insurance coverage was carried in the amounts as detailed on Exhibit J-20, Schedule of Insurance contained in the

distric!'s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (“CAFR”),

Official Bonds

 Name Position Amount

Dennis Frohnapfel (7/1/19-2/21/20) Business Administrator/Board Secretary $500,000

Dora E, Zeno (2/21/20-6/30/20) Business Administrator/Board Secretary | $500,000

There is an Employee Dishonesty Faithful Performance Crime Coverage policy wilh NJ, Schools Insurance Group covering

all other employees with multiple coverage of $500,000 per employee.

Financial Planning, Accounting and Reporting

Examination of Claims

An exantination of claims paid during the period under review did not indicate any material discrepancies with respect to

signatures, certifications or supporting documentation,

Payroll Account

The netsalaries ofall employees of the Board were deposited in the payroll account. Employees! payroll deductions and

employer's share offringe benefits were deposited in the payroll agencyaccount,

Salary withholdings were promptly remitted to the proper agencies, including health benefits premium amounts withheld

and due to the governmental funds,

The District malntains a personnel tracking and accounting (Position Control) system.

The Sehool Business Administrator completed and filed the required Certification of Compliance with Federal and State

Law respecting the reporting of compensation forcertain employees,



HACKENSACKBOARD OF EDUCATION

ADMINISTRATIVE FINDINGS - FINANCIAL, COMPLIANCE AND PERFORMANCE REPORTING
FORTHE FISCAL YEARENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Financial Planning, Accounting and Reporting (Continued

Reserve forEncumbrances and Accounts Payable

A review of outstanding issued purchase orders was made as of June 30 for goods not yet received or services not yet

rendered with exception, Also, unpaid purchase orders included in the balance of accounts payable were reviewed for

propriety and to determine that goods were received and services were rendered as of June 30,

+ Finding — (CAFR Finding 2020-001) — Our audit of year end open purchase orders in the General Fund

revealed certain purchase orders were not reviewed at year end for yalidity. We noted numerous
encumbrances which we deemed invalid at year end.

Recommendation — Procedures be revised to ensure open purchase orders are reviewed al year end for

validity and invalid orders be cancelled accordingly,

‘Travel 

The District had an approved Board travel policy as required by N.J.A.C, GA23.4-6.13 and N.1.S.A. 18A:11-12,

Classification of Expenditures

The coding of expenditures was tested for proper classification in accordance with N.LA.C, 6A:23A4-16.2(D) as part of our
teat oftransactions of randomly selected expenditure items. We also teviewed the coding ofall expenditures included in our

compliance and single audit testing procedures, In addition to randomly selecting a lest sample, our sample selection

included administrative coding classifications to determine overall reliability and compliance with 4..£4.€. 64:23-8,3, Asa
result of the procedures performed, no material exceptions were noted, therefore, no additional procedures were deemed

necessary to test the propriety of expenditure classification.

> Finding (CAFR Finding 2020-003) — Our audit revealed certain expenditures were not classified and

charged to the proper budget line accounts in accordance with The Uniform Minimum Chart. of Accounts
for New Jersey Public Schools.

Recommendation — Procedures be enhanced to ensure expenditures are charged to the proper budgetline

accounts in accordance with The Uniform Minimum Chart ofAccounts for New Jersey Public Schools,

Board Secretary's Records

The financial records, books of account and minutes maintained by the Board Secretary were in good condition,

Acknowledgmentofthe Board’s receipt of the Board Secretary's monthly financial reporls were included in the minutes.

‘he prescribed contractual order system was followed with exceptions as previously noted,

Bids received were surmmarized in Ihe minutes (N.T.S.A. IBA:18A-21)



HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION
ADMINISTRATIVE FINDINGS - FINANCIAL, COMPLIANCE AND PERFORMANCE REPORTING
FOR THEFISCAL YEARENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Financial Tanning, Accounting and Reporting (Continued)

Unemployment Compensation Insurance Trust Fund
 

The Board has adopted the direct reimbursement method and has established an Unemployment Compensation Insurance

Trust Fund, The financial transactions of this fund are reported in the Fiduciary Funds,

Elementary and Secondary Education Act (E.S.E,A.) as amendedbytheEvery Student Succeeds Acts (ESSA)

The E.S.E.A, financial exhibits are contained within the Special Revenue section of the CAFR. ‘This section of the CAFR.
documents the financial position pertaining (o projects under Title T, TI, IIT and TV of the Elementary and Secondary

Education Act, as amended and reauthorized,

The study of compliance for 5.E.A.disclosed the following area of noncompliance,

> Finding (CAFR Finding 2020-002) — Our audit of the ESEA Title L grant program revealed certain time
and effort reports were not provided for audit for certain employees chargedto the grant program.

Recommendation — Time and effort reports be completedand retainedonfile for all employees charged to

the ESEA Title T grantprogram,

OtherSpecial Federal and/or State Projects

The District's Special Projects were approvedas listed on Exhibits K-3 and K-4 located inthe CAFR.

Our audit of the Federal and State funds on a test basis indicated that obligations and expenditures were incurred during the
fiscal year or project period for which the project was approved.

+ Finding (CAFRFinding 2020-004) -- A reviewofstudents’ Individualized Education Plans (IEP) revealed

certain students reported on the Application for State Extraordinary Aid did not have an intensive related

service specifically included in their IEP. A minimum of one intensive related service is required to be
includedin a student's LEP to be eligible for inclusion on the Extraordinary Aid Application,

Reecammendation — Procedures be revised to ensure student [EP's specitically identify the intensive related
service provided to the respective student reported on the Application for State Extraordinary Aid,

The financial exhibits are contained within the Special Revenue Scetion af the CAFR. This section of the CAFR documents

the financial position pertaining to the aforementioned special projects.

Our audit procedures included a test of the semi-monthly reimbursement forms filed wilh the Department of Education for

District employees who are members of the Teachers Pension and Annuity Fund, No exceptions were noted,



HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION
ADMINISTRATIVE FINDINGS - FINANCIAL, COMPLIANCEAND PERFORMANCE REPORTING
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Financial Manning, Accounting and Reporting (Continued)

T.P.A,F Reimbursement to theState for Federal Salary Expenditures

The amount of expenditure charged to the current year’s Final Report for all federal awards for the school district to
reimburse the State for the TPAF/FICA payments made by the State on-behalfofthe school district for those employees
whose sularivs are identified as being paid from federal funds was made prior to the end of the 90 day grant liquidation
period required by the Office of Grants Management. ‘The expendilure was reviewed subsequentto the reimbursement and
no exceptions were noted.

School Purchasing Programs

Contracts and Agreements Requiring Advertisement for Bids

‘The bid thresholds in accordance with N.LS.A. 18A:18A-2 are $40,000 (with a Qualified Purchasing Agent) and $29,000
(without a Qualified Purchasing Agent), respectively, ‘The law regulates bidding for public school student transportation
contracts under NJSA 18.A:39-3 is $19,000 for the 2019/2020 school year.

Lf the purchasing agent is qualified pursuant to subsection b ofsection 9 of P.L. 1971, e. 198 (c.40A:11-9), the board of
education may establish that the bid threshold may be up to $40,000, Such authorization may be granted for each contract or
by a general delegation of the power to negotiate and award such contracts pursuant to this section, The Board has
designated the Assistant School Business Administrator as the qualified purchasing agent and established the bid threshald at
$40,000 effective April 29, 2019,

The Board of Education has the responsibility of determining whether the expenditures in any category will exceed the
statutory thresholds within the fiscal year, Where question arises as to whether any contract or agreement might result in
violation of the statute, the Bourd atiorney’s opinion should be sought before a commitment is made.

Based on the results of our examination, we noted instances where individual payments, contracts or agreements were made
for the performance of work or goods or services, in excess ofthe statutory thresholds where there had been no advertising
for bids in accordance with the provision ofN.J,8.A, 18A:/BA-4, as amended,

Resolutions were adopted authorizing the awarding of contracts and agreements for “Professional Services” per N.J.S.A,
18A:13A-5 and 19:44in certain instances,

> Finding (CAFR Findings 2019-005) — Our audit of purchases and contract awards in excess of the bid
threshold reyealed the following as it relates to compliance with the Public School Contracts Law and State
procurement guidelines:

. We noted several instances where contract awards and purchases were made in excess of the bid threshold
where there was no documentation provided to support publicly advertised bids were sought, State
contract or cooperative purchasing contracts were awarded or a competitive contracling process was
conducted in accordance withthe requirements of the Public School Contracts Law(N.L.S.A. [84:184),

* Our audit indicated several vendors paid in excess of the bid threshold were based on the use of state
contracts or cooperative purchasing agreements which were not approved by the Board and included in
the official minutes. Furthermore, the applicable state contract and cooperative purchasing agreements
were not provided in order to determine the validity of the contracts.

« We noted purchases in excess of the bid threshold made through a National Purchasing Cooperative
agreement vendorthal was not approved in the minutes and was not publicly advertised for intent to
purchase, In addition, documentation was not provided to support verificationof bid process or proof of
cost savings.



HACKENSACKBOARD OF EDUCATION
ADMINISTRATIVE FINDINGS- FINANCIAL, COMPLIANCE AND PERFORMANCE REPORTING

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

School Purchasing Programs (Continued)

Contracts and Agreements RequiringAdvertisement for Bids (Continued)

Recommendation

« Internal control procedures over purchasing be reviewed and revised to ensure all contract awards and
purchases which exceed the bid threshold are procured in accordance with the requirements of the Public
School Contracts Law, In addition, documentation be maintained on file and made available for audit to
support the District’s compliance with the procedures required under the Public School Contracts Law
(N.TS.A. 18A:18A).

* Contract awards and purchases made in excess of the bid threshold through the use of State contracts,
cooperative purchasing agreements and National Purchasing Cooperatives be approved by the Board in
the official minutes and made in accordance with State procurement guidelines, In addition,
documentation be maintained on file and made available for audit to support the District’s awards
pursuantto state contracts and cooperative purchasing agreements.

The system of records did not provide for an accumulation of purchases for which the school board used contracts entered
into by the State Department of Purchase and Property pursuant to Ch, 114, PL. 1977, therefore, the extent of such
purchases could not reasonably be ascertained.

School Food Service

COVID—19 EMERGENCY

In accordance with the Governor's Declaration of Emergencypertaining to the COVID 19 Virus all Public schools were
ordered to close effective as of March 18, 2020 for an undeterinined period to limit the spread of the virus. As a result,
School Tood Authorities (STA) were required to institute alternate procedures to provide meals to Free and Reduced Price
eligible students during the period of school closures.

Therefore, SFAs were authorized to solicit and award emergency noncompetitive procurements and contracts with Food
Service Management Companics in accordanee with 2 CFR 200,320 and N.TS.A. 18A:18A-7. The SFAs were also
authorized to submit contract modifications to their existing Cost Reimbursable or Fixed Price contracts as necessary to
ensure the feeding of Free and Reduced Price mealeligible students.

SFAS were notified of the requirement to maintain and report separate meal count records and financial records of all
applicable costs incurred in providing mealsto all free and reduced price meal eligible students during the emergency,

We also inquired ol management about the emergency COVID-19 procedures/practices that the SFA instituted to provide
meals to eligible students, maintenance of all applicable production records; meal counts; noncompetitive procurements;
modification of existing contracts and applicable financial records to documentthe specific cost applicable to the emergency
operations.

The school food service program wasnot selected as a major Federal or State program. However, the program expenditures
exceeded $100,000 in Federal support. Accordingly, we inquired of school management, or appropriate school food service
personnel, as to whether the School Food Authority (SFA) bad amy Child Nutrition Program reimbursement overclaims or
underelaims. We also inquired of school management, or appropriate school food service personnel, as to whether the
ses expenditures of school food service reyenues were limited to allowable direct and indirect costs. No caceplions were
noted.

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position (CAFR Schedule B-5) does separate program and
non-program revenue and program and non-program cost of goods sold.



HACKENSACKBOARD OF EDUCATION
ADMINISTRATIVE FINDINGS - FINANCIAL, COMPLIANCE AND PERFORMANCE REPORTING
FOR THE FISCAL YEARENDED JUNE 30, 2020

School Food Service (Continued)

The financial transactions of the school food service fund were maintained in good condition. The financial accounts were
reviewedona test-check basis.

The District utilizes a food service management company (FSMC) and ls depositing and expending program monies in
accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:17-34, and 19-1 through 19-4,1 with exception, Provisions of the FSMC contract/addendum
were reyiewed and audited. The FSMC contract includes an operating result provision which was not met by the FSMC for
the current fiscal year. A credit was provided by the FSMCto lhe District for the shortfall in the operating results provision.

Cash receipts and bank records were reviewed for timely deposit,

Expenditures were separately recorded as food, labor and other costs. Vendor invoices were reviewed and costs verified.
Inventory records on food supply items were currently maintained and properly applied in determining the cost of food and
supplies used,

The cash disbursements records reflected expenditures for program related goods and services with exceptions noted, The
appropriate revenue and expenditure records were mainlainedin order to substantiate the non-profit status of the school food
service. Nel cashresources did exceed three months average expenditures.

Applications for free and reduced price meals were reviewed for completeness and accuracy as part of the audit ofthe
Application for State School Aid (ASSA).

USDA Food Distribution Program commodities were received and a separate inventory was maintainedona first-in, first-out
basis.

Exhibits reflecting Child Nutrition Program operations ate included in the section entitled Enterprise Funds, Exhibits B-4
through B-6 of the CAFR,

® Finding — Our audit of the food sale revenues and expenses reported on the food service management
company’s operating statement revealed differences with the amounts reported in the District's revenue and
expenditure reports, We noted the food sales reported in the District’s records was less than the food sales
reported by the food service management company (FSMC}, Wealso noted expenseslisted on the FSMC
monthly invoices were higher than expenses listed on the monthly operating statements.

Recommendation — The revenue reported on the food service management company’s operating statement be
compared to the amounts reported in the District’s revenue reports and any differences be reconciled on a
monthly basis. In addition expenses reflected on the monthly invoices be reviewed and reconeiled ta the
monthly operating statements prior lo payment,

Student Body Activities

During our reviewofthe student activity funds, the following matters were noted:

>» Finding — Pre-numberedreceipt tickets were notutilized for monies collected in the Elementary, Middle School
or High School Student Activity accounts.

Recommendation — Pre-numberedreceipt tickets be utilized for monies collected in all District student activity
accounts,

+ Finding — Deposits for gate receipts from sporting events in the High School Athletic account as well as
deposits in the Varsity Club accountare not deposited in a timely manner.

Recommendation — Deposits be made in a timely manner in the High School Athletic and Varsity Club
accounts,



HACKENSACKBOARD OF EDUCATION
ADMINISTRATIVE FINDINGS - FINANCLAL, COMPLIANCE AND PERFORMANCE REPORTING
FOR THE FISCAL YEARENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Student Body Activities (Continued)

= Finding — Vouchers or checks request forms were notutilized for disbursements made from the FannyHillers,
Middle School, High School Varsity Club and High School Athletic accounts.

Recommendation — Vouchers or check request forms be utilized for payments made from the Fanny Tillers,
Middle School, High School Varsity Club and High School Athletic accounts.

Application for State School Aid

Our audit procedures included a test of information reporled in the October 15, 2019 Application for State School Aid
(A,S.5,A,) for on=rol), private schools for the handicapped, related services, bilingual students and low-income. We also
performed a review of the district procedures related to its completion. The mformation on the A,5.5,A. was compared to
the district workpapers with minor exceptions noted, The information that was included on the workpapers was verilied
with immaterial exceptions noted, The results of our procedures are presented in the Schedule of Audited Enrollments.

The district maintained workpapers on the prescribed state forms or their equivalent,

The district has adequate written proceduresforthe recording of student enrollmentdata,

Pupil Transportation

Our audit procedures included a test of on roll status reported in the 2019-20 District Report of Transported Resident
Students (DRTRS). The information that was included on the DR'TRS was verified to the DRTRS Eligibility Summary
Report without exception. The results of our procedures are presented in the Schedule of Audited Enrollments.

Facilities and Capital Assets

The District had no SDA grant projects during the currentyear.

Testing for Lead of all Drinking Water in Educational Facilities

‘The school district submitted the anual Statement of Assurance to the Department of Education, pursuant to N.J.A.C.
6A:26-12,4(10).

Management Suggestions

> Payments made from the Scholarship and Unemployment trust accounts should be approved in the Board
minutes,

® ‘The District should perform a review of all bank accounts utilizing the District’s employer identification number
(FTN) and any accounts not under the control and approval of the Board should discontinue the use of the
District's EIN.

> ‘The District should implement procedures to have a supervisory district employee verify on-line with federal
and state agencies the timely payment of payroll deductions duc.

Follow-up Prior Year Findings

In accordance with government standards, our procedures included a reviewofall prior year recommendations.



TIACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION
FOOD SERVICE FUND

NUMBER OF MEALS SERVED AND (OVER)/UNDERCLAIM

ENTERPRISE FUNDS
FORTHE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

NOT APPLICABLE



 

HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION

FOOD SERVICE FUND

SCHEDULE OF NET CASH RESOURES

ENTERPRISE FUNDS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 20120

 

Food

Service
Net Cash Resources: B-4/5

CAFR > Current Assets

B-4 Cash & Cash Equiv, Â 520,771

B-4 Due from Other Gov'ts 158,907

B-4 Due from Other Fund

B-4 Accounts Receivable 15,398
Bed Investments

CAFR Current Liabilities

B-4 Less Accounts Payable (76,323)
B-4 Less Aceruals

B-4 Less Due to Other Funda
Bed Less Uncarned Revenue (23,519)

Net Cash Resources $ 595,234 (A)

Net Adj. Total Operating Expense:

B-5 Tot. Operating Exp. 2,484,552

RB-5 Less Depreciation 42,761

Adj. Tot. Oper. Exp. $ 2,441,791 (By

Average Monthly Operating Expense:

B/10 244,179 (©)

Three times monthly Average:

3XC 732,537 am

TOTAL IN BOX A 595,234
LESS TOTAL INBOX D 732,537
NET (137,303)

Fromabove:

Net Cash Resources Did Not Exceed Three Months of Average Expenditures
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HACKENSACK BOARD OF EDUCATION

EXCESS SURPLUS CALCULATION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE30, 2020

SECTION 1A - Two Percent (2%) - Calculotion ofExcess surplus

2019-20 Total General Fund Expenditures per the CAFR

Increased by:
Transfer Out - Special Revenue Fund- Preschool Program

Deereased by:

On-BehalfTPAF Pension & Social Security
Assets Acquired Under Capital Leases

Adjusted 19-20 General Fund Expenditures

2% of Adjusted 2019-20 General Fund Expenditures
Allowable Adjustment - Unbudgeted Extraordinary Aid

Maximum Unreserved/Undesignated Fund Balance

SECTION 2

Total General Fund - Fund Balance at June 30, 2020

Decreased by:

Reserved for Encumbrances

Other Reserved Fund Balances - Capital Reserve

Other Rerved Fund Balance - Maintenance Reserve

Other Reserved Fund Balance - Emergency Reserve

Excess Surplus - Designated for Subsequent Year's Expenditures
Assigned - Designated for Subsequent Year's Expenditures

Total Unreserved/Undesignated Fund Balance

SECTION 3

Reserved Fund Balance - Excess Surplus

Reeapitulation of Excess Surplus as of June 30, 2020

Reserved Excess Surplus - Designated for Subsequent Year's Expenditures

Reserved Excess Surplus

Total

4

$ 128,691,612

411,499

129,103,111

17,478,960
616,116

$ 111,008,035

$ 2,220,161
776,303

$ 2,906,464

$ 22,201,263

2,014,533

9,137,058

1,010,633

300,000

1,712,365
1,308,580

 

$ 3,721,630

$ 1,712,365

_—721,630

$ 5,433,995



HACKENSACKBOARD OF EDUCATION
RECOMMENDATIONS

L Administration Practices and Procedures
 

There are none,

U. Financial Planning, Accounting and Reporting

Itás recommended that;

Procedures be revised to ensure open purchase orders are reviewedal year end for validity and invalid orders be
cancelled accordingly.

Procedures be enhanced to ensure expenditures are charged to the proper budget line accounts in accordance
with The Uniform Minimum Chart of Accounts for New Jersey Public Schools.

Time andeffort reports be completed and retained on file for all employees charged to the ESTA Title L grant
program.

Procedures be revised to ensure student IEP’s specifically identify the intensive rolated service provided to the
respective student reported on the Application for State Extraordinary Aid.

JIL School Purchasing Program

It is recommended that:

* Li Internal control procedures over purchasing be reviewed and revised to ensure all contract awards and purchases
which exceed thebid threshold are procured in accordance with the requirements of the Public School Contracts
Law. In addition, documentation be maintained on file and made available for audit to support the District's
compliance with the procedures required under the Public School Contracts Law (W.1.S.A, 18A:18A).

Contract awards and purchases made in excess of the bid threshold through the use of State contracts,
cooperative purchasing agreements and National Purchasing Cooperatives be approved by the Board in the
official minutes and made in accordance with State procurement guidelines, In addition, documentation be
maintained onfile and made available for audit to support the District's awards pursuantto stats contracts and
cooperative purchasing agreements.

TV, School Food Service

It is recommended that the revenue reported on the food service management company’s operating statementhe

compared to the amounts reported in the District's revenue reports and any differences be reconciled on a
monthly basis, In addition, expenses reflected on the monthly invoices be reviewed and reconciled to the

monthly operating statement prior to payment,



HACKENSACKBOARD OF EDUCATION
RECOMMENDATIONS

Y. Student Body Activities

TLis recommended that:

* 3. Vouchers or checks requ

Pre-numberedreceipt tickets be utilized for monies collected in all District studentactivity accounts,

Deposits he made in a timely mannerin the High School Athletic and Varsity Club acenunts,

est forms be utilized for payments made from the Fanny Hillers, Middle School, High
School Varsity Club und High School Athletic accounts. :

VL. Application for State School Aid

There are none,

VII. Pupil Transportation

There are none,

IX. Facilities and Capital Assets

There are none.

X. Miscellanenus

There are none.

XLStatus of Prior Years' Audit Findings/Recommendations

A review was performed on all prior years! recommendations and corrective action was taken on all, except those
recommendations denoted with an asterisk (*).
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